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Corporate Information
NEEH
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Cayman lIslands
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Corporate Information
NEEHR
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Major Accomplishments
RER

2018
—E-NEF

April

4A

o Being well aware of the importance of network security to the clients, the Group allocates
resources every year to the security upgrades, updates and testing of all of its trading systems,
and has rolled out a “two-factor authentication” service with the aim of improving its network
security
AEE-—EERRKRRTEHZTPNEZN  FUBFHERKERERA EFRAASE
REZGHRE EHEEEREFIRBURAR ERETKTE

June

6H

° The Dialogue Between Experts - US
Futures Summit was organised by the
Group in collaboration with the Chicago
Mercantile Exchange to enhance investors’
understanding of financial products such
as futures in Hong Kong and the US and
provide investors with information channels
and analyses of the latest trends in the
markets
AEERZMFEMZHAEE - BH(E
FTHRRXENESES) BREFEHEL
REBREZELRERIMNARE  LRKR
BERMEMRBMBIIMATES

July

7R

o The Group received a Platinum Award under the Charter on External Lighting from the
Environmental Bureau of Hong Kong for duly bearing its corporate social responsibility and
contributing to environmental protection
AEBTZBETHGREEE  ROARRELER  EEBRBER/VEFLIINEANEIHS
8]

o The Group and the HKEX jointly organised
the Seminar on Single Stock Futures in
the Second Half of 2018 for investors
at the HKEX Connect Hall of the HKEX
to comprehensively analyse the latest
trends in the Hong Kong stock and futures
markets for the second half of the year
AEEBEAEERIFRESAERAGE
BERICOIBTHEREZNEREHRE) -
RBEEEZHUST THEERERENH
ENEMED
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Major Accomplishments
RER

August

8H

° With its securities trading mobile applications
which feature security, reliability, speed and
stability, the Group won the Financial Sector
— Outstanding Securities Trading Mobile APP
award granted by Metro Broadcast and The
Chamber of Hong Kong Computer Industry for
the second consecutive year
BELZERAE REBRTHNIFXIHIFHRE
A AEEEEMFREATUEARETE
EREmERENeRE — REEFRSF
RN

September

9A

° To motivate the staff with diversified activities
and rewards, the Group spent hundreds of
thousand dollars on Bright Smart Disney
Halloween Time to relax and have fun with the
entire staff.
AEBEFBETETER BT B LR
Halloween[A % H | - 28 8 T — R K%
& FERET AT REEGFEARBET
TR

ﬁw

October

10A

o To show its appreciation of the trust and
support of its clients and partners, the
Group booked the whole Cinema City JP in
Causeway Bay for two consecutive days and
invited approximately 5,000 clients to enjoy
Venom, a Hollywood blockbuster
REMEPREHEKHEARAEENERES
B ASEEEMBARNABREERRAKES
Ejzlim@ B EBAI5,000B B ME AT EIE K

HEZ(TE)
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Major Accomplishments
RER

November

118

o Being widely acclaimed for its pursuit of
excellence and outstanding performance

= - -
| R u ()1
during the year, the Group won four awards E m m I:B'E ' B &

Hong Kong Outst Raerprses Parpde
within the month, including the Best rENN

Securities Mobile Apps in Greater China T
Award by METRO PROSPERITY, the Hong
Kong Outstanding Enterprise Award for the
seventh year as well as the Extraordinary
Enterprise Award for its continuous success
by Economic Digest, and the Listed Company
Award of Excellence by Hong Kong Economic
Journal

AEEEERART  —EAREENE -
EEEETRE)EENHRERPERS
FlApps K] EE L FRE(KE—RIE
RIZBEHRLCERE| WREEEZFH
2 —RBERIGEABERE] U RBEH
BHEHEEE LTARIEEAE] B&F&
ERE—FHakE =B TALHKRR

e fEtren UGG

A Ml (A vasn
> rng g 2018
£ ustep cove S OF EXCELLENCE

o The Stock, Residential Property, Shop, Fixed-
Income and ETF Conference was organised
at the Group’s Kowloon headquarters to help
investors seize investment opportunities by
analysing the momentum and trends in the
investment markets comprehensively
REBERNEAITEPC(R 1B odHo B oETF
7(*” BE) 2AURANKREMSEERE

CHRPEEEREE LI
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Major Accomplishments

RERL

With the aim of supporting sports
development in Hong Kong, the Group title-
sponsored the Bright Smart Securities Hong
Kong Junior Squash Championships 2018
to allow junior players in Hong Kong to
realise their full potential, prepare them for
comprehensive development and training, and
identify young Hong Kong squash players with
great potential

RXFEERERR AEEERERAS
EHFEBBFTLFERBIER2018]  XIHFEB
SOF—EAR BEMMAZAILERRE
B TREPERABRENE

December

124

The Group was named the Top Exchange
Participant — L&l Product Turnover and
won the Award in Providing Stock Futures
Education by the HKEX to acknowledge
the Group’s continuous efforts in providing
comprehensive investment products and
education to the investors
AEBEEEARIMBEIZERRF M
HEAE —BEERRAEMKREIRIEE
HEBEIAE] BREEAEEERESZE
REEMIEDREEHRENE S

g
R
P i [

snat II-IIEREI E Bright 8

" HKEX AWARDS 2018 Futu Sa
BERTRR2018ENHERAE

i x  Susqu
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Major Accomplishments

KRERL

2019
—E-NF

January

1A

In recognition of its active contributions to
charity and the society, the Group received the
the Most Socially Responsible Listed Company
in 2018 Golden Hong Kong Stock Awards
by Zhitongcaijing and RoyalFlush Information
Network, both renowned finance and economic
websites in China
REEEEREANAR M EEUGCEBME)R(E
I YR EI2018 EREATETELTA
AR RBEEE—EHELBEEAm  BREHR
fte

The Group has been sponsoring the Joyful
Charity Run event organised by Joyful (Mental
Health) Foundation for 11 consecutive years to
arouse public concern over, and understanding
of, mood disorder
AEEEBT - FRNVEPARILVLBTHEEER
SIRPNLER - WEBIZSHETDY  Fit
MR A B KRB AE R A BT R R A

With a view to promoting community care, over
1,000 elderly people were invited to the 2019
Chinese New Year’s Eve Gala Dinner for the
Elderly held by Louis Mak Charitable Foundation
and sponsored by the Group
REBENEERNZEECR MK FRBEME
BHEBRE EFOTURELEBRE  EULERE
[ 44 [ 2 ] i
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Major Accomplishments

RERL

10

February

2 A

Two new mobile trading apps, BS
Securities (Baobao) and BS Futures
(Doudou), were launched. These apps
are equipped with Al 3.0 features (such
as behavioural authentication, news
tracking and personalised portfolio
monitoring), and provide one-stop
trading service platforms for investors,
who can now open accounts, perform
two-factor authentication and conduct
global stock and futures product transactions right away at anytime and anywhere. Capitalising
on the launch, the Group rolled out an aggressive marketing campaign at the same time to grasp
a larger market share. As a result, these apps received widespread media coverage in both
mainland China and Hong Kong shortly after their launch
AEBHELHRBRAZTRF(EE) I MRBIHE(ER) I MAZHR 5 FHERREFAPP) @ £ RA
O (ITARE FHEMKBEESERE) SHF ZERERRFH=AU  EFRE
ERTHEPEERAPNEEZRRERPEER SEFRBELERTERE - BETS
e AELEREPBERBEZRE

To thank the entire staff for their efforts and contributions, the Group continued to offer generous
bonus to them. In particular, staff members with the best performances during the year received
large bonuses equaling 22 months of pay

AEEEBZRERTATERET  ZFXREEUEIFEZBAT _EANEBERLL -
NEHRETNEBE D KRER

March

3R

During the Chinese New Year, the Group
booked the whole Cinema City JP in
Causeway Bay and invited approximately
5,000 clients to enjoy Capital Marvel, an
international blockbuster, in a total of 12
shows to appreciate their support, and
wish them and their families perpetual
prosperity and peace of mind
REEEZERE N F RN EE IR P
RKESBERTFTERSERE - EF
1235 B FA)5,0008 8 F MRE KR A
(Marvel5 &) - ERHEPHZHREE -
WHMESML—tES  RKREE
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Branch Network

AT AR

HONG KONG & &
Hong Kong Headquarters
BEARERER

Central Branch
HIR D 1T
Wanchai Branch
BEST

North Point Branch
tAana

Quarry Bay Branch
B ERDTT

KOWLOON H 8

Kowloon Headquarters
NEBRER

Tsim Sha Tsui Branch
KRB ST

Hung Hom Branch

AW AT

Mongkok Golden Hill Branch
HATLUIT

Kwun Tong Branch
BEST

Kwun Tong 2nd Branch
BREE_H1T

Sham Shui Po Branch
RKY 517

Mei Foo Branch

£FH1
Kowloon Bay Branch

nEEHH

10/F & 23/F (Sales & Customer Services Department),

Wing On House, 71 Des Voeux Road Central, Central
FREHEPTIRAKREEAREI0EEER3ELE
(HEREPRKE)

Mezzanine Floor, Peter Building, 58-60 Queen’s Road Central
HIRE R AEF58-605 IR B AEEE

1/F, Henning House, 385-391 Hennessy Road

B 58385001 T BEAE1IER B

Shop G2, G/F, Max Share Centre, 373 King’s Road

it A 5 2 B373% L E O it TG25% M

Shop 7, G/F and Mezzanine Floor, Tak Lee Building, 993 King’s Road

HRRREEIRRENE TTRAEREERE

Mezzanine Floor and First Floor, Honour House, 375-381 Nathan Road

NEBHEI75-BIREHAERERIEDE

1/F, Grand Right Centre, No.10 Cameron Road
APEEFTHREBIOREHEFUIERE

Shop 5C, G/F, 38-1 King Fu Building, Tak Man Street,
Phase 4 Whampoa Estate, Hung Hom

AW A\ R4 ERE38-15 = 5 8 T5C5 8
1/F, Golden Hill Commercial Building, 39-41 Argyle Street
HADEZHI-41RRILUEEREE

Shops 4-6, G/F, Yee On Centre, 45 Hong Ning Road
BREREBSFTERFOMTIE6RE

Shop 5, G/F, Cambridge Building, 25-39 Hong Ning Road
BEREES-I0REBERSKAELT

G/F, 39 Yen Chow Street

WK N E1395 f i T

Shops 79-80 of Podium Floor, 51-53 Broadway Street,
Mei Foo Sun Chuen Phase 3

EF BEEHS1-63F X FHMNFEIMF A79R805%
Shop No. G203, G/F, Amoy Plaza, Amoy Gardens Phase I,
No. 77 Ngau Tau Kok Road

FUBEE A4 BE A B 7T SRR K 452 8 3 G203 5% 48

BIBHEREBMERLA | —T—/)/\/ —NEEFER

(852) 2537 1371

(852) 3961 6688

(852) 3127 0888

(852) 3180 7428

(852) 3550 7888

(852) 3604 1888

(852) 3121 6888

(852) 3127 9288

(852) 3188 0928

(852) 3768 0888

(852) 3196 9688

(852) 3666 5688

(852) 3120 0388

(852) 3922 7788
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Branch Network

AT AR

NEW TERRITORIES # #

Tsuen Wan Branch
3 BXi

Tai Wai Branch
REHT

Tai Po Branch

R DT
Sheung Shui Branch
EXD1T

Yuen Long Branch
TR ST

Tuen Mun Branch

BT

G/F & Cockloft, Sze Yuen Mansion, 253 Sha Tsui Road
SEYDHBESS R BIREM T REE

Shop 2B, G/F & Cockloft, On Tai Building, 11 Chik Fai Street
REBEHIR L REBRMHE M T REE

G/F, 141-145 Kwong Fuk Road

AEERE1M-146 T

Shop D, G/F & Cockloft, 80 Lung Sum Avenue
EKBEBRBX 805K i D& & B 4E

Shop No. 5, G/F., Kan Yip Building, No. 225-237 Castle Peak Road, Yuen Long
TTEAE LA B T RA B 225-237 5K E) ¥ 12 1 T 550 48

Shop 6, G/F, Tuen Mun Paris London-New York Cinema Shopping
Centre, 117-157 Tuen Mun Heung Sze Wui Road

R EERIT7-157 R E R R AR B Y+ O T 65 &

BRIGHT SMART MOBILE TEACHING CENTRE 8 F # &8 =&

12

(852) 3929 2798

(852) 3763 3488

(852) 3763 3388

(852) 3768 7188

(852) 3926 2688

(852) 3193 1688

(852) 6282 6635
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Awards
4218

Bright Smart Securities gains customers’ trust and support by
adhering to the principles and beliefs of “Integrity, Sincerity,
Fairness and Conscience” and upholding the servicing principle
of “Serving Customers with Heart”. With its active fulfillment
of corporate social responsibilities, promotion of charitable
business and realization of its vision of “Parallel Development
of Commercial and Charitable Businesses” over the years, the
Group has successfully earned high recognitions from all sectors
and maintained good reputation in the market as exemplified in
the numerous awards that it has won.

Cerfificate of
Membership
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- ] Pa
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Awards

A8 18

Became a derivative trading member of the Singapore Exchange

The Most Socially Responsible Listed Company in 2018 Golden Hong Kong
Stock Awards by Zhitongcaijing/RoyalFlush Information Network

The Best Securities Mobile Apps in Greater China Award by Metro Daily/
METRO PROSPERITY

A Thank you plaque by Joyful (Mental Health) Foundation

An Honourable mention plaque by the International Aestheticians Chambers of
Commerce

The Listed Company Award of Excellence 2018 by Hong Kong Economic
Journal

The Extraordinary Enterprise Award by Economic Digest

The Hong Kong Outstanding Enterprise Award 2018 by Economic Digest

The Award in Providing Stock Futures Education by the HKEX

. The Top Exchange Participant — L&l Product Turnover by the HKEX

. Outstanding Securities Trader of 2017 by Hexun.com
. Outstanding Social Caring Organisation Award by Social Enterprise Research

Academy

. Caring Company by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service
. The Top Securities Trader —
. The Financial sector — Outstanding Securities Trading Mobile APP award by

CNH Futures Turnover by the HKEX

Metro Broadcast and The Chamber of Hong Kong Computer Industry
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" Financial Highlights
MERE

Year ended 31 March
BZ=HA=1+—HLEE

Increment/

2019 2018  (Decrement)

#m/

—E-hAE —T-)NE Rl )

$°000 $'000 %
Tr T

Revenue WA 830,305 944,440 (12.1)

Other income Hoth 1 5% 212,440 164,414 29.2
Profit from operations 42 Fl 639,785 767,572
Profit before taxation & 75 A A 499,185 600,592

Profit for the year FEREF 440,928 516,099 (14.8)

Total comprehensive income attributable to ERREEEEENEASE

equity shareholders 441,178 518,340 (14.9)
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FRERZF B 25.98 30.41 (14.6)
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) FhEFRF EWL) 25.98 30.41 (14.6)
Final dividend per share (HK cents) BRABKRECGEWN)

(31 March 2019: 1,697,296,308 shares, (ZBE—-AF=A=+—8:

31 March 2018: 1,697,296,308 shares) 1,697,296,308f% -

—T-NF=ZA=+—8:
1,697,296,308 % ) 7.80 9.10 (14.3)

HKSMillion Revenue HK$Million Net Profit

FEEL ON FEE #iF

1,200 600

1,100 550 516.1

1,000 500 4

” 944.4 - 5% 440.9
% 830.3
800 400
700 350
600 300
500 250
400 200
300 150
200 100
100 50
0 0 S
2018 2019 2018 2019
—F-NF —ZT-nF T N\fF —T- N
Year ended 31 March Year ended 31 March
BE=RA=1+—HILFE HE=A=1+—HILFE
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Chairman’s Statement
FFEHRE

In 2018, the global stock market came in like a lion and went
out like a lamb, and the Hong Kong stock market was inevitably
held back. At the start of the year, Hong Kong stocks were
bullish as the Hang Seng Index (“HSI”) soared to a record high
of over 33,000 points. However, the eruption of the fierce trade
war between the United States (the “US”) and China, coupled
with other black swans such as the uncertainties surrounding
Brexit, the rate hikes and balance sheet reduction of the Federal
Reserve of the US, the intensification of the trade war by the
arrest of Meng Wanzhou of Huawei in Canada, the currency
crisis in emerging markets and the downward pressure faced by
the world economy, has curtailed stock gains starting from the
second quarter, bringing the HSI to 25,845 points at the end of
year, representing a year-on-year drop of approximately 14%.
Lifted by the rumours of mutual understanding reached by China
and the US regarding the trade war, HSI staged a comeback of
12% in the first quarter of 2019 from the trough at the end of
2018, thereby recovering all ground lost last year. However, the
index was haunted by rising uncertainties as Sino-US relations
deteriorated sharply in May with the trade war deadlock. Taking
into consideration the current swings in the global stock market,
it is expected to see cautious fence-sitting among investors over
the future outlook.

BIBHEREBMERLA | —T—/)/\/ —NEEFER

TE-N\FEHRRMERIEHEEE INKRE
BREERBERES - EFMERRBNLE L

33,0008 LA F - WA TES s BRBAZ=
ZHIRATPTEESHER  EHFEXRWE K
TRE_FTHAZERE - i1 ERBEFEBUE M
KA EZEBHEBXERAMEMERITE @
ARBEANMBEEHEEGHESZEZIREZRAOR
Rz b FESEERBHEERELE - A
REHRGEERG NTREBSEKABE AT R
EHNEXE SREBRREFRBKZE25,8458
Wi 2FEEBETRTH14% - BAZE
—NF XEREEFHESELEREEHFBE
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Chairman’s Statement
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In 2019, the economic outlook of mainland China changed for
the better. In the first quarter, both the Shanghai and Shenzhen
stock markets surged by over 20% between January and March,
with the SSE Composite Index rising above 3,000 points. In
2019, the central government was determined to stimulate the
domestic economy and stock market. It aimed at driving the
economy, beginning with private enterprises, through a series
of measures such as financial easing, tax cuts, fee reductions
and streamlining administration. Premier Li Kegiang of the
State Council set the target gross domestic product (“GDP”)
growth rate for 2019 at 6% to 6.5%, and pointed out that the
nation encountered “conflict between tradition and innovation,
rising cyclical and structural problems, as well as uncertainties
and doubts about economic stability”. As to the key factors
affecting the country’s economic outlook, it was stated that
the stable growth of the economy depends on when the US-
China trade war and the US duty on imported Chinese goods
will end. Due to the slowdown in global economic growth and
rising external uncertainties brought by the trade war, Hong
Kong’'s GDP growth was expected to decelerate in the first
quarter, while real GDP growth for 2019 is expected to drop
to 2% to 3%. Nonetheless, the Group kept its chin up and
successfully surmounted all challenges with satisfactory results
amidst market fluctuation and adverse condition thanks to the
continuous trust and support of its clients.

| am pleased to present to the shareholders the results of Bright
Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2019 (the “Year”). The Group recorded a total
revenue for the Year of HK$830.3 million (2018: HK$944.4
million), representing a decrease of 12.1% as compared to
that for the year ended 31 March 2018 (the “Prior Year”).
Brokerage commission income decreased by 7.4% year-on-
year to HK$496.3 million (2018: HK$536.0 million) and interest
from margin financing decreased by 16.3% to HK$301.5 million
(2018: HK$360.1 million) as compared to the Prior Year.
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Profit for the Year was HK$440.9 million (2018: HK$516.1
million), representing a decrease of 14.6% as compared to
the Prior Year. Basic earnings per share were 25.98 HK cents
(2018: 30.41 HK cents), representing a year-on-year decrease
of 14.6%. The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
proposed the payment of a final dividend of 7.80 HK cents per
share (2018: 9.10 HK cents per share) for the Year. As at 31
March 2019, the total number of the Group’s client accounts
reached 283,181, representing an increase of 13.9% over that
of 248,580 as at 31 March 2018. Client assets (including cash
and stocks) was HK$46.1 billion (31 March 2018: HK$54.7
billion), representing a decrease of 15.7% as compared to the
Prior Year.

The Group stuck to its proactive operating model by adopting
a cautious and prudent strategy involving both offensive
and defensive tactics in all market conditions. In spite of the
adverse market condition, the Group spared no expense to
upgrade its trading systems, and made huge investments in
and spent 6 months of time to study investors’ behaviour and
developed two state-of-the-art mobile trading apps, namely
BS Securities (Baobao) and BS Futures (Doudou) in 2018. These
two apps were well received by the market, and have reached
over 30,000 downloads in the first month since their launch
in early 2019 alone. The Baobao and Doudou apps provide
three-minute account opening, two-factor authentication and
one-stop trading services. They are equipped with Al 3.0
features (such as behavioural authentication, news tracking and
personalised portfolio monitoring) and a user-friendly interface
that allow users to place an order in just 0.0028 second.
Capitalising on the launch, the Group rolled out aggressive
concessions targeting at new clients, such as zero commission
for new clients, zero platform fee and free real-time Hong Kong
stocks, A-shares and US stocks quotation. These services
and concessions are either first-of-its-kind or top-of-the-line,
outshining the trading platforms of the peers. Being simple
and convenient, Baobao and Doudou apps enable clients to
open accounts right away at anytime and anywhere, and have
attracted a rising number of clients from mainland China and
Hong Kong to open accounts with the Group shortly after their
launch, boosting the total number of accounts by leaps and
bounds. With outstanding results in the development of the
Baobao and Doudou apps, the Group won the Outstanding
Stock and Futures Trading App Development award in the 19t
Capital Outstanding Enterprise Awards granted by the CAPITAL.
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Apart from the tremendous efforts at the optimisation and
perfection of its online trading platforms, the Group also
perpetuated the expansion of its offline network by operating
22 business locations including headquarters and branches.
It has also launched a Bright Smart Mobile Teaching Centre
that travels around major areas in Hong Kong Island, Kowloon
and New Territories. This mobile teaching centre is the first of
its kind in Hong Kong and provides services within reach of all
clients. Over 90% of the Group’s locations now open seven
days a week with the aim of providing clients with the best
comprehensive services. However, the Group will not stay put in
respect of network development. To further refine this network
and improve its service coverage, the Group will consider any
site with low rent, prime location and heavy traffic.

In addition, the Group stays abreast of the latest development
and offers diversified products to provide clients with
comprehensive and professional brokerage services. Its wide
range of businesses covers the whole financial market in Hong
Kong and includes Hong Kong stocks, US stocks, Shanghai-
Hong Kong Stock Connect A shares, Shenzhen-Hong Kong
Stock Connect A shares, China B shares, Japanese stocks,
Taiwanese stocks, Singaporean stocks, UK stocks, Australian
stocks, Hong Kong futures, Hang Seng Index options, Hong
Kong stock options, Dow Jones Futures, A50 Futures, foreign
exchange futures, gold futures, oil futures, copper futures,
HKEX’s CNH Gold Futures, HKEX’s USD Gold Futures, iron ore
futures, initial public offering (“IPO”) shares subscription, and
margin financing. Adding to that the newly launched leveraged
foreign exchange products trading service, and the clients can
trade a whole array of financial products around the world with
just one account.
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The Group’s high quality and professional services have been
well recognised and praised by the market. During the Year,
the Group received various awards including the Hong Kong
Outstanding Enterprise Award for the seventh consecutive year
as well as the Extraordinary Enterprise Award from Economic
Digest, and the Listed Company Award of Excellence in 2018
again from Hong Kong Economic Journal. At the same time,
the Group won the award of Outstanding Securities Trading
Mobile APP by Metro Broadcast and The Chamber of Hong
Kong Computer Industry for two years in a row as well as the
Best Securities Mobile Apps in Greater China Award by Metro
Daily and METRO PROSPERITY for its fast order-placement
speed, and safe and stable mobile trading platform. The
Group was also named the Top Exchange Participant — L&l
Product Turnover and granted the Award in Providing Stock
Futures Education by the HKEX. Furthermore, it received the
Most Socially Responsible Listed Company in 2018 Golden
Hong Kong Stock Awards from Zhitongcaijing and RoyalFlush
Information Network, both renowned finance and economic
media in mainland China. This long list of awards received
during the Year is a testimony to the Group’s significant position
and leading competiveness in the industry.

As the Internet and mobile communication technologies
become increasingly popular, Internet finance grows rapidly
and inevitably gives rise to online transaction security
issues. Investors are increasingly aware of risks and attach
great importance to online transaction security. The Group
understands that online transaction security is the primary
concern of both buyers and sellers, and has therefore always
been committed to maintaining a safe transaction environment.
To increase the security level of online transactions for the
protection of clients’ assets, the Group stays ahead of its peers
in terms of network security, and all clients are required to enter
the “second password” when logging into the Group’s trading
system. After completing the transaction, clients will receive
a text message from the Group. During the Year, the Group
further enhanced online transaction security by implementing
the “two-factor authentication (2FA)” service. Regarding the
provision of a safe and reliable trading platform as its top
priority, the Group will continue to invest in the enhancement of
the security level of online transactions and testing the security
system regularly while strengthening the capacity and speed of
its trading system.
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As for investor education, the Group often organises seminars
with renowned exchanges and major financial institutions across
the globe to introduce new investment products and the latest
market dynamics to investors. The Group continued to partner
with, among others, the HKEX and the Chicago Mercantile
Exchange to hold several large seminars to analyse the latest
trends in the market and investment techniques. These seminars
received overwhelming responses and were all fully booked.
The Group also carried on its famed large-scale multi-sector
seminars covering stocks, residential properties and shops
hosted by heavyweight speakers. At the same time, the Group’s
BSTV was the first in the industry to hold investment seminars
with global live streaming online. Prominent guests were invited
to share their analyses of market trends, investment strategies
and insightful professional advice in relation to a wide variety of
financial products, and to answer clients’ questions about their
investments. To cater to the market needs for information about
all kinds of financial products and to provide investors with
comprehensive and in-depth financial information, BSTV will
diversify its programmes to strategies for investments in index
futures, stock options, warrants and ETF products.
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The Group upholds the principle of “giving back to where one
takes from” and has always been actively undertaking social
responsibility and giving back to the society while expanding its
business. The Group spared no effort to support public welfare
undertakings and participated in various charitable events,
such as sponsoring the Junior Squash Championships held by
Hong Kong Squash for the third consecutive year to facilitate
exchange among young athletes from different countries. Over
the years, the Group has been supporting Joyful (Mental Health)
Foundation, a charity group, by sponsoring the Joyful Charity
Run event for 11 consecutive years to promote mental health.
The Group has also been named a Caring Company by the
Hong Kong Council of Social Service for 8 consecutive years.
In the meantime, the Group received a Platinum Award under
the Charter on External Lighting from the Environmental Bureau
of Hong Kong for its contribution to environmental protection.
With a view to promoting social care, making contributions to
the society and fostering reciprocation, the Group has been
actively supporting charitable events and education by making
donations to the Rev. Bro. Paul Sun Education Foundation,
Louis Mak Charitable Foundation and other charities for years.

OUTLOOK

As the stock markets in China and Hong Kong rebounded
strongly in the first quarter of 2019, it is widely believed that
the worst is over. However, it is still too early to say that the
bull market has returned. The market is still dragged by the US-
China trade war, and statistics also show that the real economy
is lagging behind the stock market. Even if the US and China
arrive at any agreement, it will take time for trade to resume pre-
war level. Although the 6.4% economic growth in the mainland
for the first quarter exceeded market expectations, import
remained sluggish with 4 consecutive months of drop as of
March, reflecting weak domestic demand. On the other hand,
after a decade of monetary easing by central banks across the
globe, monetary laxity has distorted the financial market as an
indicator of the real economy. The bullish stock market may not
represent a real economic recovery. Therefore, investors should
not be too optimistic about the future.
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Notwithstanding a choppy external environment, Hong Kong
is sheltered by a number of positive factors. For example, the
central government announced the Outline Development Plan
for the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, which
foster the integration of nine municipalities and two regions
in the area by formulating and implementing hardware and
software improvements including infrastructures, social policies
and economic plans. In terms of infrastructure, the launch of
the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge and High Speed Rail will
improve physical connection. As to software, the introduction
of the Residence Permit for Hong Kong, Macao, and Taiwanese
Residents and other people-oriented measures will also bind
mainland China, Hong Kong and Macao together and realise
a one-hour living circle across the Pearl River Delta. The
population that can be served by Hong Kong will be a ninefold
jump from 7 million to 70 million. With a bigger market, all that
Hong Kong businesses have to do are to adjust and strengthen
themselves and adapt to the mainland market. The Group
always keeps up with the times and has seized the first-mover
advantage with online and offline measures. An aggressive
online marketing campaign has been rolled out to attract
mainland clients, who can now open account easily and conduct
online stock and futures transactions right away at anytime and
anywhere. The campaign has been well received and started a
trend.

The connection between the Chinese and Hong Kong stock
markets will be increasingly well established. For instance, the
introduction of Primary Equity Connect, Commodity Connect,
southbound Bond Connect, ETF Connect, futures contracts
on the MSCI China A Index, connections regarding fixed-
income, money market and bulk commodity products, and the
inclusion of companies with weighted voting right structure in
Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect and Shenzhen-Hong Kong
Stock Connect, together with other measures, will all boost
trading volume in Hong Kong’s financial markets. With respect
to attracting new listings, Hong Kong has topped the global
chart of fund raising amount for 6 years in the past decade.
As the foundation of the Hong Kong market solidifies, the city
will continue to be a preferred IPO destination for companies
across the world. Driven by the “New Economy” development,
several major new economy companies were listed in Hong
Kong in 2018, taking the amount of fund raised in the city to
approximately HK$300 billion. Even though no corporate giant
has been listed in Hong Kong since the start of 2019 so far, the
local IPO market is expected to remain active.
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With 25 years of operating history in Hong Kong, the Group has
a sound foundation and competitive edge, and will carry on its
proactive operating model in order to take on new challenges.
To strengthen its competitiveness and seize market share, the
Group will maintain its prudent, flexible and innovative approach
in seeking breakthrough on its existing businesses while actively
exploring new markets and new financial products.

Bright Smart’s continuous success is attributable to the
concerted and determined effort of the entire staff to provide
quality and sincere services with good value for money to the
clients. | would like to thank the directors, the management
team and all staff members for their efforts and contributions
in achieving the remarkable performance during the Year. The
Group is proud to share its success with the staff by offering
large bonuses to them. In particular, staff members with the
best performances during the Year received generous bonuses
equaling 22 months of pay. The Group wished to leverage on
such rewards to motivate the whole staff to join hands and take
the Group to new heights in the future.
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At the beginning of the Year, | laid down clear target earnings
for the Group and guided the team towards the goal. Thanks
to the close collaboration and endeavour of all staff, the Group
has achieved its outstanding objectives. Looking forward to the
next year, it has already formulated comprehensive business
development strategies and set a clear target. It is hoped that
the entire staff will develop their potential, excel themselves and
go beyond their limits again and again so as to strive for further
success. Being guided by the principles of integrity, sincerity,
equity and conscience, | will also lead Bright Smart to work its
way through obstacles, continue to fulfil its duties and do its
best to provide clients with the best services in recognition of
their continual trust and support while striving for optimal returns
for the investors.

Yip Mow Lum
Chairman

Hong Kong
19 June 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWEDN

MARKET REVIEW

For the Year under review, the stock market in Hong Kong went
from bad to worse against the backdrop of a turbulent global
stock market. Ever since the second quarter of 2018, the market
as a whole took a turn for the worse amid external volatility,
including the unending US-China trade war, the uncertainties
surrounding Brexit, the onset of an interest rate hike, the
diplomatic pressure and economic sanctions stemming from the
arrest of Meng Wanzhou, the Chief Financial Officer of Huawei,
the currency crisis in emerging markets and the downward
pressure faced by the world economy. As a result, HSI dropped
from 30,180 points on 3 April 2018 to 24,585 points on 30
October 2018, representing a decrease of 5,595 points or
18.5%, with an average daily turnover for the Year of HK$96.23
billion (2018: HK$106.16 billion), representing a plunge of 9.4%
as compared to the Prior Year. In view of all the aforementioned
external uncertainties, investors have become more cautious
and market trading is lackluster.

Thankfully, the amount of funds raised by IPOs in Hong Kong in
2018 was almost HK$286.5 billion, helping the city to reclaim
the global crown in terms of fund raising amount. Furthermore,
with the anticipation in early 2019 of an end of the US-China
trade war, HSI has risen by 3,205 points or 12% in the first
quarter of 2019 alone, representing the best performance over
the past decade. However, the index experienced significant
fluctuations as the US-China trade talks hit an impasse. On the
other hand, the economy of mainland China recorded slower but
steady growth. According to the National Bureau of Statistics
of China, the GDP of China for 2018 amounted to Renminbi
(“RMB”) 90.03 trillion, represented 16% of the world economy
and ranked second amongst all countries. China’s GDP growth
rate, which stood at 6.6% in 2018, accounted for one third
of total global economic growth in the past decade. As such,
the contribution and influence of China’s economy cannot be
understated.

In 2018, mainland China faced capital outflow and sluggish
export due to the interest rate hikes in the US as well as
the trade war. To ease the credit crunch faced by private
enterprises and restore faith in the stock market, the central
government has rolled out a number of measures to boost the
market, such as loosening reserve requirement time and again,
legalising bonds issued by private enterprises and increasing
credit available to micro and private enterprises. Furthermore,
it has implemented tax and fee reduction amounting to RMB2
trillion with effect from the second quarter of 2019 in order to
boost consumption and stimulate investment in the country.
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Being an emerging economy with rapid growth, China is
increasingly important in the international market. In mid-
2018, MSCI Index started to include A-shares and will increase
the weight of A-shares to 20% in stages starting from May
2019. This move kicked off a massive capital inflow and
boosted the A-share market. Meanwhile, the mainland has
been actively reforming and opening up its capital market. It
has not only established the STAR Market under the Shanghai
Stock Exchange to attract high-end technology and emerging
enterprises, but has also spurred the development of the
Greater Bay Area. Given the rapid advancement of this national
policy, Hong Kong, being an important part of the Greater Bay
Area, will have closer tie with the mainland, and its connections
with the mainland financial market will be tightened. For
instance, the “insurance connect” initiative that allows cross-
border transactions of a wide range of financial products will be
piloted in the Greater Bay Area with the aim of catering to the
outbound investment needs of the residents and institutions
inside the area. Although Hong Kong has the established
systems, comprehensive regulations and a professional
workforce for being an international financial centre, it has to
strengthen its offshore RMB business, asset management and
risk management in order to maintain its pivotal role in the
region and be ready for the opportunities brought by China’s
globalisation.

OPERATIONAL RESULTS

During the Year, the Group recorded a revenue of HK$830.3
million (2018: HK$944.4 million), representing a decrease of
12.1% as compared to that for the Prior Year. Profit for the Year
was HK$440.9 million (2018: HK$516.1 million), representing
a decrease of 14.6% as compared to that for the Prior Year.
Total comprehensive income attributable to equity shareholders
amounted to HK$441.1 million (2018: HK$518.3 million),
representing a decrease of 14.9% as compared to that for
the Prior Year. Basic earnings per share and diluted earnings
per share were 25.98 HK cents (2018: 30.41 HK cents). The
board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) proposed the
payment of a final dividend of 7.80 HK cents (2018: 9.10 HK
cents) per share for the Year.
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The decrease in the Group’s revenue during the Year was mainly
due to a significant drop in market turnover. According to the
statistics provided by Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited, the average daily turnover of the Stock Exchange for
the Year was approximately HK$96.23 billion, representing
a drop of 9.4% as compared with approximately HK$106.16
billion for the Prior Year. In addition, in order to support the
Group’s proactive expansion and development strategy, the
Group invested generously in the development of two one-
stop mobile trading platform applications (“APP(s)”), namely BS
Securities (Baobao) and BS Futures (Doudou) to optimise its
trading platforms and services, undertook expansion exercises
in the mainland market, and recruited a large team of talents
during the Year. The Group also upgraded its network security
infrastructure to strengthen the protection of its clients’ interests
and be well-prepared for another robust growth in turnover in
the future.
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TOTAL NUMBER OF CLIENT ACCOUNTS
AND ASSETS

Given the downward pressure faced by the world economy
as well as a whole of external uncertainties, productivity,
consumption power and enthusiasm for investment of the
public have been waning, which put a great deal of stress on
the market. Nevertheless, having gone through thick and thin
all these years, the Group has maintained its strategy of active
expansion regardless of bull or bear markets. As at the end of
March 2019, the Group had a total of 22 business locations
including the headquarters in Central and various branches,
covering all of the core districts in Hong Kong. Most of these
locations open seven days a week, which is a breakthrough
in the industry. Moreover, adhering to the customer-oriented
principle as always, the Group has been a first mover in the
securities industry by launching a Bright Smart Mobile Teaching
Centre that travels around Hong Kong Island, Kowloon and New
Territories. Such centre improved customer service quality and
offered convenience to all customers. The Group’s proactive
expansion successfully led to a steady growth in the total
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number of client accounts. During the year, the number of new =+ —H8 : 45478 T) © FE15.7% °
accounts (after deducting the number of client accounts closed)
reached 34,601. As a result, the total number of client accounts
increased to 283,181, representing an increase of 13.9% as
compared to 248,580 as at 31 March 2018. As at 31 March
2019, client assets (including cash, stocks and margin deposits)
decreased by 15.7% to approximately HK$46.1 billion (31 March
2018: approximately HK$54.7 billion).
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REVENUE A

During the Year, the Group recorded a revenue of HK$830.3 AE[E  NEBE U A 21583038 B H L(=
million (2018: HK$944.4 million), representing a decrease of T —\&E Q44 4FEBT) B EEETK
12.1% as compared to that for the Prior Year. A summary of 12.1% o NEE K XK H 2 W= 2 &5 0
revenue from the business segments of the Group is set out | :

below:

Year ended 31 March
BZ=HF=1+-HLFE

2019 2018
—E—hE —E-N\F
Proportion Proportion
of total of total  Increment/
revenue revenue (decrement)
14U A BB A #m/
Z LBl 2 L R 4)
HK$’000
THER
Revenue from: RKENATEEZHA :
— Securities brokerage — BELL 262,004 31.5% 349,429 37.0% (25.0%)
— Hong Kong futures and ~ — &FBHE R HELLE
options brokerage 125,158 15.1% 101,913 10.8% 22.8%
— Global futures brokerage — RIKHIELL 86,240 10.4% 56,275 6.0% 53.2%
— Bullion trading —EcBRS 10,489 1.3% 19,086 2.0% (45.0%)
— Leveraged foreign —BERAINER S
exchange trading 655 0.1% — - =
— Stock option brokerage =~ — BWZEHRE L4 12,520 1.5% 15,013 1.6% (16.6%)
— IPO brokerage —BERAPAHBEERL 10,366 1.2% 13,386 1.4% (22.6%)
Interest income from IPO BRAHAEERE
financing B WA 21,411 2.6% 29,280 3.1% (26.9%)
Interest income from margin & & & F 28 W A
financing 301,462 36.3% 360,058 38.1% (16.3%)

830,305 100.0% 944,440 100.0% (12.1%)

Revenue from Main Businesses
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I.  Securities brokerage I. JHLEL
HKEX recorded a total transaction amount of HK$23,576.2 BRXRARAFEZHERNT R
billion (2018: HK$26,010.3 billion) for the Year, 235,762 B B L - B T KI4%(ZF
representing a year-on-year decrease of 9.4%. The — N\ :260,103EH L) - BRARX S
decrease in the Group’s revenue was directly due to the ZMEESAEERETY®  A£EEF
drop in the transaction amount of Hong Kong stocks. As (AR BAes B ASFE6e208EET(Z
such, the Group’s commission income from securities T—N\F 3494B BB L) HBERA
brokerage amounted to HK$262.0 million (2018: HK$349.4 31.5% (ZF— N\ :37.0%) ' REFE
million), representing a decrease of 25.0% as compared T #25.0% °
to that for the Prior Year and accounted for 31.5% (2018:
37.0%) of the total revenue.
Commission Income from Securities Transaction Amount of the
%'g'}g";n Brokerage of the Group iﬁ;j'ﬂ_‘;n Hong Kong Stock Market
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II. Hong Kong futures and options brokerage

II. EEHERBERLSLE

As investors flocked to the futures market in view of the HRAREMERALRY  KEEERKHE

fluctuations in the stock market, trading in the futures and

mg FHHMERAEDTEIRTBE

options market surged, and 167.2 million (2018: 124.2 i BEHERGERARZTEERS

million) derivative contracts traded on Hong Kong Futures
Exchange Limited (“HKFE”) were entered into during the
year, representing an increase of 34.6%. The Group’s
Hong Kong futures and options brokerage segment
recorded commission income for the Year of HK$125.2
million (2018: HK$101.9 million), representing an increase

FAHNRRREEI167T2EER(ZZT—N
F 1 1242HEK) » EFAB46% - AEH
AEEHSEEHERHRE LA
ANE122B BB L(ZZE—NF 1 101.9
BEAL) BREFE LF228% 1H#
WA151% (ZF—/\F :10.8%) °

of 22.8% as compared to that for the Prior Year and
accounted for 15.1% (2018: 10.8%) of the total revenue.

Commission Income from Hong Kong
Futures and Options Brokerage of the Group
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II1. Global futures brokerage

Iv.

VI

34

Hong Kong’s investment market continued to be active
and diversified, driving investors’ interests in investing in
the global market. For the Year, the commission income
from global futures brokerage was HK$86.2 million (2018:
HK$56.3 million), representing a significant increase
of 563.2% as compared to that for the Prior Year and
accounted for 10.4% (2018: 6.0%) of the total revenue.

Bullion trading

For the Year, the Group’s bullion trading income was
HK$10.5 million (2018: HK$19.1 million), representing a
decrease of 45.0% as compared to that for the Prior Year
and accounted for 1.3% (2018: 2.0%) of the total revenue.

Leveraged foreign exchange trading

During the Year, the Group started the leveraged foreign
exchange trading business. The income from this business
was HK$655,000, accounting for 0.1% of the total
revenue. The Group believes that the interest of investors
in diversified financial investment products is growing.
Therefore, the Group will actively identify business
opportunities to expand into more business lines and
provide more comprehensive investment instruments to
the investors.

Stock options brokerage

The Group recorded a commission income from stock
options brokerage of HK$12.5 million (2018: HK$15.0
million) during the Year, representing a decrease of 16.6%
as compared to that for the Prior Year and accounted for
1.5% (2018: 1.6%) of the total revenue. Stock options are
highly leveraged investment products. The Group closely
monitors the margin levels maintained in stock option
accounts and adjusts them according to market conditions
in order to ensure proper risk control.

. ERPELKL
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VII. IPO brokerage and IPO financing

The Group recorded a commission income from IPO
brokerage for the Year of HK$10.4 million (2018: HK$13.4
million), representing a decrease of 22.6% year-on-year.
Accordingly, interest income from IPO financing also
decreased by 26.9% to HK$21.4 million (2018: HK$29.3
million), accounted for 2.6% (2018: 3.1%) of the total
revenue.

VIII. Margin financing

The average daily margin financing provided by the Group
during the Year decreased by 26.5% to HK$6.91 billion
(2018: HK$9.40 billion). The Group’s interest income from
margin financing for the Year was HK$301.5 million (2018:
HK$360.1 million), representing a decrease of 16.3% as
compared to that for the Prior Year and accounted for
36.3% (2018: 38.1%) of the total revenue. The Group
implements effective credit control procedures and did not
have any bad debts in the last few years.

LOSS FROM INVESTMENT

To enhance its financial performance, the Group held Hong
Kong-listed securities and futures contracts as investment
during the Year. As at 31 March 2019, the carrying amount
of the investments in stock and futures was HK$8.7 million
(2018: HK$61.4 million), which was reclassified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss from available-for-sale
investments and held for trading investments in the consolidated
statement of financial position in 2018 due to the initial adoption
of HKFRS 9. For the Year, loss from investment in financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss amounted to HK$5.0
million (2018: gain of HK$13.3 million).
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OPERATING EXPENSES AND NET PROFIT KREBFZIRARN=E
MARGIN

Attributable to the Group’s continuous effective cost control, ANEE —EBHEEEHKARN  XFELLHITE
operating expenses for the Year decreased by 2.8% to HE T#2.8% ' A5389FBBT(=ZZT— N\
HK$538.9 million (2018: HK$554.5 million) as compared to that 4 : 55458 & T) : [ - 28 & [F 45 F) & &7
for the Prior Year. Meanwhile, the net profit margin of the Group A FEES3.1% (ZZE — /\F : 54.6%) °
dipped to 53.1% (2018: 54.6%).
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A breakdown of operating expenses is as follows:

and Analysis

KERBAAMT

Increment/
(decrement)

80, (R 2)

2019
—E-hE

HK$’000 %
Fr

Staff costs 8 T A 136,333 138,937 (1.9%)
Amortisation and depreciation BRI E 18,839 18,768 0.4%
Finance costs B 7 B AR 140,600 166,980 (15.8%)
Advertising and promotion BEREBHAX

expenses 7,983 8,739 (8.7%)
Auditors’ remuneration % 2R B & 1,657 1,619 2.3%
Commission, handling and KueBe FEEBREER

settlement expenses ZH 83,103 77,662 7.0%
Information and communication BARBARX

expenses 38,840 32,619 19.1%
Rental, rates and building e ZWMhEFEEE

management fees 71,116 65,038 9.3%
Legal and professional fees ERREXEER 3,921 3,486 12.5%
Miscellaneous expenses HIE R 36,484 40,661 (10.3%)

538,876 554,509 (2.8%)

FUTURE PLANS xR EHE

In view of the downward pressure faced by the world economy,
coupled with the US-China trade war, which has lasted for a
year by now, and the stalemate over Brexit, the global financial
market is fluctuating violently, investors are increasingly
cautious in making investment, and trading in the market is
sluggish. Nevertheless, the Group has maintained its strategy
of active expansion regardless of bull or bear markets. It has
been constantly expanding its workforce in order to improve
its service and expand its network of 22 headquarters and
branches. It will continue to identify sites at prime location with
heavy traffic for new branches, and will also hold regular job
fairs to attract talents with the aim of securing high calibre staff
members according to its needs during business expansion
as well as taking up the responsibility to nurture the next
generation of elites for the industry. At the same time, the Group
actively organises all kinds of investment seminars to educate
investors. For example, the Group partnered with renowned
overseas stock exchanges, financial institutions and leading
experts to provide the clients with in-depth information about
financial products and economic trends across the world so as
to broaden their investment choices. Furthermore, the Group
is always keen on sharing happiness with its clients. It invited
more than 10,000 clients to watch Hollywood blockbusters in
two Movie Ticket Giveaway by Bright Smart activities in October
2018 and the first quarter of 2019, respectively, and received
wide acclaim. Looking forward, the Group will continue to adopt
different promotional and marketing strategies with a view to
grasping all valuable business opportunities and building up
itself.

BIBHEREBMERLA | —T—/)/\/ —NEEFER

EREEFERRBENERE  NMEPXES
BESCNEA—F  RERBIEFDRRE
ERA CRREMHBHRES  REEA®M
REESEER SAMIBBRAREG - AF
BT ORNEY - PREUVE S 7T A R RS
FRMBIT R D 1TiE22M - A RFFERBE AL
BRAT  BEBUAARDITRERRARBEER -
AEBARRGEBYCHBUEEVMARE
EHHUFARST AREEREBERTE -
EHERBRERMNESAT KBUEMRES
Sh o BUBBER T —RBRRCA - EiLR
B SETESERSBEREBEEHRETRES
HE  BREZFANZNXIZIN BEBERX
TEREEREAE EEPEMNEZIRER
Em RRREEESINRRE - #ET A A&
BREEMNRERRA - I AEE-—AETR
L DRHIR_F-NFT+AR-FT-—NFEF
BRBTFRREE  AFA-—BREFM
EREBAERN  REZMANRZEL - KK
AEBEGEB NS TTENE I R T I5RE - &
VEESERZSHE FEERBAGSLX -

37



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWEDN

Develop More Global Financial Products to Meet
Market Demand

The Group has thoroughly studied consumers’ behaviour and
investment trend according to customer data and survey. In
view of the rising attention to and concern about global financial
products and the growing interest in investments therein,
the Group connects its online securities and futures trading
platforms as well as the newly launched mobile trading apps,
namely BS Securities (Baobao) and BS Futures (Doudou),
to markets around the world, provides comprehensive and
professional brokerage services, and brings together Hong
Kong stocks, US stocks, Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect
A shares, Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect A shares, China
B shares, Japanese stocks, Taiwanese stocks, Singaporean
stocks, Australian stocks, UK stocks, Hong Kong futures, Hang
Seng Index options, Hong Kong stock options, Dow Jones
Futures, A50 Futures, foreign exchange futures, gold futures,
oil futures, copper futures, HKEX's CNH Gold Futures, HKEX’s
USD Gold Futures, leveraged foreign exchange products, iron
ore futures, IPO share subscription and margin financing, so as
to cater for the needs of different clients. The Group believes
that investors’ interest in global financial products is growing.
Therefore, it will continue to develop more global financial
products to meet market demand.

Improve Service Quality and Enhance Trading
Experience for Clients

The Group is fully aware of the investors’ needs for financial
technologies and has therefore actively engaged in digitalising
investment services. In 2018, it made huge investments in and
spent half a year of time to develop two mobile trading apps,
namely BS Securities (Baobao) and BS Futures (Doudou).
They are equipped with Al 3.0 features (such as behavioural
authentication, news tracking and personalised portfolio
monitoring) and a user-friendly interface that allow users to open
accounts swiftly. With the Group’s one-stop electronic trading
platforms, the clients can fulfil all their investment needs, trade
global financial products and read global financial news right
away at anytime and anywhere through one mobile app. In the
future, the Group will take further steps to provide clients with
better services, develop more global financial products, diversify
its business, and invest more resources in the refinement of its
online trading platforms with the aim of further strengthening its
core competitiveness and cementing its industry prominence.
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Commit itself to Enhancing Security of Online
Transactions

In order to offer a more convenient and stable online trading
platform, the Group has also made huge investment in
improving its trading system, relocated its central computer
system to the centralised data centre of HKEX in Tseung Kwan
O, conducted large-scale tests on all transaction systems,
including regular simulated tests involving a trading volume
exceeding five times of the existing volume on HKEX, as well as
continuously enhanced the efficiency and stability of the existing
securities and futures trading platforms. As for network security,
the Group has implemented the “dual password” security
measure and authentication by which two sets of passwords
are required for logging into the trading system and conducting
transaction in order to provide adequate security to online
transactions. Furthermore, email notifications are delivered
instantly to notify the clients of any login or any transaction
conducted electronically through their accounts. In addition, the
Group also closely monitors and counteracts any fake website
pretending to be related to it. If any such website is identified,
the Group will notify the clients and take legal actions against
the website in order to prevent unnecessary loss from its clients.

The Group invested substantial resources to enhance the
speed and capacity of its online trading system for dealing
with transactions in order to meet clients’ needs and improve
service quality. In recognition of its outstanding results in
the development of the Baobao and Doudou apps, it won
the award of Outstanding Securities Trading Mobile APP by
The Chamber of Hong Kong Computer Industry and Metro
Broadcast, the Best Securities Mobile Apps in Greater China
Award by the Metro Daily and METRO PROSPERITY as well as
the Outstanding Stock and Futures Trading App Development
award in the 19th Capital Outstanding Enterprise Awards
granted by the CAPITAL, demonstrating the popularity of the
Group’s online trading system amongst the clients, the industry
and the media for its speed, stability, security and reliability. The
Group will pay close attention to the latest market developments
and study the need and room for capacity expansion. It will
also boost education on the security of online transactions for
its clients and enhance their risk awareness and risk prevention
skills.
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Tap into Mainland Market

The mainland has been actively reforming and opening up its
capital market and attempting globalisation in recent years
With a huge population, it enjoys enormous room for growth
in terms of consumption, production and investment capacity.
Furthermore, the mainland may abolish the shareholding
restriction on Hong Kong-based securities institutions entering
the mainland market so that Hong Kong investors may
wholly own mainland securities firms. Therefore, the Group is
determined to tap into the mainland market which has great
potential and prospects. To do so, the Group will not only recruit
talents interested in working in the securities market, but also
further raise its brand awareness and image, and establish
a unique brand image based on its high quality and cost-
performance ratio in the mainland through online and offline
promotional and marketing strategies.
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CONCLUSION

The Group firmly believes that its success hinges on
understanding clients’ needs. During the Year, the Group played
safe, built up its existing strength and focused on customer
services. As such, it strived to develop new one-stop mobile
trading platforms while bolstering its hardware support. It
has also introduced two smart and eye-catching mascots,
namely Baobao and Doudou, which represent the Group’s high
quality and value and embody its brand image, culture and
competitiveness. The Group’s accomplishments are attributable
to the continuous support, trust and recognition of its clients,
who have been supporting the Group as they have always done.
In the future, the Group will provide more high quality customer
services and develop more highly secured and convenient
trading platforms so as to appreciate the long-term support
from its clients. At the same time, the Group will strengthen
its existing competitive edges, diversify its businesses, recruit
professional talents and seize every opportunity in order to
increase the Group’s operational efficiency and bring better
returns to the shareholders.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s operations were financed by shareholders’ equity,
cash generated from operation and bank borrowings.

The Group maintains sufficient liquidity with total bank deposits,
bank balances and cash amounting to HK$401.3 million as at
31 March 2019 (2018: HK$511.9 million). The Group had bank
borrowings of HK$3,445.5 million as at 31 March 2019 (2018:
HK$8,165.9 million) which bore interest primarily at floating rate.
The bank borrowings were primarily collateralised by its margin
clients’ securities pledged to the Group. As at 31 March 2019,
unutilised banking facilities amounted to HK$17,277.3 million
(2018: HK$10,020.1 million). The Group’'s gearing ratio (total
bank borrowings divided by the total shareholders’ equity) was
117.9% (2018: 309.7%). As at 31 March 2019, the net current
assets of the Group increased by 15.4% to HK$2,797.4 million
(2018: HK$2,423.4 million). As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s
current ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) was 1.6
times (2018: 1.2 times).
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The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in
economic conditions. For the licensed subsidiaries, the Group
ensures that each of the subsidiaries maintains a liquidity level
adequate to support the level of activities with a sufficient buffer
to accommodate increases in liquidity requirements arising
from potential increases in the level of business activities.
During the Year, all the licensed subsidiaries complied with the
liquidity requirements under the Securities and Futures (Financial
Resources) Rules (“FRR”).

CHARGES ON ASSETS

No asset of the Group was subject to any charge as at 31
March 2019 and 2018.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at the end of the reporting period, corporate guarantees
provided by the Company in respect of banking facilities
granted by authorised institutions to its subsidiaries engaging
in securities and futures broking amounted to HK$15,953.3
million (2018: HK$14,960.0 million). As at 31 March 2019, the
subsidiaries of the Company have utilised HK$3,040.5 million of
these aggregate banking facilities (2018: HK$6,434.9 million).

As at the end of the reporting period, the directors did not
consider that any claim would be made against the Group under
any of the guarantees.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS AND
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The operating lease commitments as at 31 March 2019 were
approximately HK$198.4 million (2018: HK$70.7 million). The
capital commitments as at 31 March 2019 were approximately
HK$3.4 million (2018: HK$4.5 million).
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EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had a work force of 283
employees (2018: 298 employees). Staff costs, excluding
Directors’ emoluments, amounted to approximately HK$120.1
million for the Year (2018: HK$125.1 million). The Group’s
remuneration policy aims to offer competitive remuneration
packages to recruit, retain and motivate competent employees.
The Group believes that the remuneration packages are
reasonable and competitive and in line with market trends.
The Group has put in place a share option scheme and a
bonus scheme for its executives and employees as a measure
to provide a competitive remuneration package for the
Group’s long- term growth and development. The Group also
provides appropriate training and development programs to
its employees to enhance the staff's work ability and personal
effectiveness.

SIGNIFICANT ACQUISITION AND
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the Year, the Group did not make any significant
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries.

LITIGATION

As at 31 March 2019 and up to the date of this announcement,
the Group has not been involved in any litigation of significance.
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RISK MANAGEMENT
Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to amounts due
from clients, brokers and clearing houses. The management
has a credit policy in place and the exposure to the credit risk is
monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of amounts due from clients, individual evaluations
are performed on all clients (including cash and margin clients)
based on the underlying collateral. Cash clients are required
to place deposits as prescribed in the Group’s policy before
execution of any purchase transactions. Receivables due from
cash clients are due within the settlement period commonly
adopted in the relevant market practices, which is usually within
a few days from the trade date. Because accounts receivable
from cash clients relate to a wide range of customers for
whom there was no recent history of default, there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are considered fully recoverable, and the prescribed deposit
requirements and the short settlement period involved, the
credit risk arising from the amounts due from cash clients is
considered low. The Group normally obtains liquid securities
and/or cash deposits as collateral for providing financing to
its cash and margin clients and has policy to manage these
exposures on a fair value basis. Margin loans due from margin
clients are repayable on demand. For commodities and
futures brokerage, an initial margin is required prior to opening
transaction. Market conditions and adequacy of securities
collateral and margin deposits of each cash account, margin
account and futures account are monitored by the management
on a daily basis. Margin calls and forced liquidation are made
where necessary.

In respect of amounts receivable from brokers and clearing
houses, credit risks are considered low as the Group normally
enters into transactions with brokers and clearing houses which
are registered with regulatory bodies and enjoy sound reputation
in the industry.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk as
credits are granted to a large population of clients.

The Group does not provide any other guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.
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Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for
their own cash management, including the raising of loans to
cover expected cash demands, and to ensure compliance with
FRR. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
long term.

Interest rate risk

The Group charges interest on its margin clients and cash
clients with outstanding loan amounts on the basis of its cost of
funding plus a mark-up. Financial assets (such as margin loans
and deposits with banks) and financial liabilities (such as bank
loans) are primarily at floating rates. The Group’s income and
operating cash flows are not subject to significant interest rate
risk.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily arising from
financial instruments that are denominated in United States
dollars (“USD”), Renminbi (“RMB”), Singapore dollars (“SGD”),
Japanese Yen (“JPY”), Australian dollars (“AUD”) and British
pound (“GBP”). As the Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”) is pegged
to the USD, the Group considers the risk of movements in
exchange rates between the HKD and the USD as insignificant.
In respect of financial instruments denominated in other
currencies, the Group ensures that the net exposure is kept at
an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies at
spot rates where necessary to address short-term imbalances.
The management monitors all the foreign currency positions on
a daily basis.
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Price risk

The Group is exposed to price changes arising from listed equity
investments, futures contracts classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and accounts receivable.

The Group’s equity investments are listed on HKEX while
investment in futures contracts are traded on HKFE. Listed
investments held in the financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss portfolio have been chosen based on their
longer term growth potential and are monitored regularly for
performance against expectations.

Accounts receivable from margin, cash and IPO clients expose
the Group to price risk as their fair value is made with reference
to the fair value of collaterals.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. YIP Mow Lum
Chairman & Executive Director

(Appointed as a director on 4 August 2009 and elected as the
chairman on 4 August 2010)

Aged 67, is the founder, the Chairman of the Board, an
Executive Director and the controlling shareholder of the
Company. Mr. Yip is also the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee, a member of the Remuneration Committee and Risk
Management Committee of the Company. He is responsible for
the formulation of corporate strategies, overseeing operations
and the overall steering of the Group’s management. Mr. Yip
has solid experience in brokerage industry and investment and
has over 20 years’ management experience in securities and
futures brokerage. He is a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Group. Mr. Yip is a responsible officer recognized by the
Securities & Futures Commission of Hong Kong (“SFC”) for
engaging in the Type 2 (dealing in futures contracts) regulated
activity. He is the sole director of New Charming Holdings
Limited, the controlling shareholder of the Company and the
uncle of Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson, one of the Executive
Directors of the Company.
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Mr. HUI Yik Bun
Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer

(Appointed as a director and Co-Chief Executive Officer on 5
October 2015 and re-designated as Chief Executive Officer on
31 May 2016)

Aged 45, is an Executive Director and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. He is responsible for overall business
development, operations and management of the Group. He
is also a member of the Risk Management Committee and
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. He has over
20 years of experience in securities and futures businesses,
and has worked in a number of securities firms. Mr. Hui
has expertise in brokerage operations, sales management
and market operations of securities and futures businesses,
particularly with over 10 years of experience in frontline branch
management. Mr. Hui is also a responsible officer recognized by
the Securities and Futures Commission for engaging in the Type
1 (dealing in securities), Type 2 (dealing in futures contracts),
Type 4 (advising on securities), Type 5 (advising on futures
contracts), Type 7 (providing automated trading services) and
Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities.
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Mr. CHAN Wing Shing, Wilson
Executive Director & Dealing Director
(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 54, is an Executive Director of the Company and the
Dealing Director of the Group in charge of the daily dealing
operations of securities and futures businesses. Mr. Chan is also
a director of Bright Smart Securities International (H.K.) Limited
and Bright Smart Futures & Commodities Company Limited.
He has over 19 years’ experience in securities and futures
businesses and is a responsible officer recognized by the SFC
for engaging in the Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 2 (dealing
in futures contracts), Type 4 (advising on securities), Type 5
(advising on futures contracts), Type 7 (providing automated
trading services) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated
activities. Mr. Chan is the nephew of Mr. Yip, the founder, the
Chairman of the Board and the controlling shareholder of the
Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. YU Yun Kong
Independent Non-executive Director
(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 53, is an Independent Non-executive Director, the
chairman of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
and the Risk Management Committee as well as a member
of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Yu is a
practising certified public accountant with over 20 years’
experience in public accounting practice. He is a fellow member
of both the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and also
an associate member of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.
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Mr. SZETO Wai Sun
Independent Non-executive Director
(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 60, is an Independent Non-executive Director, a member
of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Risk Management Committee
of the Company. Mr. Szeto holds a Bachelor’s Degree in
Laws (Hons) and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from
The University of Hong Kong, and obtained the Professional
Certificate in Chinese Civil & Commercial Law, a course jointly
organised by Tsinghua University in the PRC and the School
of Professional and Continuing Education of The University
of Hong Kong in 2002. He also holds a Professional Diploma
for the Financial Times Non-Executive Director issued in May
2015, and is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
Mr. Szeto was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1985
and worked in a number of law firms in Hong Kong including
Edmund Cheung & Co. and Y.T. Chan & Co., before founding
his own firm Sun Lawyers (formerly known as W.S. Szeto &
Lee, Solicitors) in 2003. He remains the Senior Partner of Sun
Lawyers and is a practicing Notary Public in Hong Kong. He is
also an independent non-executive director of Target Insurance
(Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 6161), a company listed on the
Main Board of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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Mr. LING Kwok Fai, Joseph
Independent Non-executive Director
(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 63, is an Independent Non-executive Director, a member
of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and Risk Management Committee
of the Company. Mr. Ling has over 20 years’ experience in
accounting, finance and administration and has been a director
and the company secretary of a charitable organisation since
2004. Mr. Ling joined Midland Realty (Holdings) Limited in 1990
and was the executive director when he left the company in
1997. Prior to that, he was a controller of Hong Kong Telephone
Company Limited and has also worked at Chase Manhattan
Bank and the First National Bank of Boston in accounting field.
Mr. Ling is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute
of Company Secretaries, holding Chartered Secretary and
Chartered Governance Professional dual designations.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. YIP Mow Lum

(Biographical details are set out on page 47)
Mr. HUI Yik Bun

(Biographical details are set out on page 48)
Mr. CHAN Wing Shing, Wilson

(Biographical details are set out on page 49)
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Ms. YIP Wing Yan, Jacquelyn
Assistant to Chairman
(Joined the Group in July 2018)

Aged 38, is the Assistant to Chairman of the Group with the
responsibilities for assisting the Chairman of the Board to
oversee the Group’s daily internal operation and devising
key strategies for future development plan. Lead, coordinate
and give advices to various departments to provide optimum
supports and quality services. She holds a Bachelor’s Degree
in Business Administration (major in Accountancy) from City
University of Hong Kong. Ms. Yip is the daughter of Mr. Yip,
the founder, the Chairman of the Board and the controlling
shareholder of the Company and the cousin of Mr. Chan Wing
Shing, Wilson, one of the Executive Directors of the Company.
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Ms. LI Wan Mei
Chief Financial Officer
(Joined the Group in November 2008)

Aged 35, is the Chief Financial Officer in charge of the overall
financial and accounting management of the Group. Ms. Li has
over 10 years’ accounting experience, including three years’
experience gained in PricewaterhouseCoopers. She holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration from the Lingnan
University and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. CHAN Kwan Pak

(February 2011-May 2012; re-appointed in October 2012)

Aged 62, is a member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators and Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries, holding dual designations of Chartered Secretary
and Chartered Governance Professional. He is also a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Chan has extensive experience in company
secretarial practices in respect of listed companies.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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SCOPE AND PERIOD OF REPORTING

A major trend for corporate development, sustainability has
become a key topic that draws the attention of stakeholders.
Policies set out in this report have been prepared with
the participation of and upon the consideration by major
stakeholders including substantial shareholders, directors, the
management and employees to address future challenges.

To achieve sustainability, the Group strives to promote
environmental protection, instilling corporate social
responsibilities to its business and management strategies
and maintaining a culture of sound governance. This report
covers a reporting period from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019.
Disclosure are made primarily under the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to
the Rules Governing of the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Main Board Listing
Rules”), to inform stakeholders of the Group’s performance in
environmental, social and governance terms.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE POLICIES

The Group’s environmental, social and governance policies are
based on five basic principles set out below:

° To enhance corporate value and focus on shareholders’
return;

° To foster financial transparency and boost investors’
confidence;

° To cater to customers’ needs and protect customers’
interests;

° To develop employees and safeguard employees’
interests; and

° To support environmental protection and seek to give back
to the community.
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Environmental
Policies on environment and energy

Environmental protection and energy conservation form
an important part of our corporate social responsibilities.
Apart from full compliance with laws and regulations
relating to environmental protection, the Group also seeks
to prevent pollution, conserve energy and reduce emission,
with a view to achieving sustainability in the course of its
day-to-day operations.

Use of resources

Operating in the financial services sector, the Group
upholds energy conservation and advocates the best
use of resources. Disclosures on emissions and use of
resources primarily relate to the use of electricity, water
and paper in its head office and branch offices, as well
as the greenhouse gas emissions in the course of petrol
consumption by vehicles of the Company.
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Environment and natural resources

1.

56

Greenhouse gases

Scope of greenhouse
gas emissions

Sources of emissions

BRERRXAER

1.

REAR

Emissions as a
percentage of
total emission

Volume of
emissions (in
tonnes of COe)

BB

(LAWE = S| 1L B BHRE
BMEREHEREE B HUR EE3t) 1k
Scope 1
Direct emissions Consumption of petrol by the 70.5 4.6%

Group'’s fleet of vehicles

&7 E1
BEHEN N BB KT hEE
Scope 2
Indirect emissions Purchase and use of electricity 1,373.9 90.1%
gE2
fE % BEL BBRE
Scope 3
Other indirect emissions Consumption of paper 81.4 5.3%
& E3
H b B HE R E R
Total
#E 1,525.8 100.0%

During the reporting period, a total of 1,525.8 tonnes
of COze, which mainly comprises carbon dioxide,
methane and nitrous oxide, were emitted from the
Group’s operations as greenhouse gas emissions.

Electricity

During the reporting period, the Group consumed
1,973,209 kilowatt-hours of electricity. Measures
were taken for energy conservation, including the
purchase of energy-saving office equipment and
appliances, such as the use of LED lights and energy-
saving light bulbs; setting the default mode of printers
and computers at energy-saving; encouraging
switching off computers, air-conditioners and
illumination systems during non-office hours
or periods of extended away; and ongoing
improvements to equipment including illumination
and air-conditioning systems to uplift the overall
energy efficiency.
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Water

During the reporting period, the Group consumed
approximately 1,669 cubic metres of water. As
part of the water usage fee was included in the
management fee paid to landlord, full data on water
consumption are not available. The Group also
encourages saving on water use among employees.

Petrol

During the reporting period, the Group consumed
26,191 litres of petrol in its vehicles, representing
emission of 70.5 tonnes of CO,e in aggregate.
In purchasing its vehicles, the Group takes
environmental protection and energy efficiency into
due consideration.

Hazardous wastes and packaging materials

No hazardous wastes or packaging materials are
produced from the business operations of the Group.
In selecting suppliers or cooperation partners, the
Group takes into consideration, among others, their
environmental and energy policies, to maximize
environmental protection and minimize pollution.

Non-hazardous wastes

Non-hazardous wastes produced from the operations
of the Group primarily comprise paper used in offices,
which amounted to a total of approximately 17.0
tonnes of paper and in turn 81.4 tonnes of COZe
emission during the reporting period. To minimize
paper consumption, a number of measures are in
place, including measures to encourage setting
double-sided printing as the default mode and reuse
of paper and so forth.

In recent years, the Group has sought for a paperless
working environment by adopting electronic means
for internal dissemination of information, such as
payroll notices, circulars, memoranda and so forth.
This has saved the use of space, facilitated the
sharing of information on our intranet, and cut down
on the use of paper, and in turn augmented efficiency
in our day-to-day operations.
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Further, digitized services including electronic
statements, account opening through mobile apps
and account opening through the internet have been
made available. We also use electronic mails and
messaging tools in disseminating latest promotional
materials to our customers.

We also recommend shareholders to access
information including HKEx announcements and
shareholders’ correspondences via the internet.
The policies for a paperless workplace contribute
to environmental protection as well as saving on
operating expenses.

Measures for green offices

To produce less wastes and recycle resources,
suppliers are regularly arranged to collect used
printing cartridges and toners for recycling purpose,
while recycling bins are placed at its head and branch
offices for collecting used paper.

Social

Employment and labour practices

Employment

The Group cares about the health and well-being
of its employees. All employees are entitled to life
insurance, discretionary bonus, medical benefits,
paid annual leaves, paid sick leaves, educational
subsidies, examination subsidies and so forth.
Details are set out in a staff handbook to ensure that
employees fully understand their rights and duties.
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Health and safety

The Group provides a safe and healthy workplace for
its employees in compliance with the Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance in Hong Kong.

We care about the physical and mental health of
each and every one of our employees, with frequent
production of posters to remind its employees of
occupational safety and health.

Development and training

The Group acknowledges that employees are
the most important assets of the Company. To
maintain its leading position in the vibrant and
versatile financial market, the Group encourages
and subsidizes employees at different job grades to
enroll and/or participate in development or training
courses in support of their career and professional
development.

Trainings in preparation for sitting qualification
examinations for securities and futures practitioners,
continuing professional training and customer
services training are offered to new hires at the
Group.

Labour standards

Recruitment are conducted by the human resources
department of the Group according to the
Employment Ordinance in Hong Kong. Personal data
collected in the course of recruitment are only used
for selecting suitable candidates. Further, employees’
background information are verified in detail to
ensure that no illegal workers, compulsory labour or
child labour are hired.
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Operating practices

Supply chain management

The Group attaches great importance to the
mutually beneficial and long-term relationship with
its suppliers. In its procurement policies, the Group
adheres to the principle of “cost effectiveness”, under
which high-quality customer services are ensured
while costs are minimized. Different departments stay
in good communication with its suppliers, conduct
review and checking processes from time and
time. In making decisions for procurement, factors
including historical price quotations, product offering,
service offering, performance and environmental
and social policies by suppliers are all taken into
consideration, so that suppliers adhering to similar
notions and offering reasonable prices are selected.

Product responsibility

Internal control and compliance procedures are
in place to ensure compliance with all relevant
laws and regulations by the Group’s frontline staff
members. The Group also provides relevant trainings
to its employees, thereby ensuring that employees
apprehend the nature and risks underlying financial
services and that they are equipped with professional
knowledge sufficient for them to provide the
most suitable advice to their customers under all
circumstances.

Customer opinions/complaints

With clear black-and-white procedures within the
Group, all disputes and complaints are investigated
and resolved in an impartial and rapid manner.
General complaints are dealt with by the customer
services department, which replies accordingly
to the respective customers. Compliance-related
complaints are dealt with independently by the
compliance department, which replies accordingly
to the respective customers and/or relevant law
enforcement bodies.
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Laws and regulations

The Group has obtained all licences, qualifications
and permits required of its business operations. The
compliance department is responsible for ensuring
that business operations comply with laws and
regulations. Updates on relevant laws and regulations
are notified to relevant operating units and employees
from time to time. During the Year, there had been no
violation of any laws or regulations on the part of the
Group that would have or would likely have material
adverse effect on the Group.

Privacy of personal data

For the protection of privacy in respect of personal
data, the Group has developed its policies for the
protection of personal data on the basis of the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance. With due regards
to personal data privacy, the Group is committed to
fully enforcing and observing the principles of data
protection as well as all relevant provisions in the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance. The Group seeks
to ensure that appropriate measures are in place to
prevent the misuse or leakage of personal data, and
shall hold such personal data only for the purpose of
such collection.

The Group’s Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance/
Privacy Policy Statement are made available on its
website to disclose the relevant protection policies to
its customers.
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Anti-corruption
Anti-corruption/Anti — money laundering (“AML”)

To build its corporate culture and procedures that
stay in line with laws and regulations as well as
ethics, the Group has established policies on anti-
corruption and AML, which stipulate procedures for
screening customers, “know your customers” policy,
rules for archiving and rules for whistleblowing in
case of suspected deals.

Gifts and benefits

The Group has developed its policies against
bribery and the receipt or provision of gifts. In all
circumstances, employees must declare any receipt
of gifts or benefits to the compliance department,
which would advise based on the circumstances,
for example whether such gifts or benefits can
be accepted, should be rejected or other ways of
handling.

Policies for handling internal complaints

We have policies for handling internal complaints,
whereby employees may report to the chairman of
the Board any improper behaviours on an anonymous
basis. Such improper behaviours include but are not
limited to:

° improper behaviours involving financial
reporting;
° improper behaviours involving internal control;

° behaviours in violation of any applicable laws;

° behaviours posing threat to the safety or health
of the others; and

° wilful concealment of any one of the above.
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Whistleblowers do not face intimidation, retaliation or
improper disciplinary actions in any form as a result
of reporting the aforesaid behaviours. The Company
uses its best endeavours to keep all disclosed
information confidential and to handle the same in a
prudent manner. Without consent of the respective
employees, the Company will not disclose the identity
of the reporting employees. However, under certain
circumstances such as where it becomes necessary
to initiate litigation procedures due to investigation,
the Company may be required by law or be obliged
under law to disclose the identity of the reporting
employees. In such event, all reasonable steps
will be taken by the Company to ensure that such
employees will not get affected. Any acts to harass or
affect the whistleblowers will be considered serious
misconducts and once established would result in
termination of employment.

Customer services

Dedicated customer services have bestowed on
the Group trust and support from its customers.
With clear and black-and-white internal procedures,
the Group impartially and rapidly investigates
and resolves all disputes and complaints. As an
integrated financial services provider, we have set
up service teams that are comprised of different
professionals to provide diversified financial services,
including securities brokerage, margin financing,
commodities and futures brokerage, bullion trading,
forex trading and so forth. As of 31 March 2019, 141
of the Group’s employees were persons licenced by
the Securities and Futures Commission to engage in
one or more of the regulated activities.
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During the Year, the Group was granted the following
accolades with its caring and professional service
attitudes:

— “Top Exchange Participant — L&l Product
Turnover” and “Award in Providing Stock
Futures Education” by the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange

—  “Financial Sector — Outstanding Securities
Trading Mobile APP” award granted by Metro
Broadcast and The Chamber of Hong Kong
Computer Industry

—  “Best Securities Mobile Apps in Greater China
Award” by METRO PROSPERITY

— “Hong Kong Outstanding Enterprise Award”
granted by Economic Digest

—  “the Most Socially Responsible Listed Company
in 2018 Golden Hong Kong Stock Awards”
by Zhitongcaijing and Royal Flush Information
Network

Community
Community investment

Recognizing the responsibility of a good corporate citizen
to contribute to the community, the Group has long
maintained its eagerness to serve and give back to the
community, with active participation in various community
activities. The management of the Group advocates staff
participation in philanthropic deeds, to arouse attention to
the community and drive further participation from other
people in community services.

The Group has been supporting a charitable organization
named “Joyful (Mental Health) Foundation” as a sponsor
for 11 years in the philanthropic running event called
“Joyful Charity Run” and obtained a “Caring Company
Award”. During the Year, the Group donated HK$200,000
to this organization.
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The Group donated HK$500,000 to Louis Mak Charitable
Foundation as a token of care and appreciation to the
elderly during the Year.

The Group donated HK$10,000 to The Chinese Gold &
Silver Exchange Society Charity Fund Limited to support
the next generation of grassroots families during the Year.

The Group also endeavours to promote in the educational
spectrum. The Group donated HK$100,000 to Hong Kong
Baptist University during the Year.

For years, the Group has donated to Rev. Bro. Paul Sun
Education Foundation in support of the construction of
school facilities, scholarships for primary and secondary
schools, educational activities and community. During the
Year, the Group donated HK$40,000 to this foundation.

The Group has also been awarded the following
certificates of appreciation:

“The Most Socially Responsible Listed Company
in 2018 Golden Hong Kong Stock Awards” by

Zhitongcaijing/RoyalFlush Information Network

—  “Caring Company Award” granted by the Hong Kong
Council of Social Service

Caring Company Scheme

T
caringcompany

Awarded by The Hong Kong Council of Social Ser!\ce
St ERisHEREE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance and complying with regulatory
requirements, to secure and uplift confidence of shareholders
as well as potential investors. In order to meet expectations
of the public and shareholders and fulfill its commitment to
good corporate governance, the Board reviews the Company’s
corporate governance practices from time to time.

Throughout the Year, the Company has fully complied with
the Corporate Governance Codes and Corporate Governance
Report (“CG Codes”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board’s primary responsibilities are to formulate the
Company’s long term corporate strategy, oversee the
management of the Group, and evaluate the business
performance. In addition, the Board has established four
committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and Risk Management
Committee; and has delegated various responsibilities to these
committees under the Board as set out in their respective terms
of reference.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board comprises six Directors, half of whom are non-
executive directors independent from the management. The
Board is responsible for formulating the overall strategies of
the Company, ensuring the availability of sufficient funds and
resources for implementing such strategies, overseeing the
financial position of the Company, and complying with laws and
regulations in the course of business operations. All members
of the Board possess the skills and experience required by
the businesses of the Group. As at 31 March 2019, the Board
comprised three executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yip Mow Lum
(Chairman), Mr. Hui Yik Bun (CEO) and Mr. Chan Wing Shing,
Wilson; and three independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Yu Yun Kong, Mr. Szeto Wai Sun and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai,
Joseph. The biographical details of the current Directors are set
out in the “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management”
section of this annual report.

TEERER

EEERTHRBRIKFZILEERZEGH
RGENETEREEER MR RERK
REEEREZEZEL BEF§—HTHMER
FEBRZBALE ST EHEBETERRKFLE
ERZAEG U TERIARARZEEERT
e

AEE ARABEETHEBEFEABERIMA
RARES EMmARR T EHARR]) M &+ mpr
HZ(EEBEARATADR(EERE ARSI (X

RSt -

=

EZEZIERAER/NEARAZRERE -
EBEASEEZEREBUARTEEBRE - It
S BEEZECORRYNEETEZEE @ 21
EZLZE® REZEE FHZESMER
EEZBEg  URZTZESCBEREE &
TRAEEIRTZEFLZES

<

EEEEM

EXEeh R BEFEN  EPF—FRIFNTE
F UBYNRERE -BEFSREHEARA
ZEERE BRAQFABEHESRER
NEBRAERE ERAEMBERR  UREEX
BEALBTERMNER EFEEKEHA
BAREEXRBATORERER R-2F—A
FZA=1T—"H EFEXNEINR=ZFBNT
EFERMEE(ZR) HAEWLTEGTHRR
B)RBRKBAEE  RII=—RBUIFNTES
DRRRGMEE  AIEEFCTEREEES
£ -BRAEEEZHEHINAERIEZT AR
EEEZHEI—H -

66 Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2018/19



Corporate Governance Report

A\/;‘-\\
1F éfﬁ%%

During the Year, the Company was in full compliance with the
requirements under the Listing Rules, with three independent
non-executive Directors on the Board throughout the year. In
addition, Mr. Yu Yun Kong and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph have
the appropriate professional qualifications of accounting and
related financial management experience. The Company has
received written confirmation from each of the independent non-
executive Directors of his independence from the Company.

Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson is a nephew of Mr. Yip Mow
Lum. Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Mr. Hui Yik Bun and Mr. Chan Wing
Shing, Wilson concurrently are directors of several subsidiaries
of the Company. Save as disclosed above, there are no other
relationships between the Board members, including financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationships.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company acknowledges the importance of diversity at
the Board in contributing to the quality of performance of the
Company. The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy.
In determining the composition of the Board, the Company
takes into account a number of factors, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background
or professional experience. Appointment of Directors is solely
based on meritocracy. The Board Diversity Policy is among
the criteria used in selecting members to join the Board.
Furthermore, the Company also takes into consideration its
own business model and specific needs form time to time in
determining the optimal composition of the Board.
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BOARD PRACTICES

The Board holds at least four regular meetings annually at
approximately quarterly intervals to discuss the Group’s
business development, operations and financial performance.
Notice of at least 14 days is given to all Directors for all
regular Board meetings. All regular Board meetings adhere to
a formal agenda in which a schedule of matters is addressed
to the Board and the Directors are invited to include matters
of special concerns for discussion in the agenda. All Directors
have access to the Board papers and all related materials, and
are provided with adequate information by the management to
enable the Board to make informed decisions on the matters to
be discussed. The minutes of the Board meetings have sufficient
details of the matters discussed at Board meetings which are
prepared and kept by the Company Secretary and are opened
for inspection by any Director. The Directors are free to access
to the management for enquiries about further information, when
required, and the Directors can obtain independent professional
advice at the Company’s expense.

During the Year, four regular Board meetings and two general
meetings were held. Details of the attendance of the Directors to
the regular Board meetings and general meetings are as follows:

Name of Director

Executive Directors: HITESE

Mr. Yip Mow Lum BEERMEE

Mr. Hui Yik Bun FFREW K&

Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson BR oK G S A
Independent Non-executive Directors: BIYFEHITES :
Mr. Yu Yun Kong REM LA

Mr. Szeto Wai Sun AITE#ERT L&

Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph % B g % A&

EEZEER

EXeEFRIBTHRAEHER  HEFLR
TR IBAEEZEBERR  EERME
RE-DEFEMEATHER  2REFHE
REDIARAMESBEN - FIEEHEZTEER
BRAEEAZRE  ARIEEFRFAHRESS
B CESTARBETPMARREEAARE
Z o rREFUARCHESEXMNHLMEE
MK ERETEREXROEN  REFE
ARFRFRELABRAE EFE@RTH
HANBESFEERTAIWMZIFER AAR
AWEERERER EIRNEZHNEHESS
BRI o UL EE T ARER B G B IEE A
EHE—FTER EFTUNGABLERA
T2ER  HBAERBAARRRAE-

AEE EFQLRTHNAEESEHEER
MABERAE BEFRNEFSTEHERREK

RAGZHEXRHEBNOT :
Number of
Number of general
regular Board meetings
meetings attended
HEEES HE
EHERZRE BRREAXEZR¥
4/4 1/2
4/4 2/2
4/4 0/2
4/4 2/2
4/4 2/2
4/4 2/2
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed Director will receive comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction package from the company
secretary ensuring that he/she has a proper understanding
of the Company’s operation, business, the relevant laws
and regulations, the Listing Rules and governance policies.
The Company Secretary also provides the updates on latest
development and changes in the Listing Rules and other
relevant legal and regulatory requirements to the Board from
time to time.

In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. During the Year, the Company
arranged Directors to join seminar on Use of Big Data in
Enhancing Corporate Competitiveness organised by the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors. In addition, the Directors are
updated with latest developments regarding the Listing Rules
and other applicable legal and regulatory requirements from time
to time to ensure compliance of the same by all Directors.

ACCESS TO INFORMATION BY DIRECTORS

In relation to regular Board meetings, notice of at least 14 days
shall be given to Directors allowing them to have sufficient time
to participate. Meanwhile, Agendas and meeting documents are
sent to all Directors three days prior to the respective meeting
to ensure that Directors have sufficient time to familiarize
themselves with the matters to be discussed and to play their
roles of supervision. For meetings of committees under the
Board, notice of at least 14 days shall also be given to Directors,
and agendas and meeting documents are also sent to all
Directors three days prior to the respective meeting.

All Directors are entitled to have access to Board papers,
minutes and financial information, and also entitled to make
enquiry to the management regarding operating data and
financial information of the Company. The management must
submit the information requested by the Directors within
reasonable time so that the Board can play its role effectively.
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Further, the Company provides all Directors with monthly
updates on the Company’s performance, financial position and
prospects, so that Directors are well aware of the affairs of the
Group and can in turn perform its duties under the Listing Rules.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each executive Director has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a fixed term of three years, which will
automatically be renewable for one successive year, and will
continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either party
giving the other prior notice in writing (not less than three
months’ notice for Mr. Yip Mow Lum and Mr. Hui Yik Bun; and
not less than twelve months’ notice for Mr. Chan Wing Shing,
Wilson). They are subject to retirement from office by rotation
and re-election by shareholders at annual general meetings in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”).

CG Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term subject to re-election.
Each of the three independent non-executive Directors of the
Company are appointed for a fixed term of one year, which will
automatically be renewable for one successive year, and will
continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either party
by giving the other party a three months’ prior notice in writing.
All three independent non-executive Directors are also subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders at
the annual general meetings of the Company according to the
provisions of the Articles.

According to the Articles, at each annual general meeting of
the Company, one-third of the current Directors, or if there are
not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but
not less than one-third, should retire from office by rotation at
least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible
for re-election. Furthermore, any Director appointed to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board should hold office
only until the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and shall be subject to re-election at such meeting.

fRt 2o ARREAREBEFREHABA
RARE MBERARARZIEHEN - BE
ERTAKEZER  EEBUBITLEMAA
TZEME-

EERERES
ERTESFCRARALRBEHZ  BEF

HA=ZF EMRSEDEY—F YXEe—&H
L’t% BRIEREEEA-—STRAHTHLELE

BHR(REXHRELERFELELEMS T
)‘J’/\:1IHL%D ML BRKBELETE TR
TEABRIKLERL REARARAZ
ABERAUTERANDZRERBRRBS
ARELHBESRIHBRRER -

ﬁ%a/n?ﬁ‘JMXAﬂfﬁﬁm é‘FﬁLﬂi%Z*
TREHREED AARIXEHER - AR
E%ﬁiifﬁfT%%Z.E%Efﬁgﬁﬁ*ﬁz

EREOeaBER—F Y -—BHEE K
EREEEA-—STRABTELR=ZEAAZELE

EEMELERIE - M=2BIFNTEFTNA
REERAAUNZBEXRARA ZBRRBFAS
FHESRIHBERERE -

RESZSEMAY EE N2 EF(WAZT
B8 %( LAE*%U&HK CR=ZD 22—
i NYNE] Hx%ﬂiﬁ’“i:?ﬁ R 8=
%2535—”\# FHEBERET—XR - BREEEFAE
B EIRET o AN ﬁfﬁﬁﬁuuﬁiﬁﬁ%jﬂ”ﬁﬁ

EEeRMMZAECENESERERERES
FRARBZEARRRERILE  XRZAE®
BB -

70 Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2018/19



Corporate Governance Report

A\/;‘-\\
1F éfﬁﬁ%

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. All
the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
Model Code throughout the Year.

COMPLIANCE MANUAL

The compliance manual of the Company has been prepared by
the Company with reference to relevant regulatory guidelines
and other industry best practices, setting out ethical standards,
values and specific obligations on topics such as dealing in
securities, anti-money laundering and personal benefits, thereby
ensuring that all Directors, management members and staff
members abide by the ethics and integrity in compliance with
standards of the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

CG Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and CEO should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. To balance power and authority, Mr. Yip
Mow Lum acts as the Chairman of the Company, whereas Mr.
Hui Yik Bun acts as CEO.

Their respective responsibilities are clearly established. The
Chairman is responsible for ensuring that the Board properly
discharges its responsibilities and conforms to good corporate
governance practices and procedures. In addition, he is also
responsible for ensuring that all Directors are sufficiently briefed
on issues arising at Board meetings and that all Directors
receive adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely
manner. The CEO is responsible for day-to-day management
and administration of the Group’s business, including the
implementation of significant strategies formulated by the
Board.
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members, all of whom
are independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yu Yun
Kong, Mr. Szeto Wai Sun and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph.
None of them are involved in the day-to-day management of
the Company. Mr. Yu Yun Kong is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the
Company’s financial information (including the Company’s
financial statements, annual reports, interim reports and major
comments on financial reporting contained in the financial
statements), examining the Company’s financial reporting
system and procedures for internal supervision and control, and
making recommendations to the Board on matters regarding the
appointment of external auditors and the fixing of the audit fee,
etc. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
enabling it to discharge its duties.

A summary of work performed by the Audit Committee during
the Year is set out as follows:

° reviewed the audited financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2018;

° reviewed the interim financial statements of the Company
for the six months ended 30 September 2018; and

. reviewed the effectiveness of the accounting and financial
reporting function of the Group.

° reviewed and recommended the Board on the re-
appointment of external auditor; and

° made recommendation to the Board to adopt a revised
terms of reference of the Audit Committee.
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Two Audit Committee meetings were held during the Year.
Attendance records of relevant Directors are set out as follows:

Name of Director

ERZEERAFEARTTMAEH A6
EEZHFECHEAINDT ¢

Number of
meetings

attended
HESBZXH

Mr. Yu Yun Kong (Chairman) REMEE(EE) 2/2
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun BIEMERT ST 2/2
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph =Bk & 2/2

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that
KPMG, Certified Public Accountants (“KPMG”), be nominated for
re-appointment as the external auditor of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee comprises five members,
namely, Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Chairman of the Board and Mr. Hui
Yik Bun, an executive Director and the CEO, together with three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yu Yun Kong,
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph. Mr. Yu Yun
Kong is the chairman of the Risk Management Committee.

The major duties of the Risk Management Committee are to
review the risk management and internal control systems other
than the financial control and reporting system and to consider
major investigation findings on the risk management and
internal control matters of the Company. The Risk Management
Committee is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to
discharge its duties.

A summary of the work performed by the Risk Management
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

° reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system;
and

o reviewed the risk register to identify, mitigate and monitor
significant risks.
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A Risk Management Committee meeting was held during the
Year. Attendance records of relevant Directors are set out as
follows:

Name of Director

RREEZEE@RNAFERTT —RE#% 8
MEFTZHFECEEHINDT

Number of
meeting

attended
HEEREZRE

Mr. Yu Yun Kong (Chairman) REAMEE(EE) 1/
Mr. Yip Mow Lum EERMEE 11
Mr. Hui Yik Bun FTREW R A 11
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun A E MR S & 11
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph % [ 9 o A 11
Nomination Committee RBEEE®
The Nomination Committee comprises four members, namely REZEZEeHmNEKEHNK DR AEF=2

Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Chairman of the Board, together with three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Yu Yun Kong, Mr.
Szeto Wai Sun and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph. Mr. Yip Mow
Lum is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for, among others,
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s strategy; reviewing
the Board’s diversity policy, as appropriate; and review the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing
the Board’s diversity policy, and the progress on achieving
the objectives; identifying individuals suitably qualified to
become members of the Board and selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on selection of individual
nominated for directorships; assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors; making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular
the Chairman and the CEO; and determining the policy for
nomination of Directors. The Nomination Committee is provided
with sufficient resources enabling it to discharge its duties.

74

FEEMEER=ZZBIUFATESTRYME
A RfERIFEEROZEBESRL c BXMEL
RIREEHZEGER -

REZBG/REBHRESEFRIEETE L
BE - ABRAK(BERE NELRERS
FE) XREMNSEAARNRAREMAEE
FRFHZEHRLESR  EEERRA TR
EEE@REZTIERE  UWRAHITZBEM
HEZAFERRNERER  WEABAE
BRAEEESE AL  UHERZABAL
HEEFARUAETSRHUER - FEHBY
FATESZBYLM  RESFREREHRE
AREBEF(LERERRITHASR) BEFTEZ
FHRFERNEFTERLEZ  URRERRE
EZBR -RHAZBERREHITETER  UE
TBE -

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2018/19



Corporate Governance Report

TRERME

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination Committee
during the Year is set out as follows:

o reviewed the structure, size, diversity of composition and
succession of the Board;

° made recommendation to the Board to adopt a revised
terms of reference, nomination policy and Board’s diversity

policy;

o reviewed the independence of the independent non-
executive Director; and

o made recommendation to the Board on the re-election of
Directors.

A Nomination Committee meeting was held during the Year.
Attendance records of relevant Directors are set out as follows:

REZBENAFEZTEHAMT ¢

s RWNEFGZRE  ABC-EKZEMER
A ERE

s EREREFERMLEBIZBERE =4
BRLEFEKNEZTILERE

s HERBUFATEFTZBYE K

e NEREFTNEFCRMES

REZBENAFERITT Rz BHE
FZHFRERINWT

Number of

meeting

attended

Name of Director HEEZEZRE

Mr. Yip Mow Lum (Chairman) EEMNEE(EE) 1/1

Mr. Yu Yun Kong REM L& 1/1

Mr. Szeto Wai Sun A){E 43 11

Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph & B8 5t A 1/1

Nomination Policy REBX

The nomination policy aims to set out the nomination criteria ERMEEEIHRBRZLEREF LEES

and procedures to select suitable candidates to the Board for
consideration.

The selection criteria in assessing the suitability of potential
candidates includes, but not limited to, their character
and integrity, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge,
experience, expertise and measurable objectives set out in the
board diversity policy.

The nomination procedures for each appointment and re-
election of Directors shall be evaluated using a substantially
similar process and shall be fair and transparent. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing this policy to
ensure its effectiveness.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises four members,
namely, Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Chairman of the Board, and three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Yu Yun Kong, Mr.
Szeto Wai Sun and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph. Mr. Yu Yun Kong
is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for, among others,
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior
management’s remuneration and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration
policy; reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives; making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Director and
senior management; making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration of non-executive Directors; considering
salaries or fees paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group; and ensuring that no Director or any of
his associates is involved in deciding his own remuneration. The
Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources
enabling it to discharge its duties.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

° reviewed the Directors’ fees and made recommendation to
the Board; and

° reviewed the current remuneration package of the
executive Directors and senior management and made
recommendation to the Board.

Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments during the
Year are set out in note 9 to the financial statements in this
annual report. The Directors’ emoluments are determined
with reference to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and the prevailing market rates. The emolument
policy of the employees of the Group is set up on the basis
of their performance, qualifications and competence, as well
as market trends. The work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year included the review and approval of
remuneration scheme of the Group and the remuneration of all
Directors and submission of the same to the Board.

FMWEES

FWZEehmEXEEAR  DHIREFSEE
FERXMEER=ZZBIIFATESTRYM T
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FNZE @ BRERERARAESETLRSAE
BABZERFMERRRERE  KURILR
MEAZAEZEFHIHFHEE  MEESR
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FMBTEERSREBZABZHFMTE © BLIE
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=
=5 ©
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A Remuneration Committee meeting was held during the Year. HHMEES @R AEEHBT T —XeE - 658
Attendance records of relevant Directors are set out as follows:  #= > PB4 o 0T ¢

Number of

meeting

attended

Name of Director HESBZXH
Mr. Yu Yun Kong (Chairman) REMEE(EE) 1/
Mr. Yip Mow Lum BERMEE 11
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun RIE M £ 1/1
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph % [ 9 o A 11

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS/SENIOR B SEREEAETMH
MANAGEMENT

The following table lists out in bands the remuneration of the TFXRINHLIEEREREBEBC AR -2 E
Directors and senior management whose names appear in the FERESHREBAERAFEZFHHMAER :

“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” section for

the Year:
Number of
persons
A
8,000,001-9,000,000 1
7,000,001-8,000,000 —
6,000,001-7,000,000 1
5,000,001-6,000,000 1

4,000,001-5,000,000 =
3,000,001-4,000,000 =
2,000,001-3,000,000 =
1,000,001-2,000,000 2
1-1,000,000 3

8

Total 42 &
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of
financial statements for each financial period, which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company, and
of the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing the
financial statements for the Year, the Board has selected
suitable accounting policies and has applied them consistently,
adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and Hong Kong Accounting Standards which are pertinent to
its operations and relevant to the financial statements, made
judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable, and
has prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Kwan Pak, the Company Secretary, is an external
service provider and was appointed by the Board. He is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered and Certified
Accountants, a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators. He reports to the Chairman and CEO and
assists the Board in functioning effectively. All the Directors
could have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary at any time in relation to their duties and operation of
the Board. During the Year, he undertook not less than 15 hours
of professional training to update his knowledge and skills.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

During the Year, KPMG, the external auditor of the Group,
provided the following services to the Group:

B ERF&

EECRARERSVBRIRZYBRERGRT
fF BRAVHHRRAEERAFHRRARF]
ZMARZHMEZRERBRERE - RBERA
FEZMBHRERE EFTSCEBRYERRA
BHEZEEE RMEAREERRMBR
REMZEEREYBRERANEB G E
A - EHBES B 2 HE R G5 XEHFHE
REEBFERUBHRE -

REWE

RAMERBEBELERINERGREE - AE
EERE -RAREFHALARSTMEER
SEEURBEBMAUMELCENEBAFFUE
RITBRABREE®E - WA EFERITHRATE
HLMHETSERNEF -MAESHAMK
HAEBENEEGEFEEEARAMESR
BRALRE -AEE RAMEZZ2ETIR
1518/ N 2 BRI DA BT E AR MR BE o

B M % BAm

AEE AKEZIBEZBNEFSHAAKE
RAEIAT RS

HK$’000
Service rendered Fr iR 2 PR 75 TET
Audit services %R %
Annual audit FEEZ 1,410
Non-audit services FEBEZRE
Interim review /R HA 28 R 247
Taxation service % AR 7% 988
Advisory service & AR 696
Total HREt 3,341

78 Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2018/19



Corporate Governance Report

A\//‘-\\
1F éﬂﬁﬂ%%

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has ultimate responsibility to establish and maintain
adequate risk management and internal control systems and to
review their effectiveness. Hence, such systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Process used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage
Significant Risk

Pursuant to the Group’s framework, senior management is
primarily responsible for designing and implementing the
policies and procedures of internal controls, while the Board
and the Risk Management Committee oversee the actions of
senior management and review the effectiveness of the controls
established on an annual basis in respect of the financial year.

Risk management of the Group is a continuous process carried
out at all levels of the Group. Each management team is
required to identify the risks in their division faces and classify
them into appropriate categories. All risks identified are given
a risk rating which is evaluated based on the likelihood and
consequence of the risks. Mitigation measures and plans are
then developed based on the control gaps evaluated and
the predetermined risk appetite to manage the risks to an
acceptable level.

All risks identified and the corresponding mitigation measures
are recorded in the relevant risk register to facilitate review of
the senior management, the Risk Management Committee and
the Board on an ongoing basis.

Internal Audit Function

The Group’s internal audit function for the Year has been
performed by the Internal Audit Department and Compliance
Department, both of them have unrestricted access to review
all aspects of the Group’s business activities and is responsible
for quarterly monitoring and reviews on internal and operational
controls. They directly report to the Chairman of the Board and
the Risk Management Committee.

The Risk Management Committee and the Board have

confirmed that there is no fundamental deficiencies with material
adverse consequences.
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Internal Control System

For the Year, the Board has, through management, the Audit
Committee and the Risk Management Committee, conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems.

The review covered all material controls over financial,
operational and compliance issues, risk management,
information systems security, the effectiveness of financial
reporting and compliance with the Listing Rules.

In view of the improvements made to the systems and the
appropriate measures taken, the Board considered that the
systems are effective and adequate.

The Board has also reviewed and is satisfied with the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

The Board has adopted the Disclosure of Inside Information
Manual to handle and disseminate inside information to comply
with the requisite inside information disclosure requirements as
specified under the Securities and Futures Ordinance and the
Listing Rules.

Dividend Policy

The dividend policy aims to set out key criteria on payment of
dividends of the Company.

Payment of dividends shall remain to be determined at the
sole discretion of the Board of the Company, except the final
dividend shall be subjected to shareholders’ approval at general
meeting.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take
into account, inter alia, the operating results, cash flow,
financial condition and capital requirements of the Group and
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
The Company’s distribution of dividends shall also be subject
to any restrictions under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands and the Articles as well as all applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

The dividend policy will be reviewed from time to time. The
dividend policy allows the Board to declare special dividends
from time to time in addition to the interim and/or annual
dividends. There is no guarantee that any particular amount of
dividends will be distributed for any specific periods.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS % R R R

Shareholders are entitled to convene an extraordinary general MREAEZBFHIREERAS RIEZEFMALTE
meeting and propose a person for election as a director. Please HEEFEHE « FMARFEZL AT :

see the detailed procedures as follows:

. the way in which shareholders can convene an °

extraordinary general meeting:

Any shareholder(s) holding, at the date of deposit of
the requisition, not less than 10% of the paid up capital
of the Company may request the Board of Directors
to convene an extraordinary general meeting. The
requisition, duly signed by the shareholder(s) concerned,
must clearly state the objects of the meeting and must
be deposited at the head office of the Company at 10/F,
Wing On House, 71 Des Voeux Road Central, Central,
Hong Kong. The Company takes appropriate action and
make arrangements in accordance with the requirements
under Article 64 of the Articles once a valid requisition is
received.

. the procedure for Director’s nomination and o
election by shareholders:

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than
a retiring Director for election as a Director at a general
meeting, the shareholder should lodge at the head office
of the Company at 10/F, Wing On House, 71 Des Voeux
Road Central, Central, Hong Kong (i) a notice signed
by such shareholder (other than the proposed person)
duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting of his/
her intention to propose such person for election; (i) a
notice signed by the proposed person indicating his/her
willingness to be elected together with the information as
required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules; and (iii) a written consent by the proposed person
for the publication of his/her personal data.

The period during which the aforesaid notices may be
given within the period of not fewer than seven days,
commencing no earlier than the day after the dispatch of
the notice of the meeting appointed for such election, and
ending no later than seven days prior to the date of such
meeting. The Company would take appropriate actions
and make necessary arrangements once valid notices are
received.
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Shareholders are welcome to send in any written enquiries to
the Board for the attention of the Company Secretary by post
to the head office of the Company at 10/F, Wing On House, 71
Des Voeux Road Central, Central, Hong Kong. The Company
Secretary would direct the enquiries received to appropriate
Board Member(s) or the Chairman of the Board Committee(s)
who is in charge of the areas of concern referred therein
for further handling. The Board, assisted by the Company
Secretary, would make its best efforts to ensure that all such
enquiries are addressed in a timely manner.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

In order to develop and maintain a continuing investors’
relationship with the Company’s shareholders, the Company has
compiled a Shareholders Communication Policy and established
various channels of communication with its shareholders, such
as publication of interim and annual reports, press releases
and announcements of the latest development of the Company
in a timely manner. The annual general meetings provide
an opportunity for shareholders to exchange views with the
Board. The Chairman and members of different committees
are available to answer shareholders’ questions. Moreover,
resolutions are proposed at annual general meetings on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
Directors and details of the proposed resolutions are set out in a
circular.

The financial and other information relating to the
Group has been published on the websites of the
HKEXnews (https://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company
(https://www.bsgroup.com.hk).
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The Board of Directors is pleased to present their report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding,
while the principal activity of the Group is the provision of
financial services, including securities broking, margin financing,
commodities & futures broking, bullion trading and leveraged
foreign exchange trading.

ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

Details of the analysis of the Group’s revenue and profit for the
Year contributed by operating segments are set out in note 12
to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the Year, which
includes a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing by the Group, an analysis of the Group’s financial key
performance, particulars of important events affecting the Group
during the Year, and an indication of likely future developments
in the Group’s business, can be found in the Management
Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 27 to 46 and the
Environmental Policies can be found in the ESG report on pages
54 to 65 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

During the Year, as far as the Board and management are
aware, there was no material breach of or non-compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has
a significant impact on the businesses and operations of the
Group.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group’s success depends on the support from key
stakeholders including employees and customers.

The Group provides a harmonious working environment to
employees and ensures all of them are reasonably remunerated.
The Company regularly reviews and updates its policies on
remuneration and benefits, training as well as occupational
health and safety.

The Group has the mission to provide excellent customer
service while maintaining long term profitability and business
growth. The Group pays close attention to various stakeholders
and maintains frequent communication with them, with a view
to fully understanding and listening to their appeals and making
positive responses based on the actual circumstances of the
Group.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit and affairs of the Group for the Year are set out in the
financial statements on pages 113 to 223.

FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
7.80 HK cents per share for the year ended 31 March 2019,
subject to the approval of the final dividend by the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting
(“AGM”) to be held on Thursday, 8 August 2019. If approved,
the final dividend will be paid to the Company’s shareholders
on Wednesday, 28 August 2019. Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on Monday,
19 August 2019 will be entitled to the proposed final dividend.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ENTITLEMENT TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT
THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed, for
the purpose of determining shareholders’ entitlement to attend
and vote at the AGM, from Friday, 2 August 2019 to Thursday,
8 August 2019 (both days inclusive), during this period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to attend and
vote at the AGM, shareholders should ensure that all transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
are lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong (to be moved to
Level 54, Hopewell Centre 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
with effect from 11 July 2019) for registration, not later than
4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 1 August 2019. The Annual General
Meeting of the Company will be held at 10:00 a.m. on Thursday,
8 August 2019.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ENTITLEMENT TO THE PROPOSED FINAL
DIVIDEND

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed, for
the purpose of determining shareholders’ entitlement to the
proposed final dividend, from Wednesday, 14 August 2019
to Monday, 19 August 2019 (both days inclusive), during this
period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify
for the proposed final dividend, shareholders should ensure
that all transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level
22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong (to be
moved to Level 54, Hopewell Centre 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong with effect from 11 July 2019) for registration, not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 13 August 2019. Shares of the
Company will be traded ex-dividend as from Monday, 12 August
2019.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
are set out in note 27(a) to the financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABILITY OF RESERVE

The reserves of the Company are distributable to the equity
shareholders subject to the provisions of the Company’s
Memorandum and Articles of Association and provided that
immediately following the distribution the Company is able to
pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

At 31 March 2019, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company was
HK$753,050,000 (2018: HK$789,130,000).

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to HK$850,000 (2018: HK$253,000).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five years ended 31 March 2019 are set out in the “Five-
year Financial Summary” section on page 224 of this annual
report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the relevant laws of the
Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S SHARES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during the
Year or subsisting at the end of the Year are set out below:

Share Option Scheme

On 4 August 2010, the Company conditionally approved and
adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose
of enabling the Group to grant share options (the “Options”)
to selected participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Group. The major terms of the Scheme are
set out as follows:

(i)

The participants include any employees (whether full
time or part time), executives and officers (including
Executive and Non-executive Directors), shareholders,
suppliers, customers, consultants, advisors, business or
joint venture partners, franchisees, contractors, agents or
representatives of any members of the Group;

The maximum number of shares which may be allotted and
issued upon exercise of all Options to be granted under
the Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares
in issue as at the Listing Date (the “Scheme Mandate
Limit”) provided that the Company may seek approval
from its shareholders in general meeting to refresh the
Scheme Mandate Limit to the extent not exceeding 10%
of the shares in issue as at the date of the aforesaid
shareholders’ approval. The Scheme Mandate Limited
has been refreshed after the approval of the Company’s
shareholders at the annual general meeting held on
8 August 2013. After the refreshment of the Scheme
Mandate Limited, the maximum number of shares which
may be allotted and issued upon exercise of all Options to
be granted under the Scheme was 118,887,698 shares.
However, the maximum number of shares which may
be allotted and issued upon exercise of all outstanding
Options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other options granted and yet to be
exercised under any other share option scheme shall not
exceed 30% of the Company’s issued share capital from
time to time;
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(i)

(vi)

88

No Options may be granted to any one person such that
the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of Options granted and to be granted to that
person in any 12-month period up to the date of the latest
grant exceeds 1% of the Company’s issued share capital
from time to time;

There is no minimum period for which an Option must be
held before it can be exercised save as determined by the
Board of the Company and provided in the offer of grant of
Options;

Subject to the terms of the Scheme where any offer of
an Option is proposed to be made to any Director, CEO
or substantial shareholder of the Company or any of their
respective associates, such offer must first be approved by
the independent non- executive Directors; where any grant
of Options to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive Director, or any of the respective
associates, would result in the shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all Options already granted and
to be granted (including Options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up to
and including the date of such grant:

° representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares in
issue; and

o having an aggregate value, based on the closing
price of the shares at the date of each offer, in
excess of HK$5 million;

then such further grant of Options must be approved by
shareholders;

An offer of the grant of an Option shall remain open for
acceptance by the grantee for a period of 28 days from
the offer date. An Option shall have been accepted by the
grantee and to have taken effect when the duplicate offer
letter comprising acceptance of the offer of the Option duly
signed by the grantee together with a remittance in favour
of the Company of HK$1 by way of consideration for the
grant thereof is received by the Company on or before
30 days after the offer date. Such remittance shall in no
circumstances be refundable;

(i)

(iv)

(vi)
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(vii)

(viil)

(ix)

The Board shall not make an offer to grant any Option
under the Scheme after a price sensitive event has
occurred or a price sensitive matter has been the subject
of a decision until such price sensitive information has
been announced in accordance with the requirements of
the Listing Rules. In particular, no Option shall be granted
on any day on which the Company’s financial results are
published and (a) during the period of 60 days immediately
preceding the publication date of its annual results or, if
shorter, the period from the end of the relevant financial
year up to the publication date of the results; and (b)
during the period of 30 days immediately preceding the
publication date of its quarterly results (if any) and half-year
results or, if shorter, the period from the end of the relevant
quarterly or half-year period up to the publication date of
the results;

The exercise price of an Option shall not be less than
whichever is the highest of:

° the nominal value of a share;

° the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date;
and

° the average closing price of a share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the offer date;

The life of the Scheme is effective for 10 years from 25
August 2010.

Other particulars of the Scheme are set out in note 28 to the
financial statements.
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The following table discloses details of the Company’s TXRBEAATESE -EFEE  BERLEES
outstanding Options held by the Directors, certain employees, FiREZTEIFARRQT 2 RITHEBERERR
consultants and contractors of the Company under the Scheme AREE 7 #&HE1S -

and its movement during the Year:

Options Options

Options lapsed held at Exercise

held at during 31 March Exercise Vesting
1 April 2018 the Year 2019 Date of grant period conditions
R=ZB-N\%¥ RZB-h%

mA-H AEER =ZA=t-H
FEZEBRE X¥zBRE KE2BRE

Executive Directors:

HOES:

Mr. Hui Yik Bun 500,000 (500,000) = 3.85 23/06/2015  23/06/2015 — Nil
HEWLE 22/06/2018 4
Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson 400,000 (400,000) = 3.85 23/06/2015  23/06/2015 — Nil
B 22/06/2018 i

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

BUFYTEE:

Mr. Yu Yun Kong 100,000 (100,000) - 3.85 23/06/2015  28/06/2015 — Nil
REMEAE 22/06/2018 &
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun 100,000 (100,000) - 3.85 23/06/2015  23/06/2015 — Nil
AIfEERT A 22/06/2018 &
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph 100,000 (100,000) - 3.85 23/06/2015  28/06/2015 — Nil
AERBEAE 22/06/2018 &
Employees 5,810,000 (5,810,000) - 3.85 23/06/2015  23/06/2015 — Nil
B8 22/06/2018 it
Consultants and Contractors 700,000 (700,000 - 3.85 23/06/2015  23/06/2015 — Nil
BRREARH 22/06/2018 &

7,710,000 (7,710,000) =
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As at 31 March 2019, there was no outstanding Options under
the Scheme.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the Year was the
Company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2019 are
set out in note 21 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the Year, the percentage of the Group’s revenue
attributable to the Group’s largest client and the five largest
clients in aggregate were 3.0% and 7.3% (2018: 0.9% and
2.6% respectively) respectively. The Group’s principal activities
are providing securities, commodities and futures brokerage,
margin financing, bullion trading and leveraged foreign exchange
trading financial services. In the Board’s opinion, the Group has
no major suppliers due to the nature of the Group’s principal
activities.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, during the Year, none
of the Directors nor any of their associates nor any shareholders
who own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital,
had any interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2019, none of the Directors is interested in any
business, apart from the Group’s businesses, which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group.
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RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group has a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme. Particulars
of the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme is set out in note 25
to the financial statements.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The primary goal of our policy for remuneration packages is
to ensure that the Directors are fairly rewarded and that they
receive appropriate incentives to maintain high standards of
performance.

Employees’ remuneration are determined in accordance with
individual’s responsibility, competence and skills, experiences,
performance and market pay level.

Details of the Director’s emoluments and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 are
set out in notes 9 and 10 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Yip Mow Lum (Chairman)
Mr. Hui Yik Bun (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Yu Yun Kong
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr.
Hui Yik Bun and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Both of them being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
of the Company as at the date of this annual report are set
out in the “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management”
section on pages 47 to 53 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

No Director offering for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employing
company within one year or with payment of compensation
other than statutory compensation.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged for Directors’ liability insurance
policy for indemnifying their liabilities arising from corporate
activities. The coverage and the amount insured under such
policy are reviewed annually by the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save for the contracts described under the section headed
“Connected Transactions/Continuing Connected Transactions”
below, no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company, its holding company or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.

BIBHERMEBMERLA | —T—/)/\/ —NEFEFR

EScRBiH=E

EEERET RRAFAGLERETC ES
BMEEARFRXEMBARI LM SHERR
AR —FARINEBEOCXERERINKLZ
RIBEH -

ESEWERSE
AAREBEESFEERR  UBERSADL
=X

XEPMIIREREME - ARAE ®E
RENREBERRE -

hied

EERXE  RBEHEN 2R

BRTXHERS HEWERS |-t a
KON RERIARNFEREMAER - A7 -
HERARSETANBEARLERAMER
AMERARERBITI AR ETHERAH
BEREAEABRZIEIERN

93



Directors’ Report
EEE®RE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

REXS RFEBREXS

1. Tenancy Agreements 1. HEWH=
The Group had entered into several tenancy agreements 75’% B(WERBERP)EEDBEALIL
(as the tenant) with some connected persons, which ETHEWZ  LWFEHEHRBK TR

AIETAEEZHERERS -

constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Group under the Listing Rules:

94

Transaction
(Note 1)
X%

Name of

counterparty

(Note 2)

REHA
”//ﬁ 2

Term of agreement

E

Amount for
the Year
HK$'000

rEELE

TERL

Address of premises

LES B

Tenancy made on 4 February 2016 Victory Beauty Limited as 1 April 2016 to 10/F, Wing On House, 10,968
(monthly rental: HK$914,000) the landlord 31 March 2019 71 Des Voeux Road Central,
(Note 3) Central, Hong Kong
RIZ-RE_AMBITUZBY 2BAERAAEREE Z—Z-R% EERREHED
(A : 914,000% ) MA-AEZ NEXREEREI0E
(M3E3) ZE-NE
ZA=+-H
Tenancy made on 4 February 2016~ Well Point Limited as the 1 April 2016 to Mezzanine Floor, Peter Building, 4,440
(monthly rental: HK$370,000) landlord 31 March 2019 58-60 Queen’s Road Central,
(Note 4) 13-17 Stanley Street, Central,
Hong Kong
RZB-RE_AMATUZEN URBERAAELAEFT _—ZT-RE EERRTANEIZTH
(A7 :370,000% ) MA-AZ ERAEPS-B0REARNERE
(M3E4) ZE-NE
ZA=+-H
Tenancy made on 4 February 2016 Sea Magic Limited as the 1 April 2016 to G/F. & Cockloft, Nos. 2,568
(monthly rental: HK$214,000) landlord 31 March 2019 141-145 Kwong Fuk Road, Tai Po,
(Note 5) New Territories, Hong Kong
RZB-RE_AMBTUZEN PHBERAAERAEFT _—T-RE EENRARERSE
(AT : 214,000% ) MA-AZ 141145530 T R HE
(M3E5) ZE-NE
ZA=+-H
Tenancy made on 4 February 2016 Top Sunshine 1 April 2016 to 1/F, Golden Hill Commercial Building, 2,160

(monthly rental: HK$180,000) Development Limited as 31 March 2019 Nos. 39-41 Argyle Street, Kowloon,
(Note 6) the landlord Hong Kong
RIB-AE-ANATUZEYN BREEBERAF ZE-RF EENEDEZE
(A7 :180,000% ) 1k 3 MA-AZ -NFERIEERE
(M3te) ZE-NE 182E
ZA=+-H
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Name of
counterparty
(Note 2)

Transaction
(Note 1)

x5 X585

Term of agreement

(#rit2) E £

(K1)

Address of premises

ES B

Amount for
the Year
HK$'000

KEELE

TERL

Tenancy made on 4 February 2016 Resultever Limited as the 1 April 2016 to Shop No. 7 on G/F & Cockloft and 2,028
(monthly rental: HK$169,000) landlord 31 March 2019 Cockloft Nos.1-6, Tak Lee Building,
(Note 7) No. 993 King's Road, Quarry Bay,
Hong Kong
RZE-RNEZAMAFLZEY  Resultever Limited —E-RF REURRRERE
(A7 :169,000% ) fER%E MA-RZE 993 EHE1-6REER
(W 5E7) ZE-NE TREREE
ZR=+-H
Tenancy made on 4 February 2016 Fortunate State Limited as 1 April 2016 to The Entrance (at Left Frontage) of 9,960
(monthly rental: HK$830,000) the landlord 31 March 2019 Portion A1 of Shops Nos. 6, 7 and
(Note 8) 8 on G/F, M/F and 1/F of Honour
House, Nos. 375-381 & 375A-379A
Nathan Road, No. 24 Kansu Street
and Nos. 2-10 Woosung Street,
Kowloon
RIB-RE-_AMRTIZEN BRAERRARRZE —ZT—1F N B HE375-381 R375A-379A
(A :830,00071) MA-BZ% 5 HEH245 RADE2-105%
(H3E8) ZE-NE SHRES TRSFHAMTA
“RA=t-H EFEZANSS BEZER
—B2E
Tenancy made on 8 November 2016 Peaceful Smart Limited 15 November 2016 to Room 2301 & 2302 on 23/F., Wing 7,536
(monthly rental: HK$628,000) as the landlord 31 March 2019 On House, 71 Des Voeux Road
(Note 9) Central, Central, Hong Kong
RZB-RE+-ANRILZ HETERAR ZE-RF EERRERETTIR
(A : 628,000 1) EREE T-AthBZE XREBAE20E
GED) —Z-nE 2301 k2302%
ZA=t+-H
Tenancy made on 7 August 2018 Realmate Limited as the 8 August 2018 to 5th to 9th floor and Roof, 79 Pok Fu 4,276
(monthly rental: HK$550,000) landlord 31 March 2019 Lam Road, Hong Kong
(Note 10)
RIB-NENALRITUZEY BEARAAMERRT “NENANR  BABRMETORSZIERKRA
(A : 550,000 ) EZE-NE=A
(W £E10) =+-8
Tenancy made on 7 August 2018 Great Challenge Limited as 8 August 2018 to Car Parking Space Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4, 154
(monthly rental: HK$ $19,800) the landlord 31 March 2019 5, & 5S on Lower Ground Floor of
(Note 11) Floral Tower, Nos. 1-9 Mosque
Street, Hong Kong
RIZ-NFNALRIUZAY ZGEERAAEAEE —Z-N\ENANB EEEEBHIZRRRANTEE
(A# :19,800% ) E_E-N%=R 1:2:3 4 5RESHZBEfM
(M3E11) =+-H
TOTAL 44,090
@zt
RIBHEBMEBERDT | —T—/)\/ —NEEFR 95



Directors’ Report
EEERE

Notes:

10.

11.

12.

96

Monthly rental was exclusive of management fees,
government rent and rates.

Each an associate of Mr. Yip Mow Lum (“Mr. Yip”),
Chairman, executive Director and controlling shareholder of
the Company.

Tenancy was renewed on 3 January 2019 with a term of
agreement from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2022 (monthly
rental: HK$1,142,000).

Tenancy was renewed on 3 January 2019 with a term of
agreement from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2022 (monthly
rental: HK$430,000).

Tenancy was renewed on 3 January 2019 with a term of
agreement from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2022 (monthly
rental: HK$240,000).

Tenancy was renewed on 3 January 2019 with a term of
agreement from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2022 (monthly
rental: HK$180,000).

Tenancy was renewed on 3 January 2019 with a term of
agreement from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2022 (monthly
rental: HK$218,000).

Tenancy was renewed on 3 January 2019 with a term of
agreement from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2022 (monthly
rental: HK$861,000).

Tenancy was renewed on 3 January 2019 with a term of
agreement from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2022 (monthly
rental: HK$785,000).

Tenancy was renewed on 3 January 2019 with a term of
agreement from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2022 (monthly
rental: HK$550,000).

Tenancy was renewed on 3 January 2019 with a term of
agreement from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2022 (monthly
rental: HK$19,800).

The annual cap for the Year was HK$44,090,000.
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11.

12.
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2. Financial Services Agreements 2. SRIBRBHER
Maximum
amount for
Amount for the Year  Amount for
the annual cap Payment from/ HK$'000 the Year
HK$'000 to the Group rEE HK$'000
Name of connected person Annual cap EELREE AEEARH/ BRtE
BEALRS EELR TATL #F4a5E2¢E TATL
Mr. Yip and his associates, together as  IPO Annual Cap 2,000,000 Advance from the Group 26,438
“Mr. Yip's Group” (Note 2) BRARRBEFELR REEZBH
ELXAREBEA Margin Annual Cap 500,000 Advance from the Group 306,989
SRIZEREEE](FrF2) AEEELR AEEZBH
Interest paid to the Group 5,628
XRFAEEZHE
Mr. Hui Yik Bun (“Mr. Hui") and his IPO Annual Cap 100,000 Advance from the Group 8,789
associates (Note 3) BERARBEEELR REB BT
FEWLE((FLENREBEA Margin Annual Cap 10,000 Advance from the Group 623
UED) AEEFELR REEZBH
Interest paid to the Group 29
XRFAEEZHE
Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson IPO Annual Cap 20,000 Advance from the Group 4,984
(“Mr. Chan’) and his associates, BRRRZEEFELR RAEEZBH
together as “Mr. Chan’s Group” Margin Annual Cap 10,000 Advance from the Group -
(Note 4) ARFELR REE BT
BABEE(REEDREBEA Interest paid to the Group 2
SRIREEEE](F4) XRFAEEZHE
Mr. Yu Yun Kong (“Mr. Yu”) and his IPO Annual Cap 20,000 Advance from the Group 1,495
associates (Note 5) BERARZEFELR REB BT
2EAREE((REEDREBEA Margin Annual Cap 10,000 Advance from the Group 525
UEDH) FEEFELR REEZBH
Interest paid to the Group 3
XRFAEEZHE
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun (“Mr. Szeto”) and his  IPO Annual Cap 20,000 Advance from the Group -
associates (Note 6) BRARBEEELR KEEZRT
AEgETEE(AFEED R Margin Annual Cap 10,000 Advance from the Group =
84 INGED) AEEFELR REEZBH
Interest paid to the Group S
XRFAEEZHE
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph IPO Annual Cap 20,000 Advance from the Group -
(“Mr. Ling’) and his associates (Note 7) &R ABLEFE - AEEZBH
ERBEE(EEE)REBEA Margin Annual Cap 10,000 Advance from the Group =
(H57) AEEFELR REEZBH
Interest paid to the Group =
XRFAEEZHE
BIRHFERMEBMERLAT | =T —/\/ —"LFFH 97
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Notes:

Mr. Yip, Mr. Hui and Mr. Chan are executive Directors of the
Company. Mr. Yu, Mr. Szeto and Mr. Ling are independent
non-executive Directors of the Company. Mr. Chan is a
nephew of Mr. Yip.

Financial services agreement was renewed on 3 January
2019 with a terms of agreement from 1 April 2019 to 31
March 2022 (IPO Annual Cap: HK$4,000,000,000; Margin
Annual Cap: HK$1,000,000,000).

Financial services agreement was renewed on 3 January
2019 with a term of agreement from 1 April 2019 to 31
March 2022 (IPO Annual Cap: HK$100,000,000; Margin
Annual Cap: HK$10,000,000).

Financial services agreement was renewed on 3 January
2019 with a term of agreement from 1 April 2019 to 31
March 2022 (IPO Annual Cap: HK$20,000,000; Margin
Annual Cap: HK$10,000,000).

Financial services agreement was renewed on 3 January
2019 with a term of agreement from 1 April 2019 to 31
March 2022 (IPO Annual Cap: HK$20,000,000; Margin
Annual Cap: HK$10,000,000).

Financial services agreement was renewed on 3 January
2019 with a term of agreement from 1 April 2019 to 31
March 2022 (IPO Annual Cap: HK$20,000,000; Margin
Annual Cap: HK$10,000,000).

Financial services agreement was renewed on 3 January
2019 with a term of agreement from 1 April 2019 to 31
March 2022 (IPO Annual Cap: HK$20,000,000; Margin
Annual Cap: HK$10,000,000).

Mt

ERE HEERREERERATNT
B -RAEE RAEAEEREEERK
REABIUFRTEE -RELERELELE
29N -

R-IZE—NFE—A=RETLRRSWH
# O MEFEHA_ZT-NAEWA—BE
—E-_F=ZA=+—B(BRIRABE
#F£E LR : 4,000,000,000/8 7T : FESF
€ R : 1,000,000,000% 7T) °

R-IZE—NFE—A=RETLRRSWH
# o R FHAE-_ZTZ-NLFHNA—ABZE
—E-_F=ZA=+—B(BRIRABE
F£E R 100,000,000 7T : FREE
BR : 10,000,000/ 7T ) °

R-IZE—NFE—A=ZRETLRRSWH
% WMBEHA_Z-NEWA—HBHZ
—E-__F=ZA=+—B(BRRABE
#F£Z R ¢ 20,000,000 T : FREE
BR : 10,000,000/ 7T ) °

RZZE—NFE—A=ZRETLRRSWH
% WMBEHA_Z-NEWA—BZ
—E-__F=ZA=+—B(BRRABE
#F£Z R ¢ 20,000,000 T : FREE
BR : 10,000,000/ 7T ) °

RIZE—NFE—A=ZRETLRRSWH
% WMBEHA_Z-NEWA—HBHZ
—E-__F=ZA=+—B(BRRABE
#F£E R : 20,000,000 T : FREE
BR : 10,000,000/ 7T ) °

RIZE—NFE—A=ZRETLRRSWH
% WMBEHA_Z-NEWA—HBHZ
—E__F=ZA=+—B(BRRABE
#F£E LR : 20,000,000 T : FREE
BR : 10,000,000/ 7T ) °
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3. Brokerage Services Agreements

The aggregate amount of brokerage commission income
paid by the relevant connected persons for the brokerage
services provided by the Group for the Year are set out as
below:

Name of connected person

BEALHSR

Mr. Yip’s Group (Note 1)
HAEEEE (K

Mr. Chan’s Group (Note 2)
PR 5t 4 & B (B 52)

Notes:
1. Brokerage services agreement was renewed on 3 January

2019 with a term of agreement from 1 April 2019 to 31
March 2022 (Annual Cap: HK$10,000,000).

2. Brokerage services agreement was renewed on 3 January
2019 with a term of agreement from 1 April 2019 to 31
March 2022 (Annual Cap: HK$2,900,000).

BIBHERMEBMERLA | —T—/)/\/ —NEFEFR

3. RBRERBWHE

REE - HEBEALRASEREZE
KRBANELEAS W ARBEHIWT ¢

Amount for

Annual Cap the Year
HK$’000 HK$’000
FELR rFEELH

T8 T THETT
10,000 208
1,000 1

EE

1. RIZE-AF-AZRETRLRE®D
H o WEBREHA-_Z-AFENA—HBHZE
—E-__F=ZA=+-—HB(FELR:
10,000,000/& 7T ) °

2. RIZE—hE—AZHEITLERSGH
F o WMEFHA—_Z—NAFNA—ABZ
TE - FZA=Z=+—H(FEELR:
2,900,000/ 7T) °
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Annual review of the continuing connected
transactions

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that the transactions were:

(@) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group;

(b) conducted on normal commercial terms or on terms
no less favorable to the Group than terms available to
or from independent third parties; and

(c) entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his
unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
by the Group in accordance with Main Board Listing Rule
14A.56. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to the Stock Exchange.

FEBERGZFEER

BUFATEFCERLAFBEHER
PV HERZERD

@ MAKEBZHER-—REBBIET

IS

b) B—BHERRKEBETERAIEE
TR KREBILE = 2 IEHE
7 %

© REEMETHE RAFARR
SEEPOESE TR FLEY

NS
VAR

ARAFZBEMCERE  UREFEE
75 BS 22 B 55 30005% (A& 5T ) [ 52 Bt 7%
EREBEAXBHUINEFTER] L2
REBGMAEEM ZEBHAE740
FIEAREB(EMRADMAEFTFERER
S RBMHT IR AEE 2 FEBER
ZIEH|E - RIFER ETHRANFE14A.56
ff ZBMCRAREMBEEZHERE
RHGELBEEBREERNER 2 ER
BERAM - ARFERBRIIRRRZH
B K B -
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken
by the Group in its normal course of business are set out in
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements. Those related
party transactions which constituted connected transactions/
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules,
which are set out in the section headed “Connected
Transactions/Continuing Connected Transactions” on pages 94
to 100, have complied with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
However certain transactions are exempt from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as they are
below the de minimis threshold under Rule 14A.76(1) or financial
assistances received on normal commercial terms and were fair
and reasonable and were for the benefit of the Group and no
security over the assets of the Group was granted in respect of
those transactions under Rule 14A.76(2).

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’ S INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2019, the Directors and the CEO of the
Company and their respective associates had the following
interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”) or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”):

BIBHERMEBMERLA | —T—/)/\/ —NEFEFR

BEALTRS

REEBRBEERBRPETZERBEA
IRGZHABERGAETERERWMEI2R - 1B
BEMRABKBERS BFEEERS (H
REIUMATI00EBER S FERERS ] —
FIZZEBREALRS BT EMRAIE14A
EohM BFTRXZERGETEMRANE
VYAENHEERT BHREEXIERRES
14A.76(1) {6 &9 = (K 7K T sk A U B AY B 75 4% B) T
B—REEGERABRAFABYRFAERNERF
% RUWERF14ATORE T 2% EX 5HER
AEEBMEE -

EEREETBRAERKRORBEH
KDz

RZZF-NAF=ZA=+—8  ARAEFZRIT
BBHERFEESBZHEARANRA ZRHD R
MEEBROFEANA N D  MaxFEDEINA
AARBCE S MM EGRPD)FEI2GHREAR
FeERMATHARB(ETRITAESTE
TREXZHBFETAN(RETYDEANE
ZANYNCIDSE B X
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A) REXFTROREBRSD DS

(A) Interests in shares and underlying shares of the
Company

Number of
CHETCERET [
underlying
shares
5 EE &
HERGEAE

Approximate
percentage of
the issued
share capital
HEBRTRE
ZHABES
(%)

Long/short

Name of Director Nature of interest positions

EEns BEME

%/ %R

102

Mr. Yip Mow Lum (Note) Interest in a controlled  Long position 900,000,000 53.02%
ERMEE(HF) corporation Te
XEiEER
Mr. Yip Mow Lum Beneficial owner Long position 234,410,280 13.81%
ERMEE EREEA TR
Mr. Hui Yik Bun Beneficial owner Long position 600,000 0.03%
AW K& BEREEA e
Mr. Yu Yun Kong Beneficial owner Long position 608,829 0.03%
REM L& ERBEEA )
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun Beneficial owner Long position 631,666 0.03%
AIER T R & ERBEAA )
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph Beneficial owner Long position 210,700 0.01%
% B A& ERBEEA S}
Note: Vo=

900,000,000 shares were held by New Charming Holdings
Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Yip Mow Lum, the
Chairman of the Board. Therefore, Mr. Yip Mow Lum is deemed to
be interested in these shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none
of the Directors or the CEO of the Company or their
respective associates had any interest or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

900,000,000 & R FT RAAIZER AR AR (E
ECEIRERMNEEL2ERBZRAREER -
EHit  EEMEEWEAERZERDTREE

E o

BEXHBEEN R-ZZ-AF=A
=t—B ARBEREF  THAEHIW
ERECHBAREEARRHIEEIH
B A E (RCE 7 LB R0 EXVER AT
BZER)ZBEN  HERHRESTHE
BEAERIAR  MaxFEaIRA R
RARBRIB(EF R E G 5E3521%
MEABF2ECMAMLCE - HAREBEF
ESTRIZAME AR A R B PT 2 B

S
IRJE °
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(B) Share options

The interests of the Directors and CEO in the share options
of the Company are detailed in the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” on pages 87 to 91 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year, the
Directors and CEO (including their spouses and children
under 18 years of age) had any interest in, or had been
granted, or exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares
(or warrants or debentures, if applicable) of the Company
or its associated corporations required to be disclosed
pursuant to the SFO.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE
SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2019, the interests of substantial shareholders
(other than the Directors and chief executives) in the shares or
the underlying shares of the Company which were required to
be notified to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were required to be recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section 336
of the SFO were as follows:

Nature of interest

BEME

Name of Shareholder

R ot &

New Charming Holdings Limited (Note) Beneficial owner
HRAFRBER AR (M Z) EREEA e

Note:

900,000,000 shares were held by New Charming Holdings Limited,
a company wholly owned by Mr. Yip Mow Lum, the chairman of the
Board. Therefore, Mr. Yip Mow Lum is deemed to have an interest in
these shares.

BIBHERMEBMERLA | —T—/)/\/ —NEFEFR

Long/short positions

%/ %R

Long position

(B) BRE

BERTHRAERAAGBERE 2 R
MRAFRES7TEO1 B[ FERIETE | — &
S

B EXHIEEIN  RAFEEMAERE
BEENTHRAHR(BERFZEBER
M8 FRIOMERER - BEXITREMA
MRE(EZRBEHRHIETHREAR
E%ZIK’&TIﬁifEHﬁpﬁlﬁxﬁ(jwﬁﬂéﬁ
HfEF - WER) 2R -

FERRRAQXARAP z2ER R
KRB

—T-AFZAZ=Z1T—8  BEGE
R BI)EXVEBE2 R EIDFAME R R
BRBRADRBRB(ESERBE f|7k1§|J>>%
IR EAEFzECMARAZEERR(ES
RE&EEITHABBRIN R R BB H kA8 B K
MZEZWAT -

%‘%&Hﬂ

%P‘UHR%

Approximate
percentage of
the issued
share capital

Number of
shares and

underlying (%)

shares HERBITREZ
BROBER BMAB D
&R0 #E (%)

900,000,000 53.02%

Bt -
900,000,000 B M B RAZERBER RF(EEE

IFREEMELEZERAZIRARREE - Bt - BX
MELERERNZERDTHEERES -

103



Directors’ Report
EEE®RE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, there was
no other person who had any interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Board of Directors,
as at the date of this report, there has been sufficient public float
of more than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required
under the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report”
section on pages 66 to 82 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

BREXFABEEEN R_F-NAF=ZA=1+—
B SEEMALTRARARNDHABERND
o BEERBGES LB R EXVEEE2 R
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B PT 2 EMERIAR ©
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
have been audited by Messrs. KPMG, who will retire at the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting. Messrs.
KPMG, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs. KPMG as the
independent auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE
RECOMMENDED

If the shareholders of the Company are unsure about the
taxation implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of,
dealing in, or the exercise of any rights in relation to the shares
of the Company, they are advised to consult an expert.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE ACCOUNTS

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of
accounts for each financial period, which gives a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and
cash flows for that period. In preparing the accounts for the
year ended 31 March 2019, the Board of Directors has selected
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable, and has prepared the accounts on a going concern
basis. The Board of Directors is responsible for keeping proper
accounting records which disclose, with reasonable accuracy at
any time, the financial position of the Group.

On behalf of the Board

Hui Yik Bun
Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong
19 June 2019
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To the shareholders of
Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bright
Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 113 to
223, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2019, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2019 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Revenue recognition: Brokerage commission income

Refer to note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies on page 164.
The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Brokerage commission income represented Our audit procedures to assess the recognition
60% of the total revenue of the Group for the of brokerage commission income included the

BAEETSEH

BREBEFEFEIRBERMANEXHE  R5Y
AHEEMBRENBIR/SEENEER - &
LERTERMEABRGAVBRRRLA

ERBETEREEN RMITeHELEEHEEMR
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% o

BREHEE AENEHNAEEZEEE

EEEALAERAL EEEE AMTERALLRBRALET
ECE-NEZRAZT-HLESF BRFEENTAE:

year ended 31 March 2019.

Brokerage commission income arising from
brokerage trading of securities, commodities
and futures is recognised on a trade date
basis. Where the customer is given rights
to additional discounted or free services in
the future as a result of paying brokerage
commission, an appropriate amount of the
brokerage commission income is deferred
and recognised when those material rights
are utilised by the customers or expire.
Other commission income subject to
volume rebate arrangements is recognised
once it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur.

We identified the recognition of brokerage
commission income as a key audit
matter because revenue is one of the key
performance indicators of the Group and
therefore there is an inherent risk that the
timing of recognition of revenue could be
manipulated to meet specific targets or
expectations.

BIBHEREBERLF | —F

following:

assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal
controls relating to revenue recognition.
For the key underlying systems used for
the processing of transactions in relation to
the brokerage commission income, trading
volumes, commission rates and volume
rebates, this included involving our information
technology specialists to assess the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness
of a selection of relevant key internal controls
over access to these systems and controls
over data and change management;

developing an expectation of brokerage
commission income and deferred revenue for
the current year based on our consideration
of trading volumes, commission rates and
historical data, comparing our expectation
with the actual brokerage commission income
recorded by the Group and investigating any
significant differences between our expectation
and the amounts recorded by the Group;

performing retrospective review on the material
rights estimated to be utilised by customers
by comparing estimates against the Group's
internal records, our prior year records and
other factors, if any; and

comparing details of journal entries raised
during the current year which affected revenue
with underlying documentation on a sample
basis.
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Valuation of accounts receivable from margin clients

Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements and
the accounting policies on pages 178 to 181.

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

At 31 March 2019 accounts receivable from Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of
margin clients totalled HK$6,070 million, accounts receivable from margin clients included
representing 77% of the Group’s total the following:

assets.

The Group reclassified accounts receivable
from margin clients from financial assets
measured at amortised cost to financial
assets measured at fair value through profit
or loss (*FVPL”) upon the initial adoption of
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments at 1 April
2018.

Margin clients are required to pledge
securities as collateral in order to obtain
credit facilities for securities trading. The
amount of credit facilities granted to
margin clients is determined based on the
discounted value of securities accepted by
the Group as collateral.

Management exercises judgement in
determining whether credit risk adjustments
are required when estimating the fair value
of accounts receivable from margin clients
based on collateral valuation. Management
assessed the value of collateral held at the
reporting date, which principally comprised
listed securities, with reference to quoted
prices. In cases of collateral shortfalls,
management will also consider other factors
such as available remedies for recovery and
the financial situation of the borrower.

We identified assessing valuation of
accounts receivable from margin clients as a
key audit matter because of its significance
in the context of the Group’s financial
statements.
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understanding and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness
of the key internal management controls over
the approval, recording and monitoring of
accounts receivable from margin clients and
collateral shortfalls and valuation assessment
procedures. For the key underlying systems
used for the processing of transactions in
relation to accounts receivable from margin
clients, this included involving our information
technology specialists to assess the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness
of a selection of relevant key internal controls
over access to these systems and controls
over data and change management;

evaluating management application of the
accounting policies as a result of the new
financial instruments standard;

assessing the valuation of collateral held for
a sample of accounts receivable balances as
recorded in the margin shortfall report with
publicly available market prices; and

assessing the existence of collateral by
comparing a sample of securities held as
collateral as extracted from the Group's
records with third party statements from
brokers or clearing houses.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.
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° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.
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¥ 3 A% BLAT ¥R B

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we WHEHEEZEZE S BB EIED » K E WL
determine those matters that were of most significance in the HIBHABARGAVBEBENZIRLEEE
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current REMBEKBERETSZE - RAEZEEIHRE S
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe $HiliELLLEIH @ B IEEREZMTIAF AHHEE
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation ELEIF  HABBERHNBERLT WRE5E
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in TEHAERMBESH ERALSEERNATER
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter HBBELEHARNZE  BRFARETEESRSESR
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse BB =18 -

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this HEAARXBYZHMBRENETEEAEARD

independent auditor’s report is Ko Sze Man. BB o

KPMG EEHEMMEBEEAmR
Certified Public Accountants HEDIET

8th Floor, Prince’s Building HEPIR

10 Chater Road AT E 5

Central, Hong Kong NFRESE

19 June 2019 ZE-NAFARNA+TNAB

112 Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2018/19



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEEHEWER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE_ZT-NF=ZA=+T—-—BLEFECAETIR)

Revenue WA 4 830,305 944,440
Other income H ks 5 212,440 164,414
Other net (loss)/gain Hib (B8 W= F58 6 (4,684) 46,247
1,038,061 1,155,101
Staff costs 8 T AR 7(b) (136,333) (138,937)
Amortisation and depreciation BHERITE (18,839) (18,768)
Other operating expenses Hih & EF 7(c) (243,104) (229,824)
Profit from operations LERR 639,785 767,572
Finance costs B 7% B AN 7(a) (140,600) (166,980)
Profit before taxation R i Al 7 499,185 600,592
Income tax Frig i 8 (58,257) (84,493)
Profit for the year FRER 440,928 516,099
Other comprehensive income for FRHEMEERE :
the year:
ltems that may be reclassified HE&TfREHmsEE
subsequently to profit or loss Em A IE B
— Net movement in investment — A HEERLFIKRE
revaluation reserve of available- EHFEEHEFE
for-sale securities 11 — 2,606
— Exchange reserve —EHLHEE 250 (365)
Total comprehensive income EaRRELMFRAZE
attributable to equity Yy 35 48 28
shareholders for the year 441,178 518,340
Earnings per share EREF
Basic (cents) E AR (L) 12 25.98 30.41
Diluted (cents) #5E () 12 25.98 30.41

The notes on pages 119 to 223 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends declared for the year are set out
in note 27(b).

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 at 1 April 2018. Under the
transitions method chosen, comparative information is not restated.
See note 3.
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e BRI R

At 31 March 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZZE—NWEFE=ZA=+—HBUABTIR)

Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME BENMEE 14 48,338 24,231
Intangible assets mREEE 15 6,283 7,867
Available-for-sale securities AL E F S 16 - 61,809
Deferred tax assets ELEBIREE 26(b) 84 4,029
Other receivables, deposits and HEmEWRIE ek

prepayments SN e 19 21,109 5,289
Other non-current assets HEMIEneEE 17 50,084 110,422
Total non-current assets FRBEELRE 125,898 213,647
Current assets REBEE
Accounts receivable JE U2 B 3K 18 7,276,782 11,885,526
Other receivables, deposits and EmEKRFIE 2k

prepayments SRR e 19 26,840 27,347
Financial assets at fair value through & X F{EE AEBZ 2

profit or loss EREE 8,745 =
Tax recoverable A 3R 6] 7 18 26(a) 11,822 697
Cash and cash equivalents RERBCEEY 20(a) 401,254 511,887
Total current assets REBEELE 7,725,443 12,425,457
Current liabilities REBAEE
Accounts payable J& 1< BR 3K 22 1,226,209 1,705,125
Accrued expenses and other payables [& 51 51 3z I H b J& {~ ZL I8 23 53,747 86,178
Amount due to a related company FEfN—TEEE AR I 32(c)(iii) 200,076 =
Held for trading investments BIEEBER®RRE o 420
Bank loans RITEX 24 3,445,515 8,165,885
Current taxation BN HA % 18 26(a) 2,487 44,495
Total current liabilities REBAEARE 4,928,034 10,002,103
Net current assets REBEEFE 2,797,409 2,423,354
Total assets less current liabilities BEEZERABEE 2,923,307 2,637,001
Non-current liability ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities BT A A G 26(b) 17 39
NET ASSETS EEFEE 2,923,290 2,636,962
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e BRI R

At 31 March 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZZE-—NWEF=ZA=+—BUABTIR)

EQUITY s

Share capital R& 7R 27 509,189 509,189
Share premium f& 10 @B 27 738,020 738,020
Exchange reserve E R 27 265 15
Investment revaluation reserve HEEHREE 27 - 3,977
Merger reserve B FEE 27 (20,000) (20,000)
Share option reserve B IS e R 27 - 7,399
Retained profits R 8 & 27 1,695,816 1,398,362
TOTAL EQUITY EZEE 2,923,290 2,636,962

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
19 June 2019.

Directors

=

Yip Mow Lum
EEM

The notes on pages 119 to 223 form part of these financial
statements.

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 at 1 April 2018. Under the
transitions method chosen, comparative information is not restated.
See note 3.
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Consolidated Statement
mEEZEEHR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HEZZ-NF=ZA=1+—HLEFEUABTIIR)

Share
capital

BA
$000
T

of Changes in Equity

Share
premium

K aE
$'000
T

Investment Share
Exchange revaluation Merger option  Retained
reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total equity

REEf
E5 i AftEG BRERE RELRN D46
$000 $1000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T T Tn T T

At 1 April 2017 RZB-t¥MA-H 509,099 737,677 380 1,371 (20,000) 8,341 962,823 2,199,691
Changes in equity for the year HZ=-Z—- N5
ended 31 March 2018: ZA=t-HL
FEZEREE:
Profit for the year FRER - - - - - - 516099 516,009
Other comprehensive income  Ef2E N & - - (365) 2,606 - - - 2,241
Total comprehensive income ~ FRN2ENRLE
for the year - - (365) 2,606 - - 516,099 518,340
Dividend paid during the year  F AR H1IR 5 27(0)(i) - - - - - - (81,456)  (81,456)
Shares issued under the share R E B RiE: 2|
option scheme BITHORG 27(c) 90 343 - - - (46) - 387
Transfer of reserve upon lapse of 85 R % S /4 B &
share options G - - - - - (896) 896 -
At 31 March 2018 R-B-N\%
ZA=+-H 509,189 738,020 15 3977 (20,000) 7,399 1,398,362 2,636,962
At 1 April 2018 RZB-NEMA-H 509,189 738,020 15 3,977 (20,000) 7,399 1,398,362 2,636,962
First adoption of HKFRS 9 BERRRERNBRE
#8205 - — - 67 - - 3,581 (396)
Adjusted balance at 1 April 2018 R=Z—-N\EMA—H
BEREH 509,189 738,020 15 - (20,000) 7,399 1,401,943 2,636,566
Changes in equity for the year Z-F- N5
ended 31 March 2019: ZR=t+-HL
FEVRREE:
Profit for the year EREF - - = - - - 440928 440,928
Other comprehensive income ~ H 12 | W - - 250 - - - - 250
Total comprehensive income  ER2ARRLE
for the year - - 250 - - - 440,928 441,178
Dividend paid during the year — F AR B8 27 (b)) = = = = = - (154/454)  (154,454)
Transfer of reserve upon lapse of & [ 1 & 2 /2 8 &
share options B - - - - - (7,399) 7,399 -
At 31 March 2019 RZB-h#
=B=t+-H 509,189 738,020 265 - (20,000) - 1,695816 2,923,290

The notes on pages 119 to 223 form part of these financial SFE1195E 2238 v M T BRIt S EIRK E p&B
b2

statements.

o

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 at 1 April 2018. Under /it - AKBEER - \FWNA —BHVHKERSE
the transitions method chosen, comparative information is not BETEMEERFEOS - RIBFTEENBES

restated. See note 3.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
mERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE_ZT-NF=ZA=+T—-—BLEFECAETIR)

Operating activities ReEFTH

Cash generated from/(used in) operations 4% % 2 & F718 /(FT )

e 20(b) 4,645,560 (2,905,250)

Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BENEBMNEM (107,389) (42,509)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BESETERE,(FFA)

operating activities HEeFEE 4,538,171 (2,947,755)
Investing activities RETEH
Purchase of available-for-sale securities & & 7] f $ & & 5% = (274,973)
Purchase of intangible assets BERERTVAE (5,600) (13,120)
Proceeds from disposal of HETHIEERE

available-for-sale securities Ffr 18 IR = 234,159
Purchase of financial assets at fair value B EEAFETAEBZRZ

through profit or loss TREE (94,311) -
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets & & A FEET ABz= 2

at fair value through profit or loss S HEEFMS A 141,951 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BENEZHE

plant and equipment Fr 15 5078 103 4
Proceeds from disposal of held for HEFE j%f ERBKRE

trading investment Fr 18 T - 2,338
Proceeds from redemption of intangible & 0] £ 2 ﬁ EFTS A

assets 600 —
Payment for purchase of property, BEME BEK

plant and equipment BB (36,375) (15,629)
Dividend received B AR B 1,632 232
Interest received B IF B 141,944 86,167
Net cash generated from investing RETHFEBERESFE

activities 149,944 19,178
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
LERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HEZZ-NF=ZA=1+—HLEFEUABTIIR)

Financing activities MEES

(Repayment of)/Proceeds from bank loans 1T E R (B3%)

{8 ZE (4,705,294) 3,490,731

Proceeds from amount due to a related FER—EEEQRRE

company KIE 200,076 —
Dividend paid 2B (154,454) (81,456)
Interest paid B FE (140,600) (166,980)
Proceeds from exercise of share options ~ 771# B i #E FT 15 70 1A - 387
Net cash (used in)/generated from BMETE(FFA) e

financing activities ReFE (4,800,272) 3,242,682
Net (decrease)/increaseincashand BRERBELSEEY

cash equivalents CR ) /& nF 5 (112,157) 314,105

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April REWA—-AZHBEER

ReZ%EY 511,887 162,903
Effect of foreign exchange rates EXSH 2 E
changes 1,524 34,879
Cash and cash equivalents at R=ZA=+—HzZEERK
31 March ReEEY 20(a) 401,254 511,887

The notes on pages 119 to 223 form part of these financial HF119F 2238 7 M T AL Z 0 KR Kk H 2
statements. v

o

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 at 1 April 2018. Under /it - A& BEER T —\FWUE —HVBERSE

the transitions method chosen, comparative information is not B SR ERFIN c RIBFTEENBES
restated. See note 3. EAREEWEEINLBRER o RHES -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B = EEBI - LBITTIHIR)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited
(“the Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 4 August 2009 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.
The registered office of the Company is P.O. Box 31119
Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman lIslands. The consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities and other particulars of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 21 to the financial
statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments
to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a) Statement of compliance (Continued)

— Amendments to HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

— HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

— HK(IFRIC) — Int 22, Foreign currency
transactions and advance consideration

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period, except for the amendments
to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with negative
compensation which have been adopted at the same
time as HKFRS 9.

The Group has been impacted by HKFRS 9 in relation
to classification of financial assets and measurement
of credit losses. The adoption of HKFRS 15 and
HK(IFRIC) — Int 22 does not have any significant
impact on the financial position and the performance
of the Group. Details of the changes in accounting
policies are discussed in note 3(a) for HKFRS 9, note
3(b) for HKFRS 15 and note 3(c) for HK(IFRIC) — Int
22.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis,
except that certain financial instruments are stated
at their fair value in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 3(a).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs require management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the year in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that year, or in the year of the revision and future
years if the revision affects both current and future
years.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Basis of consolidation

(i)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. When assessing whether the Group
has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases. Intra-group balances and
transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intragroup transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated
at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(h)(i))
unless the investment is classified as held for
sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(ii)

Business combinations involving entities
under common control

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
combining entities or businesses as if they
had been combined from the date when the
combining entities or business first came under
the control of the controlling parties.

The net assets of the combining entities or
business are recognised at the carrying values
prior to the common control combination.

The consolidated financial statements include
the results of each of the combining entities
or business from the earliest date presented
or since the date when combining entities or
business first came under the control of the
controlling parties, where this is a shorter
period, regardless of the date of the common
control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated
financial statements are presented as if the
entities or businesses had been combined at
the previous reporting date or when they first
came under control of the controlling parties,
whichever is shorter.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see note 2(h)(ii)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-line
method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Shorter of the
unexpired term of
lease and 3 years

—  Leasehold improvements

—  Motor vehicles and yacht 5 years
—  Office equipment 5 years
—  Furniture and fixtures 5 years
—  Computers and software 5 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value,
if any, are reviewed annually.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Intangible assets

Intangible assets include club and school
debentures.

The intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
(where the estimated useful life is finite) and
impairment losses (see note 2(h)(ii)). Amortisation
begins when the asset is available for use, i.e. when
it is in the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended.
Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives as
follows:

—  Debentures are amortised over the unexpired
term

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful
lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion
that the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite
is reviewed annually to determine whether events
and circumstances continue to support the indefinite
useful life assessment for that asset. If they do
not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from
the date of change and in accordance with the policy
for amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives as
set out above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

(g)

Operating lease charges

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases. Where the Group has
the use of assets under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to profit or loss
in equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease terms, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Financial assets and financial liabilities

(A) Policy applicable from 1 April 2018

Investments

Investments held by the Group are classified
into one of the following measurement
categories:

— amortised cost, if the investment is held
for the collection of contractual cash
flows which represent solely payments
of principal and interest. Interest income
from the investment is calculated using
the effective interest method (see note 2(p)

(iil).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Financial assets and financial liabilities
(Continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018
(Continued)

Investments (Continued)

fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”) — recycling, if the
contractual cash flows of the investment
comprise solely payments of principal
and interest and the investment is held
within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both the collection of
contractual cash flows and sale. Changes
in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the
recognition in profit or loss of expected
credit losses, interest income (calculated
using the effective interest method) and
foreign exchange gains and losses.
When the investment is derecognised,
the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from
equity to profit or loss.

FVPL if the investment does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised
cost or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in
the fair value of the investment (including
interest) are recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Financial assets and financial liabilities
(Continued)

(B)

Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018

Investments in securities held for trading were
classified as financial assets measured at
FVPL. Any attributable transaction costs were
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the
end of each reporting period the fair value was
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss.

Dated debt securities that the Group had the
positive ability and intention to hold to maturity
were classified as held- to-maturity securities.
Held-to-maturity securities were stated at
amortised cost (for impairment see note 2(h)(i) —
policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018).

Investments which did not fall into any of the
above categories were classified as available-
for-sale financial assets. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value was remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the fair
value reserve (recycling). Dividend income from
equity investments and interest income from
debt securities calculated using the effective
interest method were recognised in profit or
loss in accordance with the policies set out in
notes 2(p)(v) and 2(p)(iii), respectively. Foreign
exchange gains and losses arising from debt
securities were also recognised in profit or loss.
When the investments were derecognised or
impaired (see note 2(h)— policy applicable prior
to 1 April 2018), the cumulative gain or loss
recognised in equity was reclassified to profit or
loss.

2

FESHHEE)

(g EMEERETRMEGH)

(B)

ZTE-NFHRA-BZAER
BB R

REBEEESFNREIR /IR
RFEFABENEE - EM
EIERXRZRANELFERR
FHER - AKEENERED
REHFAEAFE AMLEE
MEMEEREREERET
R -

AEBBBENE D MEREEF
ERIHBMNEBREKES &
RABERIHEE -BHEE
B HA 75 25 DA B 55 AR AN 7)) BR (8
R E - B2 W20 >0)—
—E-N\FMNA—HZHEA
MEE) -

B EEM— AR HES
BREEFAUHBEERES - &
EEEREREHARENGTE
NEE - BEEENTEANKE
ok B BT TE E Ath 2 H W E PR
R -WEGEEZPHRTFER
H(AUEE) SRR - LER
MEXIAFESHAOREFSFK
BWARMBEHHZEHFBWLA -
g 9 B3R BT EE2(p)(v) F12(p) (i)
FTEYMBRER=RER -
EHEELFNELREBHLERR
PR EZFRERILEER
FFHE(2HEMF20— =&
—N\ENA—RAZAERANK
B)F - RitlaE BB SR

BEEHMOBEEEE -

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2018/19



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B = EEBI - LBITTIHIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i) Credit loss from financial instruments

(A) Policy applicable from 1 April 2018

The Group recognises a loss allowance
for expected credit losses (ECLs) on the

following items:

financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash
and cash equivalents, trade and
other receivables, insurance and
reinsurance receivables, reinsurers’
share of outstanding claims and
loans to joint venture);

debt securities measured at FVOCI
(recycling); and

loan commitments issued, which are
not measured at FVPL.

Financial assets measured at fair value,
including units in bond funds, equity
securities measured at FVPL, equity
securities designated at FVOCI (non —
recycling) and derivative financial assets,
are not subject to the ECL assessment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 April 2018

(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses. Credit losses
are measured as the present value of
all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to
the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive).

For undrawn loan commitments, expected
cash shortfalls are measured as the
difference between (i) the contractual cash
flows that would be due to the Group if
the holder of the loan commitment draws
down on the loan and (i) the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive if the
loan is drawn down.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 April 2018

(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted using the following discount
rates where the effect of discounting is
material:

—  fixed-rate financial assets, accounts
receivable and other receivables:
effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;

— variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate; and

— loan commitments: current risk-free
rate adjusted for risks specific to the
cash flows.

The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 April 2018
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)
ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

12-month ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from
possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and

lifetime ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from all
possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which
the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables,
lease receivables and contract assets are
always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at
the reporting date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 April 2018

(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

For all other financial instruments
(including loan commitments issued),
the Group recognises a loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial instrument since
initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of
a financial instrument (including a loan
commitment) has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of default occurring
on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at
the date of initial recognition. In making
this reassessment, the Group considers
that a default event occurs when (i) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such
as realising security (if any is held); or (ii)
the financial asset is 90 days past due.
The Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RS BEB - ETIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 April 2018
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(Continued)

In particular,

the following information

is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

134

failure to make payments of principal
or interest on their contractually due
dates;

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial
instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results
of the debtor; and

existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the
debtor’s ability to meet its obligation
to the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Br iE SRR M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B %= & 5= A

2

BIBHEREBERLF | —F

C A TTEIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 April 2018

(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(Continued)

For loan commitments, the date of initial
recognition for the purpose of assessing
ECLs is considered to be the date that the
Group becomes a party to the irrevocable
commitment. In assessing whether there
has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition of a loan
commitment, the Group considers changes
in the risk of default occurring on the loan
to which the loan commitment relates.

Depending on the nature of the
financial instruments, the assessment
of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or
a collective basis. When the assessment
is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics, such
as past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting
date to reflect changes in the financial
instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL amount
is recognised as an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises
an impairment gain or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account, except
for investments in debt securities that are
measured at FVOCI (recycling), for which
the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
the fair value reserve (recycling).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RS BEB - ETIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 April 2018
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income on
credit-impaired financial assets

Interest income recognised in accordance
with note 2(p)(iii) is calculated based on
the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on the amortised cost
(i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset is
credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable
events:

136

significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter into bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation;
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Br iE SRR M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B %= & 5= A

2

BIBHEREBERLF | —F

C A TTEIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 April 2018

(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
on credit-impaired financial assets
(Continued)

— significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

— the disappearance of an active
market for a security because of
financial difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset is written off (either partially or in
full) to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally the
case when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that
was previously written off are recognised
as a reversal of impairment in profit or loss
in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RS BEB - ETIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018

Prior to 1 April 2018, an “incurred loss”
model was used to measure impairment
losses on financial assets not classified
as at FVPL (e.g. account and other
receivables, available-for-sale investments
and held for trading investments). Under
the “incurred loss” model, an impairment
loss was recognised only when there
was objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment
included:

138

significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

it becoming probable that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment in an
equity instrument below its cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B = EEBI - LBITTIHIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018
(Continued)
[f any such evidence existed, an
impairment loss was determined and
recognised as follows:

For account and other receivables
and other financial assets carried
at amortised cost, impairment loss
was measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective
interest rate, where the effect of
discounting was material. This
assessment was made collectively
where these financial assets shared
similar risk characteristics, such
as similar past due status, and
had not been individually assessed
as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which were
assessed for impairment collectively
were based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit
risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.
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B 7& SRR F &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RS BEB - ETIIR)

2
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018
(Continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount
of an impairment loss decreased
and the decrease could be linked
objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss was
reversed through profit or loss. A
reversal of an impairment loss was
only recognised to the extent that it
did not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in
prior years.

When the recovery of a trade debtor
or other financial assets carried
at amortised cost was considered
doubtful but not remote, associated
impairment losses were recorded
using an allowance account. When
the Group was satisfied that recovery
was remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable was written off against
the gross carrying amount of
those assets directly. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account
were reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of a mounts previously
written off directly were recognised in
profit or loss.

2

FESHHEE)

(hy EEFEREEREE)

) EWMIENFEBERE)

(B) =—ZFE—/VEMAF—HZE
BHYBFE (&)
MERERELEE
%W BER LD
imAB&EE L EFHE
BEERBRELED
=EMHEHE AER
BEZBDRES
BeREBENE
EHEETNEEE E
MEmEBBER
LWEFELIBER
ERCERCREN SR
EEEMHEENS
AT AR -

B R SH R AR 51 BR
M) FE U AR R Bk H b
EREEMNA KD
MK EE - B3 3EA]
BE 1E K RS - AHFE
BMEBRBXESER
EHEETHE - -EAX
SERRUWE A
BEMEERER KR
RN QCIR:op &
BFeERYEZSE
BEMKMEAARME-
H & U B2 AT Er A
EHEENBEERE
HHEERD - EH
EMEMBEHME
e OFREEY
HHORBEHERS
EER

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2018/19



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B = EEBI - LBITTIHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018
(Continued)

BIBHEREBERLF | —F

For available-for-sale investments,
the cumulative loss that had been
recognised in the fair value reserve
(recycling) was reclassified to
profit or loss. The amount of the
cumulative loss that was recognised
in profit or loss was the difference
between the acquisition cost (net
of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that
asset previously recognised in profit
or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in
profit or loss in respect of available-
for-sale equity securities were not
reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value
of such assets was recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses recognised in
profit or loss in respect of available-
for-sale debt securities were
reversed if the subsequent increase
in fair value could be objectively
related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses in
such circumstances were recognised
in profit or loss.
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B 7& SRR F &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RS BEB - ETIIR)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii)

142

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at each reporting date to identify
indications that the following assets may be
impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased.

—  property, plant and equipment; and

— intangible assets

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B %= & 5= A

2

C A TTEIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

()

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. A reversal of impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
periods. Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in the period
in which the reversals are recognised.

Account and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract

asset.
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B 7& SRR F &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RS BEB - ETIIR)

2

144

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

)

(k)

@)

Account and other receivables (Continued)

Except for accounts receivable arising from cash
clients, margin clients and subscriptions of new
shares in IPO which are stated at financial assets
measured at FVPL upon the initial adoption of
HKFRS 9 at 1 April 2018; receivables are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method
less allowance for credit losses (see note 2(h)(i)).

Accounts payable and other payables

Accounts payable and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, and demand deposits with banks. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
cash flow statement. Cash and cash equivalents
are assessed for expected credit losses (ECL) in
accordance with the policy set out in 2(h).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees.

Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds
as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
incurred.

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in a share
option reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at the grant date using the Black-
Scholes model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

Where the Company enters into equity-
settled share-based payment arrangements
involving employees of subsidiaries, the cost is
recognised in “Investment in subsidiaries” and
credited to the “Share option reserve” over the
vesting period. The equity amount is recognised
in the capital reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is included in the amount
recognised in share capital for the shares
issued) or the vested option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused
tax credits.
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B RS R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B = EEBI - LBITTIHIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 XE&€xBFE (&)
(Continued)
(n) Income tax (Continued) (n) FTBH(E)

148

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at each reporting date and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets
are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Income tax (Continued)

(0)

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on a net
basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer, at the
amount of promised consideration to which the
Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Brokerage commission income

Brokerage commission income is recognised
on a trade date basis when the relevant
transactions are executed. Volume rebate to
customers is recognised to the extent that it
is highly probable that a significant reversal in
the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the uncertainty associated
with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved. Where the customer is given rights
to additional discounted or free services in
the future as a result of paying brokerage
commission, an appropriate amount of the
brokerage commission income is deferred
and recognised when those material rights are
utilised by the customers or expire.

Income from bullion trading
Income from bullion trading is recognised when
the related services are rendered.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

Handling and settlement fee income
Handling and settlement fee income are
recognised when the related services are
rendered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

(q)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(v) Dividends
Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

(vi) Investment trading
Income from investment including realised fair
value gains or losses on trading investment on a
trade date basis.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items, including goodwill arising on
consolidation of foreign operations acquired on or
after 1 January 2005, are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange reserve.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(@)

(r)

(s)

152

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to
that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in
other fiduciary capacities that result in the holding
or placing of assets on behalf of its customers.
These assets arising thereon are excluded from the
consolidated financial statements, as they are not
assets of the Group.

Related parties

() A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;

(2) has significant influence over the Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parents.

(i)  An entity is related to the Group is any of the
following conditions applies:

(1)  The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(2)  One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).
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B RS R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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2
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Related parties (Continued)

(if)

An entity is related to the Group is any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(3)

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third party.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (i).

A person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of the Group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with

the entity.
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B RS R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RS BEB - ETIIR)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes
of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

154

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including
the amendments to HKFRS 9, prepayment
features with negative compensation

Under the transition methods chosen, the Group
recognises cumulative effect of the initial adoption of
HKFRS 9 as an adjustment to the opening balance
of equity at 1 April 2018. Comparative information
is not restated. The following table gives a summary
of the opening balance adjustments recognised
for each line item in the consolidated statement of
financial position that has been impacted by HKFRS
9 and also the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities under HKAS 39 and reconciles the carrying
amounts of those financial assets and financial
liabilities determined in accordance with HKAS 39 to
those determined in accordance with HKFRS 9:
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(Br = HIEBIN - ABTIIR)

3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 EHEEFH )

(Continued)

(a) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including (a) BEEUMKREERNFIEI&HMT
the amendments to HKFRS 9, prepayment Bl BREEBMEHREERNFE9
features with negative compensation BT REEENEAER
(Continued) 2%&lE)

Impact on initial adoption of HKFRS 9
DREREENERERAEIF 2 ¥ E
At 31 March At 1 April
2018  Reclassification ~ Remeasurement 2018

RZB-N\%§

EFNNE BiitE MA-R
$000 $'000 $000
T Tr r

Financial assets carried at RBERSTIGE EREE
amortised cost

Current g
Other receivables, deposits and HpRWFE ek

prepayments e 27,347 = (27) 27,320
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEN 511,887 - (264) 511,623
Accounts receivable (note i MR 3y 2ii) 11,885,526 (10,754,095) (183) 1,131,248
Financial assets carried at FVPL QA FEFABEZFR

Rz EREE

Non-current ERE
Financial assets classified as REA A G ERF305

available-for-sale under PERIHREE L

HKAS 39 (note i) CREEMN) 61,809 (61,809) = -
Current g

Financial assets at fair value through  BATEFARH S BEE

profit or l0ss - 61,809 - 61,809
Accounts receivable YR 3 = 10,754,095 = 10,754,095
Other assets Ht g &

Deferred tax assets BRREEE 4,029 = 78 4,107
Financial liabilities carried at DEAFEFARSZ

FVPL RNz eRER
Held for trading investments BEEERREE (420) = = (420)
Reserves B 1,389,753 - (396) 1,389,357
Total equity EniE 2,636,962 - (396) 2,636,566
Note i:  Under HKAS 39, equity securities not held for Bt BBEEE % il ﬁ- 2l %39:?—;,% C ¥

trading were classified as available-for-sale FRIERBERR ZBAEH g
financial assets. These equity securities are NBRANHESHMEE - %
classified as at fair value through profit or loss FRAEF RIS AR ERR
(“FVPL") under HKFRS 9, unless they are eligible EAREEE ﬁ RIRAFEE A
for and designated at fair value through other H At 2 [ 5 BRIREER
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) by the Group. MR ERNFRSERIEA

FE AR -
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 EHEEFH )

(Continued)

(a)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including (a) BRVBREENFIRIEMT

the amendments to HKFRS 9, prepayment Bl SEEBMBERESEANEY

features with negative compensation HZBIITROBEENRAER

(Continued) BElE)

Note ii: Accounts receivable arising from cash clients, Bragi: RZTE—N\FMA—BYIHBE
margin clients and subscriptions of new shares in RAEEMBHREEMEOWRE
IPO were reclassified to financial assets measured KHEBREEFS HERBRPMER
at FVPL upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 9 at 1 By A AR ETR Y EWE
SIS HEEHHOBEANRATER

ANBHEZ T AHBZEMEE -

The following table summarises the impact of TREMEEER BN B REEL
transition to HKFRS 9 on retained profits and FORER_ZT—N\FHEA—BZR
reserves at 1 April 2018. Bark#ezwE -

Retained profits R B8 % R

Transferred from investment revaluation HEBRBUZATEFABRZZ
reserve relating to financial assets now FTRFAECERMEEY
measured at FVPL HEBHREEER 3,977
Recognition of additional expected credit BRRBHEKATAEZEREEZ
losses on financial assets measured at HINBEEEEIE
amortised cost (474)
Deferred tax iR JE Fi 18 78
Net increase in retained profits at 1 April 2018 R—_ZE—N\EMNA—RH >
IR 4 F 2 38 0 F 58 3,581
Investment revaluation reserve REEGHRE
$°000
Fx
Transferred to retained profits relating to EETABERB U AFE
financial assets now measured at FVPL FAEBRZARAEZ
CREE RSB & T (3,977)
Net decrease in investment revaluation R-ZE—NFWA—HZ
reserve at 1 April 2018 REEGHRBRHE2RL T (3,977)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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3

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including
the amendments to HKFRS 9, prepayment
features with negative compensation
(Continued)

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes
to previous accounting policies and the transition
approach are set out below:

Classification of financial assets and financial
liabilities

HKFRS 9 categories financial assets into three
principal classification categories: measured
at amortised cost, at FVOCI and FVPL. These
supersede HKAS 39’s categories of held-to-maturity
investments, loans and receivables, available-for-
sale financial assets and financial assets measured
at FVPL. The classification of financial assets
under HKFRS 9 is based on the business model
under which the financial asset is managed and its
contractual cash flow characteristics.

Non-equity investments held by the Group are
classified into one of the following measurement
categories:

— amortised cost, if the investment is held for
the collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and
interest. Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest method;

—  FVOCI — recycling, if the contractual cash flows
of the investment comprise solely payments
of principal and interest and the investment is
held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both the collection of contractual
cash flows and sale. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition in profit or loss
of expected credit losses, interest income
(calculated using the effective interest method)
and foreign exchange gains and losses. When
the investment is derecognised, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income is
recycled from equity to profit or loss; or

BIBHERMEBMERLA | —T—/)/\/ —NEFEFR

3

SHHEEH #)

BERVBREERNFIRIEMT
Al BREEBVBREEANFI
SZAEETT R @ RS 4 Y 1R AT K
BELE)

FIEgtBRREFHIUEERTENUAR
BRETARZE—SFHBHINOT ¢

TRHEEREMEBEZDAE

BEVBEHRERFIOREEREE
DR=ZKEH - RBEHEKAE
MR FEFARMEZERSE 2T
AFFERNREBRAFEFABRZS
AT -ZENERRBTBGFE
AFERHFHEINHRRE  EFXR
FEW IR A HHESTREE RN
BAOFEAABRSEZTAFEZS
MEEZHR - BEMHREER
FORTERMEEZOBDNERERE
EMEECEBRUNAEANRS

TR

AEBHAZIFBRARERANUT
Hep—fEFF 285 -

— REHEALN HEARERHR

WHEHNRER(EEELS
RFMBHMFR) - WEMRBHE
WAERERMNE LTS

— BRAFEFARM2ERS —

EE HREZAENRER
mEBAEAERMNEMNZK - B
REDRAKZBERSHNES
MEHEERENZ EBKER
A RFEEFREMEME
W R - HEFEREEER
B WA (ERERFN B A
BIARIMNES & K EIRNE
mER  ERIERRER -
REMEERDRA 2SR
DS EEEE X

157



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RS BEB - ETIIR)

3

158

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including
the amendments to HKFRS 9, prepayment
features with negative compensation
(Continued)

Classification of financial assets and financial
liabilities (Continued)

— FVPL, if the investment does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised cost
or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the fair
value of the investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss. Certain accounts
receivable are classified as FVPL because the
investment is held within a business model
which is neither held to collect contractual cash
flows nor held both to collect contractual cash
flows and to sell financial assets. This includes
assets which are to manage on a fair value
basis in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy, and information provided
to key management personnel is provided on
that basis.

An investment in equity securities is classified as
financial assets at FVPL unless the equity investment
is not held for trading purposes and on initial
recognition of the investment the Group makes an
election to designate the investment at FVOCI (non-
recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair value
are recognised in other comprehensive income. Such
elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment
meets the definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is made, the
amount accumulated in other comprehensive income
remains in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until
the investment is disposed of. At the time of disposal,
the amount accumulated in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) is transferred to retained profits.
It is not recycled through profit or loss. Dividends
from an investment in equity securities, irrespective
of whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI (non-
recycling), are recognised in profit or loss as other
income.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including
the amendments to HKFRS 9, prepayment
features with negative compensation
(Continued)

Classification of financial assets and financial
liabilities (Continued)

Under HKFRS 9, derivatives embedded in contracts
where the host is a financial asset in the scope of the
standard are not separated from the host. Instead,
the hybrid instrument as a whole is assessed for
classification.

Opening balances adjustment
Credit losses

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS
39 with the expected credit loss (“ECL”) model.
The ECL model requires an ongoing measurement
of credit risk associated with a financial asset and
therefore recognises ECLs earlier than under the
“incurred loss” accounting model in HKAS 39.

The Group applies the new ECL model to financial
assets measured at amortised cost (including cash
and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, other
receivables, deposits and prepayments).

Financial assets measured at fair value, including
equity securities measured at FVPL, derivative
financial assets and accounts receivable measured at
FVPL, are not subject to the ECL assessment.

Details of the accounting policy are discussed in note

2(h)(i).
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including
the amendments to HKFRS 9, prepayment
features with negative compensation
(Continued)

As a result of this change in accounting policy, the
Group has recognised additional ECLs amounting
to $474,000, which decreased retained profits by
$396,000 and increased gross deferred tax assets by
$78,000 at 1 April 2018.

The following table reconciles the closing loss
allowance determined in accordance with HKAS 39
as at 31 March 2018 with the opening loss allowance
determined in accordance with HKFRS 9 as at 1 April
2018.

3
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(a) BEAMBREEUFIRIEEMT

Al BREEBUBBREEANFI
2 BRI R RS AR AT
wBElE)
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$’000
Tt

Additional credit loss recognised

ATEER_-_ZT—-/\FHEOA—H

at 1 April 2018 on: WRZEIMZEEIE
— Other receivables — H b fE W Sk IE 27
— Cash and cash equivalents —ReRBEEEEY 264
— Accounts receivable — FE U BR 3R 183
Loss allowance at 1 April 2018 R-E—NFOA—BZEEEE 474
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3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including
the amendments to HKFRS 9, prepayment
features with negative compensation
(Continued)

Transition

Changes in accounting policies resulting from
the adoption of HKFRS 9 have been applied
retrospectively, except as described below:

— Information relating to comparative periods has
not been restated. Differences in the carrying
amounts of financial assets resulting from
the adoption of HKFRS 9 are recognised in
retained profits and reserves as at 1 April 2018.
Accordingly, the information presented for
2017/18 continues to be reported under HKAS
39 and thus may not be comparable with the
current period.

— The following assessment have been made
on the basis of the facts and circumstances
that existed at 1 April 2018 (the date of initial
adoption of HKFRS 9 by the Group): the
determination of the business model within
which a financial asset is held.

— I, at the date of initial adoption, the assessment
of whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition would have
involved undue cost or effort, a lifetime ECL has
been recognised for that financial instrument.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework
for recognising revenue and some costs from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS
18, Revenue, which covered revenue arising from
sale of goods and rendering of services.

The Group has elected to use the cumulative
effect transition method. Therefore, comparative
information has not been restated and continues to
be reported under HKAS 18. As allowed by HKFRS
15, the Group has applied the new requirements only
to contracts that were not completed before 1 April
2018.

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes
on previous accounting policies are set out below:

Timing of revenue recognition

Previously, revenue arising from the provision of
services is recognised when the service is rendered.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the
customer obtains control of the promised good
or service in the contract. This may be at a single
point in time or over time. HKFRS 15 identifies the
following three situations in which control of the
promised good or service is regarded as being
transferred over time:

A.  When the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance, as the entity performs;

B. When the entity’s performance creates or
enhances an asset (for example work in
progress) that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced;

C. When the entity’s performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the entity and
the entity has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

(¢)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do
not fall into any of these 3 situations, then under
HKFRS 15 the entity recognises revenue for the
sale of that good or service at a single point in time,
being when control has passed. Transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership is only one of the indicators
that is considered in determining when the transfer of
control occurs.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have any
material impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

HK (IFRIC) — Int 22, Foreign currency
transactions and advance consideration

This interpretation provides guidance on determining
“the date of the transaction” for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income
(or part of it) arising from a transaction in which an
entity receives or pays advance consideration in a
foreign currency.

The interpretation clarifies that “the date of the
transaction” is the date on initial recognition of
the non-monetary asset or liability arising from the
payment or receipt of advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance
of recognising the related item, the date of the
transaction for each payment or receipt should be
determined in this way. The adoption of HK(IFRIC)
— Int 22 does not have any material impact on the
financial position and the performance of the Group.
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REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are securities broking,
margin financing, commodities and futures broking, bullion
trading and leveraged foreign exchange trading.

The amount of each significant category of revenue is as
follows:

e A

AEEXEXBRBSFEL  FREE -
FAmEkHEREL E2BXZUNRERA
SNER B o

EEZRMIBATHE

Revenue from contracts with ERMKHREELF155H
customers within HEAZEFEHAKRA
the scope of HKFRS 15
Brokerage commission Ko me 496,288 536,016
Revenue from other sources HgRIFEWA
Dealing income from bullion trading EeBRIHEA 10,489 19,086
Dealing income from leveraged foreign BEERAIMNER Z WA
exchange trading 655 —
Interest income from margin financing FRaEM Bk A 301,462 360,058
Interest income from IPO financing BAAREERENBEKA 21,411 29,280
334,017 408,424
830,305 944,440

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using the
cumulative effect method. Under this method, the
comparative information is not restated and was prepared in
accordance with HKAS 18 (see note 3(b)).

The Group’s customer base is diversified and no customer
had transactions which exceeded 10% of the Group’s
revenue.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 and does not disclose
information about the remaining performance obligation
that have original expected durations of one year or less.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(Br = HIEBIN - ABTIIR)

5 OTHER INCOME 5 Hitls=

Interest income from

MBWAKE

Financial assets carried at REBEARIEZEMEE
amortised cost
— Authorised institutions — RAHIE 117,135 51,985
— Cash clients —HEERF - 33,816
— Others — HAh 1,057 366
118,192 86,167
Financial assets carried at FVPL UEAFETFTABREZAR
JIRzeMEE
— Cash clients A= 23,752 —
141,944 86,167
Handling and settlement fees FRERZEEER 63,849 75,294
Dividend income f& B M A 1,641 232
Sundry income HIE A 5,006 2,721
212,440 164,414

OTHER NET (LOSS)/GAIN

Realised (loss)/gain from

6 EH#(BE) "k

B (EE)EXE

— Available-for-sale securities — O HEEFH - 11,371
— Held for trading investments —RHEEEARKE = 2,338
— Financial assets at fair value through — BAFEFABRZZ
profit or loss SEMEE (4,124) -
Unrealised loss from REREEkRE
— Held for trading investments — REEERABKRE - (420)
— Financial assets at fair value through ~ — QA FEEHAEBZ 2
profit or loss TRLEE (889) —
(5,013) 13,289
Net foreign exchange gain HNE IR 25 F B8 4,473 34,065
Gain/(Loss) on disposals of property, HEWME BMERREBKZT
plant and equipment (E18) 102 (378)
Error trades arising from dealings ERRS (55) (259)
Others HAth (4,191) (470)
(4,684) 46,247
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7 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 7 BR#BAIER
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: bR & AT & B 2 H0BR T 5% I8 ¢

(a) Finance costs (a) BEERAK
Interest expense on AT EENERAX
— Bank loans for IPO financing —BEALAABEEREZ
RITER 16,884 22,741
— Other bank loans — HMRITER 112,758 140,678
— Loans from related companies — REBERRER 9,888 2,689
— Others — HAth 1,070 872
140,600 166,980
(b) Staff costs (b) EIRZK
Salaries, allowances and benefits in e  RMEREWEF
kind 102,756 96,841
Discretionary bonuses BV IS IE 4T 29,676 38,295
Contributions to Mandatory BHESHR
Provident Fund 3,901 3,801
136,333 138,937
(c) Other operating expenses (c) HtEEMX
Advertising and promotion expenses EEMTEMRAX 7,983 8,739
Auditors’ remuneration ZEETN & 1,657 1,619
Commission, handling and Brfe FEEBR
settlement expenses EHEBR 83,103 77,662
Information and communication B EBAAX
expenses 38,840 32,619
Legal and professional fees FEREREXEER 3,921 3,486
Operating lease payments — O R OR NN
property rentals — MEMES 65,198 60,516
Rates and building management fees EMREFERE 5,918 4,522
Miscellaneous expenses AR 36,484 40,661
243,104 229,824
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(B S BHEBI - KB TIIR)

8§ INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8

RETHWBERZAEHR

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income represents:

(a) HEEEWFHERZBIIAE

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax

MHE —FEMNEH

Provision for the year F N B 54,776 85,876
(Over)/Under-provision in respect of BEFE(BE)

prior years TREE (520) 320

54,256 86,196

Deferred tax IE FE B 1E
Origination and reversal of temporary T ER 2 RR LD

differences (note 26(b)(1)) (Kt aE26)0) 4,001 (1,703)
Total tax charge for the year FABIEZ LB 58,257 84,493
On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative RZZE—-—NF=ZA=+—8  FH

Council passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment)
(No. 7) Bill 2017 (“Bill”) which introduces the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed
into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on
the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime, the first HK$2,000,000 of profits of the
qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%.

Accordingly, starting from the current year, the Hong
Kong profits tax is calculated at 8.25% on the first
HK$2,000,000 of the estimated assessable profits
and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits

above HK$2,000,000.
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(K= EEAIN -

VAR TTIR)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (Continued)

e

EHEBBERZAEHR#)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (@ HZEZHWEXRZBIERE @ (&)
comprehensive income represents: (Continued)
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the HE_Z-NF=ZA=+—HILHF
year ended 31 March 2019 is calculated at 16.5% fZ%E/% MEHBREBRFEANGE
(2018: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits FERB R F165% (=T — N\ F -
for the year, taking into account a reduction granted 16.5%) st » W B R EBHRIT
by the Hong Kong SAR Government of 75% of the HEBRRR=_E—NEZE-—NLFRH
tax payable for the year of assessment 2018-19 FEERETEXBEREMSTERD
subject to a maximum reduction of $20,000 for each 75% * BA20,0007t B ER(ZZE— N
business (2018: a maximum reduction of $30,000 % ¢ PA30,000t R LR ZEBE R
was granted for the year of assessment 2017-18 and ZE—+tE-)\FRBUEERL -
was taken into account in calculating the provision for WEBHFAZSE—NFEZEE) -
2018).

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) RERABERGFEZHERXHES

BRRES

accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

Profit before taxation & &4 BT S 499,185 600,592
Notional tax on profit before taxation HERARMBEERREF 2

calculated at the rates applicable to BMEFEZBRFA

profits in the countries concerned i ) & FE 82,200 99,098
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TT?D %Rﬁﬁﬁszﬂ%%; 3,129 933
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BEARBRKE 2 BBEE (24,573) (11,978)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not AERAREBAHEEEZ

recognised Mg E 63 106
Utilisation of tax loss carried forward BAEAE 2 HIEEIE (19) —
(Over)/Under provision in respect of BEFE(BE),/

prior years TREME (520) 320
Others Hth (2,023) (3,986)
Total tax charge for the year FARBEX L HEE 58,257 84,493
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9 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 9 EEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 2 BB BCR AE ) FE383(1) 1§ KA 7
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 (BBEEEFNRER)BRA)FE2E T#E
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits ZEEMeWT :

of Directors) Regulations are as follows:

2019
“g2-N%F

Salaries, Contributions

allowances to Mandatory

Directors’ and benefits Discretionary Provident
fees in kind bonuses Fund Total

e RMER

Ezhd BENEA MERL BESER @t
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i T Tr T r
Yip Mow Lum B - 7,783 814 - 8,507
Hui Yik Bun FEW - 2,093 3,720 18 5,831
Chan Wing Shing, Wilson Bk 3 - 906 304 18 1,228
Yu Yun Kong L 231 - - - 231
Szeto Wai Sun A& 200 - - - 200
Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph & EE 169 - - - 169
Total Fo 600 10,782 4,838 36 16,256

ZE-N\E
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to Mandatory
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary Provident
fees in kind bonuses
EEF Uk EY KEEa
$'000 $'000
T ] T
Yip Mow Lum ERM - 6,965 762 2 7,729
Hui Yik Bun TEW - 1,950 2,422 18 4,390
Chan Wing Shing, Wilson Bk - 860 230 18 1,108
Yu Yun Kong Gl 220 - - - 220
Szeto Wai Sun Gk i 191 = = = 191
Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph REE 161 - - - 161
Total @zt 572 9,775 3,414 38 13,799
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B RS R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B = HIEBIN - ABTIIR)

9 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

No director received any emoluments from the Group as
an inducement to join or leave the Group or compensation
for loss of office and, no director waived or has agreed to
waive any emoluments.

10 INDIVIDUAL WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Included in the emoluments of the five individuals with
the highest emoluments were the emoluments of 2
(2018: 2) Directors. The emoluments of Directors have
been disclosed in note 9 above. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the other 3 (2018: 3) individuals
are as follows:

9

10

EEME )

BMEEFAAKEEEEAMES - RN
BBAASE R ABERME  TE
EEMEXRBEREEMME

REHMAL

hEFMEsnNEETEEMA(ZE
—NF WMRB)EF -EEFMMCONLEX
MEZORE -BRT=R(ZF—-N\F: =
FIANLTZHEBBMOT ¢

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e  EEMEEWMEF 4,135 3,199
Discretionary bonuses BV IS IE 4T 6,281 1,410
Contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund 58 & & it & 50 54

10,466 4,663

The emoluments of the 3 (2018: 3) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following bands:

Nil to $1,000,000 = £1,000,0007T

ZZB(ZE-NF ZRIRSFMA
TZMENFUTEHE :

2019
—E-n%E

2018
—E-N\F
$'000

Tt

$°000
T

$1,000,001 to $2,000,000
$2,000,001 to $3,000,000
$3,000,001 to $4,000,000
$4,000,001 to $5,000,000
$5,000,001 to $6,000,000
$6,000,001 to $7,000,000

1,000,001 7t £2,000,0007T 2 3
2,000,001 7T £3,000,0007T - -
3,000,001 7T £4,000,0007T - -
4,000,001 7T £5,000,0007T - -
5,000,001 7T £6,000,0007T - -
6,000,001 7T £7,000,0007T

No emoluments have been paid to these individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the financial year
(2018: Nil).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(Br = HIEBIN - ABTIIR)

11 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 11

Reclassification adjustments relating to components of the
other comprehensive income

Hit 2 E WK &=

REMRERSERBHEBOERH
B

Available-for-sale securities: AEEERES -
Changes in fair value recognised during AFEEEERAFENE
the year - 18,977
Reclassification adjustments for amounts # A Bz H) & 58 & 3
transferred to profit or loss: DEPE
— gain on disposal — HER kR - (11,371)
Net movement in investment revaluation  AEEEEM 2 EKFE R
reserve during the year recognised in BROREEGHHEFTEY
other comprehensive income - 2,606
12 EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 EREF
Basic earnings per share BRELXAEF

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

SRERRHRUATEARARAA
FE 1435 I B DA 9F P9 B 347 % B IR 0 AR
FEBHE -

Earnings 2 A
Profit for the year attributable to owners of KEE AR A G HHB A

the Company ($°000) FEM & A (For) 440,928 516,099
Number of shares % 17 8 B
Weighted average number of ordinary BETEBERY

shares in issue (in thousands) mneEFEHE(FR) 1,697,296 1,697,153
Basic earnings per share (cents) BREKREF (1) 25.98 30.41
Diluted earnings per share REER R

There was no dilutive potential ordinary share during the
year (2018: nil) and diluted earnings per share is therefore
equal to basic earnings per share.

BIBHERMEBMERLA | —T—/)/\/ —NEFEFR

ERLEEEEEEEBR(ZE N
Fom) Al SRESEANAZRNG
REAEF o
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(B =B EHIN

CAETTIIR)

13 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which

are organised by business lines.

In a manner consistent

with the way in which information is reported internally
to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following three
reportable segments. No operating segments have been
aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

(a)

172

Securities broking — provision of broking services
in securities traded in Hong Kong and selected
overseas markets, and margin financing services to
those broking clients.

Commodities and futures broking — provision
of broking services in commodities and futures
contracts traded in Hong Kong and overseas
markets.

Bullion trading — provision of trading services in
bullion contracts traded in overseas markets.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s senior executive management monitors the
results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets and
current assets with the exception of unallocated
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include liabilities
and accruals attributable to the activities of the
individual segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
earnings before finance costs and taxes (“EBIT”).
To arrive at EBIT, the Group’s earnings are further
adjusted for items not specifically attributed
to individual segments, such as corporate
administration costs.

13

okt

PR &

&P

AEBIZREKBERE S DM EERLE
c AEBLHEBRERNERKRFFHER
REBSSITHREEAERNDZ2RER
— Bz AR2IATZEAREDEL - 4
AR EDEIABRK TR REDE o

S

— RBHFELL —RENFBEREEEIN
rhiE'm’t EHRERE R mEa
EFRHETERMERY -

ISES
EaH

— BmkHE&L —RHRE)
EANTSEEE 2B mEE
ZRBER -

\

— E2BXH —RERBIHEHEE
ETBAANNR IR -
EERER

(a) ZEBEE -

7%%%”*5%5%&5’\%%%3?%%@5

ER AKEEERTHREEABRR
MTLE% B mME D MEMEE
BoBEENMAME:
DHREEREMBEREERRD
BE WRAIEZRAREERI

MAEESKRENSBEBEMRLZ

7
BENEFEE -

TMEDBREFNRKB A EZE
ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ}ﬁz$&mlﬁ;auZQ%‘J
(TEBIT]) » A 15 HEBITH » A& &
%%IJEMLET EEBEB S 2E
B (AR TR A) fE L it — 2

%% o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(Br = HIEBIN - ABTIIR)

13 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 13 2EHRE2)
(b) Segment information (b) ZHESR
2019
ZE-NF
Commodities
Securities  and futures Bullion
broking broking trading
ARk
FHLL HERE BL2EBR3
$000 $'000 $000
Tr Tr Tr
Revenue from customers: REEPZMA
— Brokerage commission —&RRe 284,890 213,381 - 498,271
— Dealing income a1 ON - - 10,489 10,489
— Interest income from margin financing — 7 & g & 5 8 A 301,323 139 - 301,462
— Interest income from IPO financing ~ — BRAREERE
FSWA 21,411 - - 21,411
Reportable segment revenue MHEDBRA 607,624 213,520 10,489 831,633
Interest income from cash clients BeEPHMBUMA 23,752 - - 23,752
Other interest income HinF 8 WA 100,454 17,009 593 118,056
Handling and settlement fees FEERKEER 63,839 9 1 63,849
Reportable segment profit (EBIT) AHE 5 B FEBIT) 544,256 86,333 5,639 636,228
Amortisation and depreciation FRNEHERTE
for the year (18,429) (35) - (18,464)
Finance costs BB (149,696) (11) - (149,707)
Additions to non-current segment assets £RRE 2 FERE D BEE
during the year 41,975 - - 41,975
Reportable segment assets IRESBEE 7,067,763 797,088 86,111 7,950,962
Reportable segment liabilities ARESBERE (4,446,144) (478,299) (73,222)  (4,997,665)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B = HIEBIN - ABTIIR)

13 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 13 D\ E )
(b) Segment information (Continued) b) DEER (&)
2018
—B-N\F
Commodities
Securities  and futures Bullion
broking broking trading
#m &
BEHER HERR Z¢EBRSH
$'000 $'000 $000
T T T
Revenue from customers: RERPZMA
— Brokerage commission —BEfe 377,828 158,403 - 536,231
— Dealing income LN - - 19,086 19,086
— Interest income from margin financing — 7 & g & F 8 Ik A 359,666 392 - 360,058
— Interest income from IPO financing ~— BRAREERE
MEBA 29,280 - - 29,280
Reportable segment revenue THREDHEA 766,774 158,795 19,086 944,655
Interest income from cash clients ReRPFBKA 33,816 - - 33,816
Other interest income Hip R BHMA 46,806 5,409 115 52,330
Handling and settlement fees FRERKEEER 75,282 10 2 75,294
Reportable segment profit (EBIT) A& 7 &b F(EBIT) 697,509 46,951 18,501 762,961
Amortisation and depreciation FRNEHERTE
for the year (18,224) (102) (39) (18,365)
Finance costs BB (177,531) = = (177,531)
Additions to non-current segment assets FRRE 2 RH N HEE
during the year 28,629 39 - 28,668
Reportable segment assets REDPEE 11,771,698 819,229 75468 12,666,395
Reportable segment liabilities ARELHERE (9,553,886) (514,362) (46,927)  (10,115,175)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B S BHEBI - KB TIIR)

13 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

13 oEHwE &)

(c) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, (¢)
profit, assets and liabilities

AR E D RBUEA
BEZHE

R BEER

Revenue N

Reportable segment revenue s » KA 831,633 944,655
Elimination E| (1,983) (215)
Unallocated corporate revenue N W/NEIR N 655 =

Consolidated revenue A WA 830,305 944,440
Profit i Rl

Reportable segment profit (EBIT) A] ¥R & 5 B0 FI(EBIT) 636,228 762,961

Finance costs B 7% X 7R (140,600) (166,980)
Unallocated corporate income F ol W/NCIRL N 67,073 36,246
Unallocated corporate expenses APBE AR (63,516) (31,635)
Consolidated profit before taxation SEEBREANEG R 499,185 600,592
Assets BE

Reportable segment assets ARESHEE 7,950,962 12,666,395
Elimination 3 55 (133,941) (124,209)
Unallocated corporate assets INBEAREE 34,320 96,918
Consolidated total assets REEERE 7,851,341 12,639,104
Liabilities =R

Reportable segment liabilities ARENHBEE (4,997,665) (10,115,175)
Elimination & 452,626 355,358
Unallocated corporate liabilities RKABEARAE (383,012) (242,325)
Consolidated total liabilities RAEBEBE (4,928,051)  (10,002,142)
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14

176

Motor
Leasehold  vehicles and Office Furnitreand ~ Computers
improvements yacht equipment fixtures  and software
HE%E REREE HAERE  HKAREE  ERERER4
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Cost: A
At 1 April 2017 RZZ—+EWA-H 49,002 418 15,515 12,963 25,025 106,618
Additions NE 8,710 354 2,422 1,961 2,182 15,629
Disposals & (5,883) (179) (45) (42) - (6,149
Exchange adjustments ERAZ 18 - 2 - 3 79
At 31 March 2018 RZE-NE=A=1-H 51,847 4,288 17915 14,882 27,245 16,177
At 1 April 2018 RZE-\EMA-A 51,847 4,288 17,915 14,882 21,245 116,177
Additions AE 1,877 21,140 1,380 219 5,699 36,375
Disposals & - - (322) - - (322)
Exchange adjustments 3 (12) - (16) - (25) (53)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-AE=F=1-A 53,712 31,428 18,957 15,161 32,919 152,177
Accumulated depreciation: 2ENE:
At 1 April 2017 RZE-+ENA-H 41,061 678 13,222 9,203 19,978 84,142
Charge for the year FREY 6,831 804 1,34 2,185 2,301 13,515
Written back on disposals REERER (5,519) (179) (45) (24) - (5,767)
Exchange adjustments EZR¥ 18 - 14 - % 5
At 31 March 2018 RZZE-\E=f=1-H 42,391 1,308 14,585 11,364 22,308 91,946
At 1 April 2018 RZE-\ENA-H 42,391 1,308 14,585 11,364 22,308 91,946
Charge for the year EREX 5,888 1,434 1,306 1,254 2,373 12,255
Written back on disposals REERER - - (321) - - (321)
Exchange adjustments EXHE (12) - (1) - (18) (41)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-A%=B=1-H 48,267 2,131 15,559 12,618 24,658 103,839
Net book value: REEE:
At 31 March 2019 RZE-AE=F=1-H 5,445 28,691 3,398 2,543 8,261 48,338
At 31 March 2018 R-F-NE=R=1-H 9,456 2,985 3,330 3,518 4942 24,231
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15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15 BEFREE
Debentures
B
$’000
T
Cost: B :
At 1 April 2017 RZE—+tFWMA—H —
Addition NE 13,120
At 31 March 2018 R-_E—NF=ZA=+—H 13,120
At 1 April 2018 R-_ZT—NFWMA—H 13,120
Addition NE 5,600
Disposal = (12,120)
At 31 March 2019 R-B-h&E=BA=+—H 6,600
Accumulated amortisation: REHE -
At 1 April 2017 RZE—+tFWMA—H —
Charge for the year FRRAEZ 5,253
At 31 March 2018 RZE-—NF=ZA=+—H 5,253
At 1 April 2018 RZE—-—NFW™A—H 5,253
Charge for the year FRFEEZ 6,584
Written back on disposal B R [ (11,520)
At 31 March 2019 R-ZEB—hhEFE=ZA=+—H 317
Net book value: BREEE :
At 31 March 2019 R-ZB-hE=HA=+—H 6,283
At 31 March 2018 RZE-—NF=ZA=+—H 7,867
16 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES 16 WJHEEES

At fair value: BATE:
Listed equity securities R AES
— in Hong Kong — &FF - 61,809
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17

18

178

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 17 EMERBEE

Statutory deposits with exchanges and RENBEEMZEER®
clearing houses 50,084 110,422

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 18 FEUWERR

Accounts receivable from: FEUWBRF R B -
— Cash clients (note) —BERBFP(HE) = 427,229
— Margin clients (note) —HFREP (B = 10,327,197
— Clearing houses — WBEHFT 741,019 922,901
— Brokers and dealers — BRI 240,356 208,530
Less: Loss allowance W B (183) (331)
Financial assets measured at amortised  HE KA E S MEE
cost 981,192 11,885,526
Accounts receivable from: i =
— Cash clients (note) —RexP(Kit) 225,351 —
— Margin clients (note) — HEEP(#Z) 6,069,755 —
— Subscription of new shares in IPO (note) — R B & X A 5 2 & ¥
(Htat) 484 —
Financial assets measured at FVPL NIEAFEFABRZZ
TR EZEREE 6,295,590 =
7,276,782 11,885,526
Note: Accounts receivable arising from cash clients, margin clients Hat - RZZT—)\GFMA—BYHBHEBAESH
and subscriptions of new shares in IPO were reclassified to HMEEREIR®EZ RKERESEFR »
financial assets measured at FVPL upon the initial adoption HFREFPRARBERAAHAEENRIE
of HKFRS 9 at 1 April 2018 (see note 3). WEEREEH DB AR ATETAB

B AAFEZEREE (RS -
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18 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 18 EWERMR (&)
(a) Ageing analysis (a) REEDW
The ageing analysis of accounts receivable from cash RBEHRCEWRBRESE P RRIEZ
clients based on the settlement date as of the end of HEBZRETOT -

the reporting period is as follows:

Current BN ER 48,011 155,537
Less than 1 month DR 11E A 122,437 178,989
1 to 3 months 12 31E A 16,317 64,111
More than 3 months % 7318 A 38,586 28,592

177,340 271,692

225,351 427,229
Accounts receivable from cash clients relate to a FBUWREEFPERPRZ BTN
wide range of customers for whom there was no BRAREEBIEF - ZERWFHIE
recent history of default. These receivables are HEZBSEGEER RTEM
secured by their portfolios of securities. Cash clients BEXSH BHeRFPAEKRLAE
are required to place deposits as prescribed in ZEEBRRERGER -RZE—hF=
the Group’s credit policy before execution of any A=+—H HEHHe&cBmEAE
purchase transactions. At 31 March 2019, the total #1,420,498,000 L (=& — )\ &F :
market value of their portfolios of securities was 2,370,271,0007T) °

$1,420,498,000 (2018: $2,370,271,000).
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18 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

180

(a) Ageing analysis (Continued)

Margin clients are required to pledge securities
collateral to the Group in order to obtain credit
facilities for securities trading. The amount of
credit facilities granted to them is determined by
the discounted value of securities accepted by
the Group. At 31 March 2019, margin loans due
from margin clients were current and repayable
on demand except for $908,000 (2018: $348,000)
where the margin loans were past due. $850,000
(2018: $21,000) were past due for less than 1
month. Nil (2018: $Nil) were past due for 1 to 3
months. $33,000 (2018: $4,000) were past due
for 3 months to 1 year. $25,000 (2018: $323,000)
were past due for over 1 year following the trading
suspension of the pledged securities. At 31 March
2019, the total market value of securities pledged as
collateral in respect of the loans to borrowing margin
clients and all margin clients were $12,935,717,000
and $17,689,627,000 respectively (2018:
$20,528,747,000 and $25,876,765,000 respectively).
Margin loans that were past due relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group.

For accounts receivable relating to subscriptions
of new shares in IPO, no ageing analysis of
subscriptions of new shares in IPO is disclosed as
the ageing analysis does not give additional value in
view of the nature of this business.

The fair value of accounts receivables from cash
client, margin clients and subscription in new shares
in IPO is determined by the fair value of collaterals,
capped by the principal amount and accrued interest,
without discounting.

18

EWERR (&)
(a) BREE DI (&)

H@Eﬁbﬂﬂ&%l%ﬁwﬁﬁ % 45 #7
CUHMBEZHEREERE -
%%f)&‘z#sz;mﬁﬁéf %E&ZF?E
FTEMmEHF MR EEETE - R
E-NF=H=+—8" [ﬁ%gosooo
(= Z — J\4F :348,0007T) 2 FF
RERaHIN BRABRER 2
RERAENBRAEAREREE-
850,000 st (= & — JU & : 21,000
T)EEBHLIR—EA TEZE
—N\F: BERAHE —F=#
A + 33,000 (=& — J/\F : 4,000
Jo) @B = {8 A = — 4 + 25,0007TC
(ZZ — N\ :323,0007T) R E K
HESHEFEEROHBHB—F -
R-ZZE—-—HAhE=ZA=+—8 "%
EHEBERATFREFPRAREHTFRE
FEEEREHEBEAERRZ
FEHRMESD R A12,935,717,000
7T K 17,689,627,000 (= & — N\
F 9o Bl A& 20,528,747,000 7t &
25,876,765,0007T) ° BHIFF R B R
BRETHEAEEBRTFAEL R

ZEBMEP o

PRBERRAEENRZ EEIR
RME  ERBBEXRH2EE K
oMY EEREIMEE  LER
BEARBERARBEHN R 2K
e DA e

FEREEP ﬁ)?é?f)f'&wﬁﬁé

RARBEETRZERZAFED
BERRZATFEET EFRAR
CHEREGFE T TFEHE -
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18 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

(a)

(b)

Ageing analysis (Continued)

Accounts receivable from clearing houses, brokers
and dealers are current. These represent (1) pending
trades arising from the business of dealing in
securities, which are normally due within a few days
after the trade date and (2) margin deposits arising
from the business of dealing in futures and options
contracts.

Loss allowance of accounts receivable

Loss allowance in respect of accounts receivable
are recorded using an allowance account unless
the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is
remote, in which case the loss is written off against
the accounts receivable directly.

On 1 April 2018, the loss allowance is provided upon
adoption of HKFRS 9 with details disclosed in note 3.

The movement in the loss allowance during the year
is as follows:

18

FEWERR (&)

(a) R (&)
EWEER KERXIE2ER
BEH  EEEZKANBEEE S
YBOFEHEEBEETS  —RBRAX
SHEHBENINPBRQBEEDNE R
HEANEB2HARRES -

(b) FEWIERMEERE

EWR Rz B ERE AR ERTC
AR MR SR E (S A i B 3RIR 2 AT B
HEREERI  EHBERT @ BB
B R AR R BN

R-ZFE-NFHA—RB BEXBZE
7B B 755 i o5 2 B 55 O 5% 1 At 4 B 1R
o HBRMEIRE -

ERBEFAZESHNT :

Year ended

31 March 2019

BZE

—EB-hF

=A=+-—8H

IEFE

$’°000

T

At 1 April RMEA—H 331
Amounts written off as uncollectible A Uk [ T 8 2 R IE (331)
First adoption of HKFRS 9 BAKABEBVBMEENEIR 183
At 31 March R=ZA=Z+—H 183
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19

20

182

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS

19 HEWFIE BRERESRE

Rental and utility deposits e )327}< B 32,999 18,493
Prepayments SRR 6,745 4,867
Other receivables H i pE 145( I8 8,205 9,276

47,949 32,636

Included in the above balances are amounts of
$21,109,000 as at 31 March 2019 (2018: $5,289,000)
which are expected to be recovered in more than one year.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

RZB-AFE=A=+—8 &t A L&
# 7 I8 521,109,000 (= F — )\ £ -
5,289,0007T) FEER i R — F & U D -

ReRAEEEY
(a) BERBASEENWEE

Deposits with banks SRITTE R 71,798 85,971
Cash at bank and in hand RITARFHERE 329,456 425,916
401,254 511,887

The Group maintains segregated accounts with
authorised institutions to hold client money in the
normal course of business.

At 31 March 2019, client money maintained in
segregated accounts not otherwise dealt with in the
financial statements amounted to $8,127,351,000
(2018: $8,410,398,000).

AEERRABEREBLERE,  RNEE
E¥BBREPHEAERFES -

R-ZE-AE=F=+—0 GBERBI
RPFATENMERREMGBIEEZR
F&% 58,127,351,0007C ( =& — )\ 4 :
8,410,398,0007T ) °
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20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 200 RERREEEY#)
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) BRBAIRANELEEKHE
generated from/(used in) operating activities: (FTARESZHE

Profit before taxation & &4 BT Y 499,185 600,592
Adjustments for: RUATSEEDARE
Amortisation and depreciation B RITE 18,839 18,768
Finance costs B 75 B AR 140,600 166,980
Dividend income eN L ON (1,641) (232)
Interest income FEBERA(CTEEAFE R

(excluding interest income from BRXAREE

margin and IPO financings) BEZ B A) (141,944) (86,167)
Net foreign exchange gain SNE U = 0F FR (4,473) (34,065)
(Gain)/Loss on disposals of property, LEWE  BE R

plant and equipment wEz (W) EE (102) 378
Net gain arising from disposal of & AT 8 & 5

available-for-sale securities FrES 2 F R = (11,371)
Net gain arising from disposal of HERIEEERERE

held for trading investment FRE 4+ 2 F = = (2,338)
Net unrealised loss on held for BEEERBRIEZ

trading investment RERFEHE = 420
Net loss arising from disposal of financial H&E#Z A FEFAEBRZ

assets at fair value through profit or loss £ B EERES 2

FE R 4,124 -

Net unrealised loss on financial assets at A FE ABRZZ S &

fair value through profit or loss BEZAERFER 889 —
Others HAb (264) —
Changes in working capital: EEEREY :
Decrease/(Increase) in other non-current  E M 3ERBEER L

assets () 60,338 (38,522)
Decrease/(Increase) in accounts FEUTBE TR A (3 An)

receivable 4,587,298 (4,073,042)
Increase in other receivables, deposits HigrE - 24 M

and prepayments T8 5 FRIE G 0 (15,345) (1,465)
(Decrease)/Increase in accounts payable FERTBREZR AL A ) 1 N (469,548) 518,783
(Decrease)/Increase in accrued expenses [E&T 5 X M H b B 5

and other payables FIBOR L) /18N (32,396) 36,031
Cash generated from/(used in) KEEISEE(BTA)

operations e 4,645,560 (2,905,250)
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(BB EHEBRIN » B THIR)

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 RERBEEEW &)
(Continued)
(¢) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c) METBHEENEGBZHIE

financing activity:

Bank loans
RITE R

$'000
Tt

At 1 April 2018 R-ZFE—-—NFWBA—H 8,165,885
Changes from financing cash flows: BMEEFHEeRIES -

Repayment of bank loans EERITENR (4,705,294)
Other borrowing cost paid B EMmEEKR (129,642)
Total changes in financing cash flows MEETHRERIEDHREE 3,330,949
Exchange adjustments EH AR (15,076)
Interest expenses F B R 129,642
At 31 March 2019 R-ZE-—hhE=ZA=+—H 3,445,515

21 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 21 AMB AR 2RE
At 31 March 2019, the Company had direct or indirect
interests in the following subsidiaries, all of which are
private companies, particulars of which are set out below:

RZB-NARF=ZA=+—8  KXRFARMN
THEARBEAERAFEER - Z5H
BRRABARILARE HBEHINWAT :

184

Name of company

LA

Place and date of
incorporation

R R A S

Issued and fully
paid-up capital
BRTRAZRAE

Attributable
equity interest
B RAER

Direct Indirect

E& A&

Principal activities

IERE

Bright Smart Investment Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands (BVI)/ US$100 100% —  Investment holding
BT REERARAT 22 October 2009 100% T RERR
EBRRER/
ETAETAZTCH
Choice Max Limited British Virgin Islands (BVI)/ US$1 100% —  Investment holding
MEARAHF 2 April 2014 E REERK
EBRAES/
—Z-MEMAZHA
Fine Profit Investments Limited British Virgin Islands (BVI)/ US$1 100% —  Investment holding
FEREERATA 21 August 2018 B RERR
EERLEE/
ZE-NFNRAZT-H
Marick Investments Limited British Virgin Islands (BVI)/ US$1 100% —  Investment holding
15 April 2014 ES REZR
EBRAES/
“Z-MEMATRA
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21 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)y 21 RHEBRATZRE (&)

Place and date of Issued and fully Attributable
Name of company incorporation paid-up capital equity interest Principal activities
NRER SMAIHERA S ERTRMERA EfRARR TEXH

Direct Indirect

E# &
Bright Smart Asset Management Limited Hong Kong/ HK$5,000,000 = 100%  Asset management
RTEEEBERAT 18 August 2011 5,000,0007% 1T services
5t/ AEERRH
ZE-—EAATN\H
Bright Smart Easy Finance Company Limited ~ Hong Kong/ HK$1 - 100%  Inactive
BT HEHBERRA 6 March 2014 187 TEEx
B/
“EF-MEZRAAA
Bright Smart Finance Channel Management ~ Hong Kong/ HK$1 = 100%  Administrative services
Limited 22 May 2014 18T THR%
RTHBEERERRAA &/
ZZ-mEFRAZTZH
Bright Smart Finance Online Channel Limited ~ Hong Kong/ HK$1 - 100%  Production and broadcast
BIUEELERERAF 22 May 2014 1% finance programs
&k/ BEREREEE
ZZ-WMERAZ+ZH
Bright Smart Financial Technology Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 — 100%  Inactive
BT BUHARAR 7 September 2018 157 ERER
%/
“E-N\EnAtH
Bright Smart Forex Limited Hong Kong/ HK$30,000,000 - 100%  Forex trading service
RIBRRNEBRAA 23 April 2012 30,000,000/ 1t MER 7R
Bh/
“E-ZFMAZ+=H
Bright Smart Futures & Commodities Co., Ltd  Hong Kong/ HK$114,000,000 - 100%  Futures and commodities
BTHERERARAR 14 November 1995 114,000,000 7 broking
&/ HERAmEL
—“ANEET-ATEA
Bright Smart Global Bullion Limited Hong Kong/ HK$10,000 = 100%  Bullion dealing and
RTIBRREXBRAA 10 October 2012 10,000% 7T provision of bullion
g/ trading service to
ZE-Z4TH+H customer
BEEBBERMEPRM
BE¢BRHRE
Bright Smart Investment Consultancy (China) ~ Hong Kong/ HK$1 = 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited 9 November 2010 1% REER
BAREZABEM(FE)ERAA Bk
“F-FFT-ANE
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21 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continueay 21 RHB AR ZERE (&)

Place and date of Issued and fully Attributable
Name of company incorporation paid-up capital equity interest Principal activities
NRER EMAIHERAS BETRBERA EfRARR TEEHK

Direct Indirect

E# Gk
Bright Smart Promotion Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 - 100%  Administrative services
BIEERERAA 25 August 2015 18 TR
&/
ZE-REAAZTARA
Bright Smart Property Management Limited ~ Hong Kong/ HK$1 S 100%  Administrative services
BINZERBRAA 31 March 2014 17T TR %
Ek/
i R =
Bright Smart Property Management Service  Hong Kong/ HK$1 = 100%  Administrative services
Limited 22 August 2017 AT T RS
RINZERRBERLA g/
ZE—+ENAZFZAH
Bright Smart Securities International (H.K.) Hong Kong/ HK$1,141,000,000 S 100%  Securities broking and
Limited 10 August 1998 1,141,000,000% 7 margin financing
BT EFER(BE)BERLA &/ BHRRRARRE
—“AANENATH
Charm Capital Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 - 100%  Administrative services
BEARAF 18 February 2016 1% THRE
&/
ZE-REZATNAH
Everlasting Source Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 S 100%  Administrative services
BYERNRA 8 December 2010 1T THR%
gk/
ZZ-Z2E+ZANE
Glow Dragon Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 - 100%  Administrative services
BEBRLA 21 January 2010 187 TR %
5/
ZE-TF-A-t-H
Huge Dynasty Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 = 100%  Administrative services
BEERAHF 13 January 2010 1B TB R
&/
—Z-25-A+=H
|deal Magic Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 - 100%  Administrative services
WERRAF 13 January 2010 137 THRE
5/
ZZ-ZE¥-A+=H
Merit Act Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 = 100%  Administrative services
EBBEBRAF 3 November 2009 BT TR
&/
ZZENET-AZ=H
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21 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

21 RMBLRAZRE#®)

Place and date of Issued and fully Attributable
Name of company incorporation paid-up capital equity interest Principal activities
NRER SMAIHERA S ERTRMERA EERAER TEXH
Direct Indirect
B &
Rainbow Town Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 = 100%  Administrative services
THBRAR 8 October 2015 1B TH RS
Bk
“Z-1%TANR
Victor Tone Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 - 100%  Administrative services
EEERAA 21 January 2010 il THR®
B/
e
RIREZAGIN)BRAR People’s Republic of China/ HK$1,600,000 = 100%  Inactive
(Note) (f#3t) 10 January 2011 1,600,000 7T Lmex
REARERE/
—Z-——5-A+H

Note: It is registered as a wholly foreign-owned enterprise under

the laws of the People’s Republic of China.

22 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Brat - WARTIREBEPEARKMBIERZE
Me—FIEBERLE -

22 EBERRE

Accounts payable FE T BR R

— Cash clients —HeEP 298,822 293,611

— Margin clients —HFREP 750,347 1,181,767

— Clearing houses — BEEF 139,275 178,606

— Brokers — &4 37,765 51,141
1,226,209 1,705,125

All of the accounts payable are expected to be settled
within one year or are repayable on demand.
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23

24

188

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER
PAYABLES

23 BEAXREMENKE

Commission rebate payable FE A € =] B 19,128 36,672
Accrued bonuses JEETIEAT 7,902 14,146

Stamp duty, trading levy and trading fee  JENEIER - X 5EHE &
payables T5E 6,473 11,262
Receipt in advance T8 W 5k B 2,166 7
Other payables H b &~ 30E 18,078 23,381
53,747 86,178

All accrued expenses and other payables are expected to
be settled or recognised as income within one year.

BANK LOANS

TP A AT B X X H b S SRR AS
—FARAEEXERREA -

24 BITER

Secured loans BEMBER

— Bank loans —RITER 3,265,515 7,924,885

Unsecured loans EIFER

— Bank loans —RITER 180,000 241,000
3,445,515 8,165,885

All the bank loans are repayable within one year and
classified as current liabilities. The carrying amounts of the
bank borrowings approximate their fair value.

The bank loans as at 31 March 2019 are interest-bearing.
Securities collateral deposited by the Group’s margin
clients was re-pledged to banks to secure loan facilities.
Such banking facilities were utilised to the extent of
$3,265,515,000 (2018: $7,924,885,000). The fair value of
the collateral re-pledged to banks as at 31 March 2019
amounted to $7,306,728,000 (2018: $14,123,507,000).

FRERITERANR-FREERDE
RBAE - ROTBEEZEREERELAT
BE -

=}

M- ZE—HhAhE=ZFA=+—HBZHRITER
HEHE - AEEFREFTFEZHESFK
HRBEETERT  ARNESEZRE - F
RASR7TRL & C ) H3,265,515,000C (=&
— \£E :7,924,885,0007T) A - — N
FZA=+—8 BERFRAOZERS
N 18 57,306,728,0007T ( —ZF — )\ 4F :
14,123,507,0007C) ©
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25

26

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
— DEFINED CONTRIBUTION
RETIREMENT PLAN

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance and not previously covered by
the defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF scheme
is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
$30,000 (2018: $30,000). Contributions to the plan vest
immediately.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents:

25

26

BERKERN — EFEEKERAK
=t &

AEBRBEEERVIERE S ERIA
REZEEBGINRDEERER X
AR ERBRMERFERBEZREZ
moRtlE A EEF B ([RERETE]) -7
B ERTERHEFRNETE - BBIU(E
AAEE -REVRESHE - BEREE
BEEBAKEBMBKRAZS%MTEF
H AR - A= A 48 B8 4 A30,0007T (=
ZT— \% :30,0007T) & LR - 58I H%
BRERE -

REVBRRRZFESR

(a) ZEMBRRRZEAPHRIASE :

Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax FRNEBNESHEE
expense for the year 54,776 85,876
Provisional Profits Tax paid BENEHFER (64,111) (42,157)
(9,335) 43,719
Balance of Hong Kong Profits Tax BEEBHEEFNER &4
relating to prior year - 79
(9,335) 43,798
Represented by: UTH&BEERTR :
Current taxation B[ BR ¢ 1B 2,487 44,495
Tax recoverable A] 3R 6] #4185 (11,822) (697)
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26 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(b)(i) Deferred tax assets and liabilities represents:

The components of deferred tax liabilities/(assets)
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position and the movements during the year are as
follows:

260 ZEUBRRRZAEH (2

i) EEHREEEREERE

RIS BTG RO R R 2 MBS B IE
BE, (GE)BREHH R F N E
mF

Differences
between
depreciation
allowance and
the related
depreciation
FERER
HEREZZE
$000

Tr

Accrued
bonuses

Credit loss
allowance
FEEFR
B

$'000

Fr

A
$'000
T

Deferred tax liabilities/(assets) EUNTEREMELZEERE
arising from: 8/ (EE):
At 1 April 2017 R-B-LFMA—A - (457) (1,830) (2,287)
(Credited)/Charged to consolidated i‘*/\%m&ﬁni’% iA) /Ml
statement of comprehensive income  (#/#8/a))
(note 8(a)) - (1,875) 172 (1,703
At 31 March 2018 R-B-\E=A=1-B - (2,332) (1,658) (3,990)
At 1 April 2018 \ZE-N\EMA-H - (2,332) (1,658) (3,990)
Impact on initial adoption of HKFRS 9 #1357 A %.5}% ﬁ?}ﬁi& A
%951?2 4 (78) = = (78)
Adjusted balance at 1 April 2018 “E-N\EmA-AH
?ﬂ Blhois (78) (2,332) (1,658) (4,068)
Charged to consolidated statement of ~ R4 2 EizEZ MK
comprehensive income (note 8(a)) ( /f/fg}b’(a)) - 1,022 2,979 4,001
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=A=+-H (78) (1,310) 1,321 (67)

(b)(ii)Reconciliation to the consolidated statement
of financial position

b)) REGEMBRRER ZHER

Net deferred tax asset recognised in the B REGESBBERTET

consolidated statement of financial MR ZELEHBEE
position FE (84) (4,029)

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in B 4G4 B &tk R &

the consolidated statement of financial MAZELHBARZ
position F1E 17 39
(67) (3,990)
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 27 BEX -#EBERRE

(a) Movement in components of equity (a) BBAEANTFs2EE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing AEBGEERSHENT D FHH
balances of each component of the Group’s FREBZHEHNREEERZD
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated RoARNTAARNERAKID O REF
statement of changes in equity. Details of the TERFREZEDHFBEHRINOT -

changes in the Company’s individual components of
equity between the beginning and the end of the year
are set out below:

The Company b NN
Share Share  Share option Retained
capital ium reserve its
KA B EREEE f
$'000 $'000 $'000
I T T ] ;
At 1 April 2017 RZE-tE@MA-H 509,099 737,677 8,341 45,464 1,300,581
Profit and total comprehensive FREHRZAKGER
income for the year - - - 86,206 86,206
Dividend paid during the year FRENZRE = = = (81,456) (81,456)
Shares issued under share option 18 15 B i i 57 213417
scheme &k 20 343 (46) = 387
Transfer of share option reserve R IR B fR 1272 B %
upon the forfeiture of BREREE
share options - - (896) 896 -
At 31 March 2018 R=2-N\%
ZA=t-H 509,189 738,020 7,399 51,110 1,305,718
Share Share Share option Retained
capital premium reserve profits  Total equity
BRHRE BRERE RERA BHAE
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr Tr Tr
At 1 April 2018 R-ZE-NEWMAB-H 509,189 738,020 7,399 51,110 1,305,718
Profit and total comprehensive FREHR2AKGER
income for the year - - - 110,975 110,975
Dividend paid during the year ERRAZHEE - - - (154,454) (154,454)
Transfer of reserve upon lapse of B FR 12 & A4 E8 %
share options i - - (7,399) 7,399 -
At 31 March 2019 R-E-hE
ZA=t-H 509,189 738,020 - 15,030 1,262,239
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

27 BEX  -REERRE (&)

(b) Dividends (b)) BE
() Dividends payable to equity shareholders of () "EEEZRRELGAEE
the Group attributable to the year EARE
Dividends declared in respect of the current RAFEEETRKRBMOT :

year are as follows:

Final dividend proposed after the
end of the reporting period of 7.8
cents per ordinary share
(2018: 9.1 cents per ordinary
share) (2018 and 2019:
1,697,296,308 shares)

RBERRREZ RS

f&% B8 T @Ak 7.8l
(ZZ—N\%F:
TR E BRI
(ZE—NF K
—E-NEF
1,697,296,308 % )

132,389 154,454

The final dividend proposed after the end of
the reporting period is subject to approval of
the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company and has not

BEMREEZZRMBE AR
B R A 1 A JE BURGB F A
TEHRERTAMEE  AYE
RBEMRERSEE -

been recognised as a liability at the end of the

reporting period.

(ii) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i)
Group attributable to the previous financial year,

approved and paid during the year:

AEE SR REE L — BT
FEZEMKRE(FACSHE
KR AS)

Final dividend in respect of previous | —BIIEE 7 REK 2

financial year, approved and paid
during the year, of 9.1 cents

per ordinary share (2018: 4.8
cents per ordinary share) (2019:
1,697,296,308 shares, 2018:
1,696,996,308 shares)

918 % 38 AR, 11l
(FAB & RIKRM)
—E—N\F
SRR L BAR48IL)
= — N5
1,697,296,308/% -
—T- N\
1,696,996,308 1% )

154,454 81,456

192

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2018/19



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% SRR B =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(Br = HIEBIN - ABTIIR)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 27 EXR  -RERRE#®)
(Continued)

(¢) Share capital (c) B=&
2019
Z2-1E
No. of shares  Nominal value No. of shares Nominal value
KRG HE HE guEAE HE
$000 $'000
Tr T
Authorised ordinary shares of SREE0.307TH
$0.30 each: EEEBR
At 1 Apri/31 March ROAE-RB/
=A=1+-H 10,000,000,000 3,000,000 10,000,000,000 3,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERETRME:
At 1 April REA—A 1,697,296,308 509,189  1,696,996,308 509,099
Shares issued under share REERETEETL
option scheme Bk in - - 300,000 90
At 31 March R=ZR=+-H 1,697,296,308 509,189  1,697,296,308 509,189
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive ETEREEABRKBR TR Z
dividends as declared from time to time and are BEREERAATAE TR
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the i —Z - ARBRBEEM
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with S BT ERBEZAERSEMA -

regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Shares issued under the share option scheme HMIEBRESTERITZRY
During the year ended 31 March 2019, no REBEE-_ZT—-—hLF=A=+—8H1
share options were exercised to subscribe for FE O WEBKREETEAUAREDT
any ordinary shares (2018: share options were fEBR(ZE—N\F : BIREE
exercised to subscribe for 300,000 ordinary shares 1718 LA 52 B8 300,0000% Ti@m A% « (B
at a consideration of $387,000 of which $90,000 #387,0007T * E #190,0007T 51 A B&
was credited to share capital and the balance of R 45 82343,0007T 51 A BR 1D 5 B
$343,000 was credited to share premium account, R 2 efagogBEREREBZ
which included a balance of $46,000 that has been 4= $246,0007T) °

transferred from the share option reserve).
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)
(c) Share capital (Continued)

Shares issued under the share option scheme

(Continued)

(@) Shares issued under the share option scheme
during the year are summarised as follows:

Number of
share options

exercised Consideration

1
BRESA

New shares issued dueto HZ-E-Hh&E=f
exercise of share options =t —-HLEER

27 BEX  -REERRE (&)

() BRA&(#E)
REBRESSBITZRG (F

@ FARBBRESFSEITZIR
BT

Share
premium

Share option
reserve

Share capital

RE
$'000
T

S
$000
T

Bt E
$000
T

BRERE
$000
T

for the year ended BREETEM

31 March 2019 BAzHRA - - - - -
New shares issued dueto  HE-E—-N\E=f

exercise of share options = +—FH L EE

for the year ended BREETED

31 March 2018 Bz HBn 300,000 387 90 343 (46)

(b) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share
options at the end of the reporting period

Exercise period
R
23 June 2015 to 22 June 2018

—EZ-R%~A-1+=HZ%
“E-\fxAZ1+ZH

(o) RIS HIR R E W K AT
82 BB R HIR

2019 2018
ZE-1F —Z-)\#E
Number of Number of

share options share options

BRERE BREHA

Exercise price

TEE

$3.85 = 7,710,000

- 7,710,000

(d) Nature and purpose of reserve

(i) Share premium
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium account of the
Company may be applied for payment of
distributions or dividends to shareholders
provided that immediately following the date on
which the distribution or dividend is proposed to
be paid, the Company is able to pay its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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iy KRHEE
RERSEERRZE  ARA
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ok B - HEEREHE
DIRFRNKRE B #HE  AQ
AR EREEKBEREN
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserve (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations as well as the effective portion
of any foreign exchange differences arising
from hedges of the net investment in these
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out
in note 2(q).

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises
the cumulative net change in the fair value of
available-for-sale securities held at the end of
the reporting period date and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies in note

2(9).

Merger reserve

On 29 June 2010, the Company acquired
the entire issued share capital of Bright
Smart Futures & Commodities Co., Ltd,
Bright Smart Securities International (H.K.)
Limited and Merit Act Limited through Bright
Smart Investment Holdings Limited from
their respective shareholders. The difference
between the nominal value of the share capital
of the subsidiaries acquired as a result of the
restructuring exercise and the nominal value
of the share capital of the Company issued
in exchange thereof is treated as an equity
movement and recorded in “Merger reserve”.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the fair
value of the actual number of unexercised share
options granted under the share option scheme
recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments in
note 2(m)(iii).
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27 BEXR -REERRE (&)

(a REHERENE)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

B R
ERREBEEMBAELARE
BINRBHBERRZINEEZR
K E S F BRI FIRE
mE % 2 E B BINE =B #
2 o BB ERRE20)
BB BRERE -

REEMHE
REEERFBEEENHRERR
A HEEESZAFELZ
REFEF - TR EE2(9)
el @t BREIE -

BOHEE
R-_ZB—FFXA=-1ThA "
ARBEEBRTREERER
RAABTHERERBRA
Al -RIBHFER(EFEE)AR
RALEBRBARRABZABR
RUEBZEAR Z2HEET
RA - AEEEE MK WEZ
Eop-S NI Al N TR =R AN/NE]
BITERREZBAEEME
CEBGFRaEHEE I
RERHEIAHEREIA -

BRERE
8 AR B B TR AR IR BT 7R 2(m)
(i) LA IR 19 B EL B 2 SRIB IR A
AT SR R RRAR PR DR AR AT
BB F2ARITEERETER
BZAFE -
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

27 BEX  -REERRE (&)

d) FEMERBWNE)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserve (Continued)

(vi) Distributability of reserve

The reserves of the Company are distributable
to the equity shareholders subject to the
provisions of the Company’s Memorandum
and Articles of Association and provided that
immediately following the distribution the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.

(vi) ZIkfEE
REARBZEBERKNA R
ARG - YHEBBEEHDDIK
BARRAMEERHEERB
RAPIMEBZAET A
AR AERBERDIRER

At 31 March 2019, the aggregate amount RZZE—NF=A=+—8 -
of reserves available for distribution to AEIETARRARIERZRKRRE
equity shareholders of the Company was 2 7% 1% # € ¥ A 753,050,000
$753,050,000 (2018: $789,130,000). T(=ZZ — )\ : 789,130,000
TT) °
(e) Capital management (e) EXER

The Group’s primary objective when managing
capital is to safeguard the Group’s ability to

AEBEREAZERZBEERRE
$’§l SERE RN BBARE

continue as a going concern, so that it can continue @K AE @ MRS EB AN
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits AI§W$HX BE EBRRRT
for other stakeholders, by pricing products and X@#&&Fjﬁﬁﬂﬁé\ ?—r’ﬁ/\’%t)(ﬂ
services commensurately with the level of risk and by molkih BEHFRMESEKE

securing access to finance at a reasonable cost. In % E\@(F{fj%’;éj) T?‘Hﬁ2$’§
addition, certain subsidiaries of the Group licensed I%TJFWJ;”\ BAREAEBERFS
by the Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC”) BENMBE(BERER) KA (B

are obliged to meet the regulatory liquid capital
requirements under the Securities and Futures
(Financial Resources) Rules (“FRR”) at all times.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and

,\/rfﬁE'JJ)IETZ@_A/m@éQiﬁJ

==

TE °

AEEBEGBELREHBRTREEERN

manages its capital structure to maintain a balance EE CFREHEERREEREKXKTZ
between the higher shareholder returns that might BelRROREBREERNMKRS
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and RZFBERREZEBRESTE I

the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and make adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.
For the licensed subsidiaries, the Group ensures
each of them maintains a liquid capital level adequate
to support the level of activities with sufficient
buffer to accommodate for increases in liquidity
requirements arising from potential increases in the
level of business activities. During the financial year,
all the licensed subsidiaries complied with the liquid
capital requirements under the FRR.

RNEKERBECEBENENERIE
HAE - BEEMBARME - &
SEERENBRRHRFERE
AR RAXERBREE Uk
EXBEP A EEBIEE M HY
MBEEZFTREARTERNB
e RAYMBFE - PTA F KB
AREIHETHRERBRAUNEAT ZR
BEESHRE °
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28 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 28 ERAZAEURMAER ZNE

PAYMENTS

The Company has a share option scheme which was RARZA —HERETS  RZ2ZT—%
adopted on 4 August 2010 by a resolution of the board FNAMNBHAAREFGHEBRERK
of directors of the Company whereby the employee, wmeAEBEES  EBRE ABRENESSH
consultants, contractors and directors of the Group are FELHEBERETS - BRE2ERETESS
entitled to the share option scheme. The options granted BRI R=ZFHANITE - SHERE
have no vesting condition and are then exercisable within MTHAEAEMNRE-—RAQAALER -

a period of three years. Each option gives the holder the
right to subscribe for one ordinary share of the Company.

(a) The number and weighted average exercise (a) BREFERMEFHITEED
prices of share options are as follows: T
2019 2018
= “E-)\f
Weighted Weighted
Number average Number average
of share exercise of share exercise
options price options price
mEFH MEFH
BREHE fiEE BEREHE &
Outstanding at the beginning of the year & #]1is K 41 7,710,000 3.85 8,960,000 3.76
Exercised during the year ERTE - - (300,000) 1.29
Lapsed during the year FREM (7,710,000) 3.85 (950,000) 3.80
QOutstanding at the end of the year FRERITE - - 7,710,000 3.85
Exercisable at the end of the year FRUTIE - - 7,710,000 3.85
No share option was granted during the year (2018: FANMEZEERE(ZE—/)\F :
Nil). ') o
At 31 March 2019, there was no outstanding option. RZZE—NAF=A=+—8 " #&
The options outstanding at 31 March 2018 had a BERENRITE R NEFE=
weighted average exercise price of $3.85 and a B=+—B & k176 2 B E I #E
weighted average remaining contractual life of 2 FH1TEE A3.857C 0 miniEFY
months. BMTEIHNFER2MEA -
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C A TTIIR)

28 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
PAYMENTS (Continued)

(b)

198

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the
fair value of share options granted. The estimate
of the fair value of the share options granted is
measured based on the Black-Scholes model. The
contractual life of the share option is used as an input
into this model. Expectations of early exercise are
incorporated into the Black-Scholes model.

Date of grant

28 BEAEUROR/ER KRR

(%)

(b)

BREAFERREBR

1ER IR BB A 2 @ M 4B 2 AR
BeRFEDIZ2RAXHBREZ
RFEMFE -FAIREBERE G
FAAFERARSE —FEHER
FHECBEREZANFHREAZE
AZ—HBAZ2H - RETEREY
EMANR —SF@HER -

g =t

Fair value at measurement date RErEBH2AFE $0.96
Share price fi% (8 $3.85
Exercise price IEE $3.85
Expected volatility T8 2K iR 57.27%
Option life i R 7 A 1.5 yearfF
Expected dividends yield TEHR R B =& 2.83%
Risk-free interest rate = @ b ) 0.22%

The expected volatility is derived with reference
to the historic volatilities of the Group based on
publicly available information. Expected dividend
yield is based on historical dividends. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect
the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under no vesting
condition. There was no market condition associated
with the share option granted.

BHEEELDERA] ARG
ER - 2ZAREEZELREMS
HeFEHREEDUEERERE
o THBABBEZRRZED
AEAFERAFEZMAER -

BRENREBSYERBEMT - B
PR L 0 BT A R o
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29 COMMITMENTS 29 AEE

(a) Capital commitments (a)

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2019
not provided for in the financial statements were as
follows:

BEXERE

RZF-NF=ZA=+t—HHRE
EEMBREZEAREQOT

Contracted for SIS

3,408 4,452

(b) Operating lease commitments (b)

At 31 March 2019, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating lease on
properties are payable as follows:

REHERRE

R-Z-—RAE=A=+—8 RE
Mgy FTREBEROET 2K
o 5 5 L5 300 48 28 00 T 51 B
%A

Within one year —F R 70,208 55,451
After one year but within five years —FRERAEFA 128,229 15,263
198,437 70,714

The Group leases a number of properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of one year to four years, with an option to
renew the leases when all terms are renegotiated.
None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

BIBHERMEBMERLA | —T—/)/\/ —NEFEFR

AEBERBEKEHAOHEESZEY
X -ZFHO—RUIT/H—F=2
P& - 3 ] I B R I P P B IR K
TUEE ZEBROBRTERBLR
B e
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30

200

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, foreign currency
and equity price risks arises in the normal course of the
Group’s business. The Group’s exposure to these risks
and the financial risk management policies and practices
used by the Group to manage these risks are described
below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
amounts due from clients, brokers and clearing
houses. The management has a credit policy in place
and the exposure to the credit risk is monitored on an
ongoing basis.

In respect of amounts due from clients, individual
evaluations are performed on all clients (including
cash and margin clients) based on underlying
collateral. Cash clients are required to place deposits
as prescribed in the Group’s policy before execution
of any purchase transactions. Receivables due from
cash clients are due within the settlement period
commonly adopted in the relevant market practices,
which is usually within a few days from the trade
date. Because accounts receivable from cash clients
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent history of default, there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances
are considered fully receivable, and the prescribed
deposit requirements and the short settlement period
involved, the credit risk arising from the amounts
due from cash clients is considered low. The Group
normally obtains liquid securities and/or cash
deposits as collateral for providing financing to its
cash and margin clients and has policy to manage
these exposures on a fair value basis. Margin loans
due from margin clients are repayable on demand.
For commodities and futures brokerage, an initial
margin is required prior to opening transaction.
Market conditions and adequacy of securities
collateral and margin deposits of each cash account,
margin account and futures account are monitored
by the management on a daily basis. Margin calls and
forced liquidation are made where necessary.

30

BHEEREERDFE

AEBEZAFEBELEE RPEL
MR SVERBRERR o TXHAREE
FESZZERAREAEEREELS
R TR 2 M R B IR BR R AED -

(a)

FERRE

AEBEZEERREIZRAEBEE
P BEk@GEMZER EEE
FAEERE UREEZEEER

G o
ZN

RKREFERFIE  FABEEFP (81
RekAREP)HAENEHEEM
mE X ERFE - RATEMEE
R ReFTPERAEEZK
RERX - -BURREFPRETIRA
AHZENETERA cEREHRE
H —REXZHBABRERA - ER
FUREEFPERSRZHOHL
BRFELBEZEF FEERYTE
EXEY BABGHREAR/TE
Bl m - 8 TE TF KR E K AT R
RERE BWERAREEPENRE
HZEERBEM AEE—KE
AMERERFREFMBREYE S
E/EBREFRIERRARERER
BzEBMm YITABRRERAFE
EEZRERR BRAREPZH
RERBAREREERE -pAmAB
EREEBME  REAAMAXN
EARey EEESBHEREMR
AEREREKRF AREFPRHE
EPZRrBAMMRESZRER
WOMETE BRI LR
THE -
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

BIBHEREBERLF | —F

Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of amounts receivable from brokers and
clearing houses, credit risks are considered low as
the Group normally enters into transactions with
brokers and clearing houses which are registered
with regulatory bodies and enjoy sound reputation in
the industry.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk as credits are granted to a large population of
clients.

The Group does not provide any other guarantees
which would expose the Group to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including the raising of loans to cover expected cash
demands, and to ensure compliance with FRR. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long
term.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and funding
in the short and longer term. Except deferred tax
liabilities, all of the Group’s liabilities are expected
to be settled within one year. The carrying amounts
of all financial liabilities equal the contractual
undiscounted cash outflow, except for bank loans
of which the contractual undiscounted cash outflow
as at 31 March 2019 amounted to $3,445,546,000
(2018: $8,168,252,000).

—N\/ —NFFRH

30

(a)

(b)

MHEEREERNFEEE)

FERREE)

R ASE-REENEERET
MAXABERE L NRGEEM
iﬁi% B WA 42 I A B P RR
RZEERBERE -

EF$%lﬁ%y§ﬁhﬁZf'
BYBEAEFEERR

AEBYEEHREMEMIER - 2
SEAEEHHERERR

RBEEER

AEEBRAENLCEEREBERE L
ReEE PEEREREMNES
ReEFE VTHRTEHMBHERSR
ay - KEIZﬁﬁ%E%?AMW
&?’Eﬁﬁmu@]é{ FE UVETEE

CHREFREHAR B RK
Qﬁﬂ%%%%Zﬁﬁ%w@ﬁﬁ
E UENEREHRBDESTE -

AEBECvBRERATHEEZIRE
HRrHELTE MREFIZHR
cRECRERENREBTEZ -
BRELEHRBEEEN AEBZME
AETEHBER—TFARNENS -FTES
ﬂ%LZ%ﬁ@mé\ HESES
BRI REE ERTEIERT
ER CER T —AFZAZ+—
AZERTOARBEBRESRTLEEAR
3,445,546,000 (= & — J\ F
8,168,252,0007T ) ©
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 30

202

VAR TTIR)

FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

(i)

Interest rate profile

The Group charges interest on its margin clients
and cash clients with outstanding loan amounts
on the basis of its cost of funding plus a mark-
up. Financial assets (such as margin loans and
deposits with banks) and financial liabilities
(such as bank loans) are primarily at floating
rates. The Group’s income and operating cash
flows are not subject to significant interest rate

risk.

The interest rate profile of the Group at the
reporting date is as follows:

() FERE

(i) FE4HE

TRk -

FIREA :

BEEREERAFE S

REBREESKASINIRE
AFREFEHAEREERZ
ReEFPKBME - REE
(MAFREFRRBRITER) K
BEBEWRITER) T ERT
BHREFE - ARBEZBRAR
REReREYEMEE XA

TRENAKERHEBHZ

Assets BE
Deposits with banks AT 71,797 85,971
Statutory deposits with exchanges XS REEM 2 EERS
and clearing houses 47,733 108,071
Accounts receivable from JE U5 BR 3K
— Margin loans —HEEX 6,069,755 10,327,197
— Cash clients with outstanding — HMAEEERN
loan amounts HeERF 177,340 271,692
— Subscription of new shares in — RBEXRARREE
IPO IR 484 —
6,367,109 10,792,931

Liabilities =R

Secured bank loans BERFETER 3,265,515 7,924,885

Unsecured bank loans I IFIRITE R 180,000 241,000

Amount due to a related company  JE{ — R R E A 7 5K IE 200,000 =
3,645,515 8,165,885
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(¢) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

BIBHEREBERLF | —F

Interest rate profile (Continued)
All the above interest-bearing financial assets
are receivable on demand or within one year.

All the above interest-bearing financial liabilities
are repayable within one year.

Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 March 2019, if interest rates had been
100 basis points higher with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s profit before
taxation would have increased by approximately
$27,216,000 (2018: $26,270,000).

As at 31 March 2019, if interest rates had been
100 basis point lower with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s profit before taxation
would have decreased by approximately
$26,857,000 (2018: $25,368,000).

The increased/decreased profit before taxation
results mainly from higher/lower interest income
from deposits with banks, statutory deposits
with exchanges and clearing houses and margin
loans and higher/lower interest expense on
bank loans. Other components of equity would
not be significantly affected by the changes in
interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
before taxation that would arise assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at
the reporting dates and had been applied to
re-measure those financial instruments held by
the Group which expose the Group to interest
rate risk at the reporting dates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2018.

—N\/ —NFFRH

30 BEREERLAFEEE)

(c) F=EEk#E)

(i)

(ii)

eSS =NE P
rAELAEEEREERAR
ERWEER —FARRE -

e Liist EERmABEAR
FAEE -

BRE DN
R-ZZE—hFEZA=Z+—8 "
ERMEBEEMEHALETTE 2
EART A E £ F100E &
o AIAREE Z B WA R R
JE 32 N 427,216,000 T (= &
— /\ £ :26,270,0007T) °

—h&=ZA=Z+—8"
EREEMEZHEFTTE
ET - e A 2 F 100 fE &
o AR EE 2 B WA E R
& % 2 426,857,000 L (= &
— /\£ : 25,368,0007T) °

BRI A0, RS EE R
RIRTTF 3K NEEEMRZ
EERERFRERZ A SW
A B RIRITE A B

B IN,RD FTER - %/\Z
HibARE D TERAMNXEH
MEBRTE -

T BEESTERBREF X
BHRREAHLEIE  BEE
AREFNFTEAEBFAFAER
REHBPEFRAEBAEEEF X
=, & ZiﬂIE'A$%@Z
f‘ffRHU/ﬁnf‘JﬂjﬁZEﬂﬁim
WE%%A_Y—AiﬁH
ZEEHET o
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

204

(d)

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
arising from financial instruments that are
denominated in United States dollars (“USD”),
Renminbi (“RMB”), Singapore dollars (“SGD”),
Japanese Yen (“JPY”), Australian dollars (“AUD”)
and British pound (“GBP”). As the Hong Kong dollar
("HKD”) is pegged to the USD, the Group considers
the risk of movements in exchange rates between
the HKD and the USD as insignificant. In respect
of financial instruments denominated in other
currencies, the Group ensures that the net exposure
is kept at an acceptable level by buying or selling
foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to
address short-term imbalances. The management
monitors all the foreign currency positions on a daily
basis.

Exposure to currency risk and sensitivity analysis
The Group’s significant net exposure to RMB, SGD,
JPY, AUD and GBP at the reporting date and the
estimated impact to the Group’s profit/(loss) for
the year had the foreign exchange rates of RMB,
SGD, JPY, AUD and GBP changed at that date are
illustrated below. In this respect, it is assumed that
the pegged rate between the HKD and the USD
would be materially unaffected by any changes
in movement in value of the USD against other
currencies.

30

RREER AFESE)

d) SME =R B

AEEMAZIVERREZRB K
X AR® T BE -
BMEIRREHEZERTAE - AR
BTEITHE  MAKERR
BTEXTZHEANERZEERE
oA EMERFEZERTA
ms AKREEEFTENBR TR
BIEEXRB AL EINEIARIERE
Bz AN FEBR - & LRERRRFE
BERAIETZKFE -EEESEH
EEmAINERR -

SNERBAERBBED N
WREBHZARE - FmExT -
BE -BThEEERFHMED
AEEBRFEEHEARE - #0
o BHE BRI RESEMEARE
KRB FRE AMEUSAREEFER
2w A, (EB) Z et Z5 R
T-HUmEs  ERIBTEET
EXBEBTeRETLLEMERE
BrEENEFMIINEATE -
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 30 BBEREERAFEE)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued) d) SMNERBRZ)
2019 2018
“E-E ZE-)\%¥
Effect on Effect on
Appreciation/  profit before Appreciation/  profit before
Net asset (depreciation) tax and Netasset  (depreciation) tax and
in foreign in foreign retained in foreign in foreign retained
currency currency profits currency currency
WA%iEe  AMERE/ EARRE
BERE (BR) ERz%E
$000 $000
T T
RVMB ARE 144,318 5 7,216 94,473 5 4724
(5) (7,216) ) (4,724
SGD AT 4,121 5 206 4911 5 246
(6) (206) (9) (246)
JPY A 6,674 5 334 7,710 5 386
(5) (334) (5) (386)
AUD A7 4,794 5 240 4,600 5 230
(%) (240) (o) (230)
GBP i 3,538 5 177 2,887 5 144
(5) (177) o) (144)
The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change BRERESMEBRBINEER 2 EF)
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re- EEAREFGFENME ARER
measure those financial instruments which expose AREEBEBINERR 22/ T A -
the Group to foreign currency risk at the reporting ZESMDERAR T - N\FHRA
date. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2 EAEHEAT o
2018.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 30 BBEBREERERAFEE)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(e) Equity price risk (e) RERM

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising MO BREAFEFTAERZZSR
from listed equity investments classified as financial EEMHR-_ZE—N\EWA—B®E
assets at fair value through profit or loss applicable A ERAHEERETAZLH(R S
from 1 April 2018 and available-for-sale equity —N\FOA—BAER)N EHRA
securities applicable prior to 1 April 2018 (see note K"E(RMEE)ME AEBAERST
6). HREZHRAR -

The Group’s listed investments are listed on the AEB EMRELHEE BB
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. Listed investments o ERHEEESHN FTR
held in the available-for-sale portfolio have been ENRBERHAERE IKE I
chosen based on their longer term growth potential TFHIEERRINHETFHETA -

and are monitored regularly for performance against
expectations.

The following table shows the approximate change in THRIFIEDBERARATETARE
the Group’s other components of equity in response HremBEE(HBR-_ZE—N\EMA—
to reasonable change in the value of listed equity AREERARIHBEEZTHF(N_Z
investments classified as financial assets at fair value —N\FHNA—HREA) /N EWmRAE
through profit or loss applicable from 1 April 2018 REBELENAEBEEHENLAE
and available-for-sale securities applicable prior to 1 M EMARBOELENBLYE
April 2018: g :

Effects Effects

on other on other

components components
of equity of equ

B g
EhERHA

ey e

$'000

r

Change in the relevant equity price risk 18 B8 I (B /& b & BT )

variable: 2g .
Available-for-sale securities HEEES
Increase #m - - 10 6,181
Decrease B = = (10) (6,181)

Financial assets at fair value through AT ESABHZ

profit or loss: PREE
Increase #10 10 875 - -
Decrease B (10) (875) - -
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(f) Fair values measurement

(i)

Financial assets measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available

o Level 3 valuation: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs

The Group has a finance team performing
daily valuations for the financial instruments,
including listed available-for-sale equity
securities and held for trading investments.
The team reports directly to the chief financial
officer.

BIBHERMEBMERLA | —T—/)/\/ —NEFEFR

30
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AFEME

(i)

BAFEFENEREE
RFEER
TREIIRBEHRRERM
HEFEYDRABTEMB R
SEREISRIATFEAEIMR
REN=ZBRAFESFEREN
AEBEMIEARFE- - RF
EFFENERDOEHILENT
BEEMERBAENAEE
MRERMETE -

« F-BfEE: REMHE-
CEUNAGREITES-2
8 ERHERETRTS
SEREE TR
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s F-RME:ERE-RK
BAEBIRERNE S —
R ERBAE) BY
AEREZTABREHA
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R ABREBEIERTS
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TRERAETEOAT
&

AEEHRE B BEEKSE
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

30 BREREER NYEE)

(f) Fair values measurement (Continued) f DAFEFEE)
() Financial assets measured at fair value () BRAFEFENSBREE(F
(Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) RFEER(E
Fair value measurement as at Fair value measurement as at
31 March 2019 categorised into 31 March 2018 categorised into
R-E-AF=B=t-AMK )
AYEHEAER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 3
-8 228 228 -8 5
$000 $000 $000 $'000
S r Tr r
Recurring fair value measurements B &N F{Ez &
Assets: BE:
Available-for-sale equity securifies T ERAE S
— Listed — 7 = - - 61,809 - -
Financial assets at fair value through A & ABE 2
profit or loss SREE
— Listed securities — tTE% 8,745 - - = = =
— Accounts receivable — ERER - 6,205,590 - - - -
Liabilties: faff:
Held for trading investments FEEERRRE
— Futures contracts —BEEH - - - 420) = =
During the year ended 31 March 2019, there BE-ZT-NAF=ZA=+—H
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, EFE F—ERFEF_EZMH
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s WA EE - TNEEMA
policy is to recognise transfers between levels F-BBAXEYH AEEZ
of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the BWERTIREAEERE s RERR
reporting period in which they occur. HRATFESRAERESRA 2
Rz -
(i) Valuation techniques and inputs used in (i) E-EBArTFEFEFMAMKER

208

Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of fully collateralised accounts
receivables from cash clients, margin clients
and subscription in new shares in IPO is
determined by the fair value of collaterals,
capped by the principal amount and accrued
interest, without discounting.

ERBAE
2HREEAARZKBERAET
F AREFRABERAR
BEFRZBUERZAFE
DEEARRZ ATFEEE - £
RRACENMEFMNE  ~F
REER o
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 30 BBEREERAFEE)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(f) Fair values measurement (Continued) ) DAFEFEE)
(iii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (i) AFEAAFEINENEREE
carried at other than fair value kE8BEzAF¥E
The carrying amount of the Group’s financial REBZEAMNENEBHITA
instruments carried at cost are not materially ZEEEEER T -NF=
different from their fair values as at 31 March A=+—8BRkR=_ZE—N\HF=HA
2019 and 31 March 2018. =t+—BHZAFEEEZETK -

(g BEEERHEERSRMARE
(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities
() ZEFE LIFEXIZHIE
() Financial assets subject to offsetting, CHBEARZEREE
enforceable master netting arrangements or
similar agreements

As 31 March 2019
R-Z-AE=R=1-H
Gross
amount of  Net amount
recognised  of financial
financial assets
liabilities  presented
Gross  offset in the inthe  Related amounts not offset
amount of consolidated consolidated in the consolidated statement
recognised  statement  statement of financial position
financial ~ of financial  of financial  Collateral Financial
Type of financial assets assets position position received instruments  Net amount
R&&
BERRE &a
B#e HERNER  LERGREERRE
ERAcH CEILR 2h2eR ik el kA
SHEERA BEAE  AEHEE  BEFE CUWERR ¢RIE
$/000 $000 $/000 $/000 $/000
T Tn T T T

Accounts receivable due from EREEm I ER

clearing houses 1,749,254 (1,687,528) 61,726 - (61,726) -

Accounts receivable due EREFZER
from clients 7,659,409 (1,364,349) 6,295,060 (6,294,128 - 932
9,408,663 (3,051,877) 6,356,786  (6,294,128) (61,726) 932
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 30 BBEBREERERAFEE)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial (g HEEREERSRAEBE)
liabilities (Continued)
() Financial assets subject to offsetting, () ZHEE LFHEXIHIRE
enforceable master netting arrangements or CUHBEARZSREE(Z)

similar agreements (Continued)

As 31 March 2018
NE=R=+-R
Gross

amountof  Net amount

recognised  of financial

financial assets

liabilities presented
Gross  offsetin the inthe  Related amounts not offset
amount of  consolidated  consolidated  in the consolidated statement

recognised statement statement of financial position
financial of financial of financial Collateral Financial
Type of financial assets assets position position receved instruments  Net amount

§E5E EHERS  4BIR
$000 $000 $'000
T3 t7 -

SREERN

Accounts receivable due from EhEER 7B

clearing houses 3308502 (3198127 140375 - (1037) -

Accounts receivable due BREE 7B
from clients 13,114,504 (2,360,461) 10,754,043 (10,753,674) - 369
16,453,006 (5,558,588 10,894,418  (10,753,674) (140,375) 369
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 30 BBEREERAFEE)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial (g HEEEtRmEERERAEGE)
liabilities (Continued)
(i) Financial liabilities subject to offsetting, (i) ZKY LFEIIRHERE
enforceable master netting arrangements or UimZARZEHER

similar agreements

As 31 March 2019
RZE-Af=F=1-A

Gross
amount of  Net amount
recognised  of financial
financial liabilities
assets offset  presented
Gross in the inthe Related amounts not offset in
amount of consolidated consolidated the consolidated statement of
recognised statement of statement of financial position
financial financial IENME] Collateral Financial
Type of financial liabilities [EIE position position pledged instruments  Net amount
R&a
BHERRE &a
e HBERRR  LERGRMBMRE
ERAcH ORISR  2hleeR BERBLH

cRARER afEaE BEAR BERE CHERR $HMIA
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T i i i
Accounts payable due to EREEM ER
clearing houses 1,826,802  (1,687,528) 139,274 (61,726) - 71,548
Accounts payable due EREP &
to clients 1,692,818 (1,364,349) 328,464 - - 328,464

3,519,615  (3,061,877) 467,738 (61,726) - 406,012
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 30

FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities (Continued)

(ii) Financial liabilities subject to offsetting,
enforceable master netting arrangements or
similar agreements (Continued)

Gross
amount of
recognised
financial

BEEREERAFE S

(g EHEBMEERTRMEMBEHE)

(i) ZEH BRIFEXIZHAE
UHBEBNRZERHEE(E)

As 31 March 2018
NEZB=1+-H

Net amount
of financial
liabilities

assets presented
offset in the inthe  Related amounts not offset
consolidated  consolidated  in the consolidated statement
statement statement of financial position
of financial of financial Collateral Financial
position position pledged instruments

t
f

Gross
amount of
recognised
financial
liabilities

Type of financial liabilties Net amount

BERERR $RIA
$000 $000
r r
Accounts payable due to EREERIER
clearing houses 3,376,734 (3,198,127) 178,607 (140,375) - 38,232
Accounts payable dug to clients  EREF 2B 3,301,858 (2,360,461) 941,397 - - 941,397
6,678,592  (5,568,588) 1,120,004 (140,375) - 979,629
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 30 MBEBEERAFESE)

FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial (g HETHEERSREE£E)

liabilities (Continued)

(iii) The tables below reconcile the “net amounts (iii)
of financial assets and financial liabilities
presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position”, as set out above, to the
accounts receivable and accounts payable
presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position

TRAGEHBRREKRED
ZEMEERTBMEEZF
Bl EXFrEl) B S B3
RO R 2 5 2 BB W AR AR R FE A
BRI Z ¥ Bk

Net amount of financial assets after 40 _F i #5412 ¢ @& BE

offsetting as stated above FEE 6,356,786 10,894,418
Financial assets not in scope of W IEH B E

offsetting disclosure TREE 920,179 991,439
Impairment losses VERIER i (183) (331)

7,276,782 11,885,626

Net amount of financial liabilities mEMEEEeRARE

after offsetting as stated above 8 467,738 1,120,004

Financial liabilities not in scope of W IEIKEHZEFE 2
offsetting disclosure TEBEE 758,471 585,121
1,226,209 1,705,125
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(K= EEAIN -

31

32

214

VAR TTIR)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at the end of the reporting period, corporate guarantees
provided by the Company in respect of banking facilities
granted by authorised institutions to its subsidiaries
engaging in securities and futures broking amounted
to $15,953,000,000 (2018: $14,960,000,000). As at 31
March 2019, the subsidiaries of the Company have utilised
$3,040,515,000 of these aggregate banking facility (2018:
$6,434,885,000).

As at the end of the reporting period, the directors did
not consider that any claim would be made against the
Group under any of the guarantees. The Group has
not recognised any deferred income in respect of the
guarantees as their fair value cannot be reliably measured
and the transaction price was nil.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the related party information disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party transactions.

(a)

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors as disclosed in note 9 and certain of the
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 10, is as
follows:

31

32

HARER
R|EMK  ARARREESRAE

KEeEXEBZHBAR AR HBERS
Z iR 17 B & % 1 15,953,000,000 Jt (=
T — A £ :14,960,000,000 7t) Z A A
BER - R-_ZT—HhAhF=ZA=Z+—H K
RAIZHBRARAEHRAZERITHE
48 %8 7 3,040,515,000 C( = & — N\ 4
6,434,885,0007T) °

RBERK  EERAREMNRRYAE
B IR A R RO BETA - AR RRZ
AFETRTFHBERZHEAT 8K
®EILE S HRERETEERA -

EXBEALIRS

RV BEBREMEOBRBEZEEALER
S REBRIAETHERBEALRS °

(a FTEEBEAEHFMH

AEETEEBABZHTM(BEW
HOFEERANGESE LM 10T
BPEAETESFHNEESNZSE
B)WMT

Directors’ fees EEEE 600 572
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind  #H % B X EWEF 13,725 11,727
Discretionary bonuses BV IS IE 4L 10,247 4,024

Contributions to Mandatory BAE S R
Provident Fund 68 74
24,640 16,397

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see
note 7(b)).

Fro@ems ATE TRAJ(R M RE
7(b)) °
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32 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

32 EXRBEALXRZ#®)

b)) ESREEEFTREEBNER

(b) Loans to directors and entities connected with

directors

Name of borrower

ERAZE

Yip Mow Lum and
his connected
entities

EEMR
HBEER

Hui Yik Bun and
his connected
entities
FEWR
AREER

Chan Wing Shing,
Wilson and his
connected entities
Rk
REBERR

Yu Yun Kong

REE

Relationship with the Company  Director of the Company Director of the Company Director of the Company Director of the Company
and entities connected o and entities connectedto  and entities connected to
director director director

HARAZHE ARREZREES ARRESREES ARAESRHES NG
FREER FREEE HREEE

Terms of the loan
BRER

Terms of the loan

Repayable on demand

Repayable on demand

Repayable on demand

Repayable on demand

- ERARERER AREXER AREXER BREXER AREXER
— Facilities granted
-BRZBE
— IPO loan 2,000,000,000 100,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000
- BRDREEEN
— Margin loan 500,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000
- FREX
— Interest rate
i
— IPOloan 1.38%-2.48% 1.38%-2.88% 2.30% 2.48%
- BRDREEEN
— Margin loan 2.5% - Hong Kong Hong Kong Dollar Hong Kong Dollar 4.88% - HIBOR plus
Dollar Prime Rate Prime Rate plus Prime Rate plus 4% per annum
plus 5% per annum 5% per annum 5% per annum
- ARER 20%EENRERNE  ERREBENE ATREENE 4BB%EFERTAZ
ME%E | & T5%% 7| X T5%E | & B MA%EH &
— Security Marketable securities Marketable securities Marketable securities Marketable securities
- &% EES REES REES FEES

BIBHERMEBMERLA | —T—/)/\/ —NEFEFR
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32 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 32 EABEALIRSZ &)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Loans to directors and entities connected with (b EERNHEEEEFHEERMNER
directors (Continued) (%)

Yip Mow Lum and Hui Yik Bun and Chan Wing Shing,
his connected his connected Wilson and his

Name of borrower entities entities connected entities Yu Yun Kong
EERR TENR R
BRAEE HRERR HPERR REBEER eyl

Balance of the loan

EREH

— At1 April 2017

-RZF-t¥EA-H
— IPO loan - 1,727,000 - -
- BRARREER
— Margin loan 109,923,000 = = -
- FREX

— At 31 March 2018 and
1 April 2018
—RZB-N\F
ZRA=+-REk
ZE-N\§MA-H
— PO loan - = - _
%&Qﬂ%égm
— Margin loan 281,571,000 - _ _
—HRER

— At 31 March 2019
- RZ2-NF
=A=t-H
— IPO loan - - S =
- BRAREEER
— Margin loan 68,761,000 57,000 = =
- FREX

Maximum balance outstanding
AEERRER
— During 2019
-RIE-nE
— IPO loan 26,438,000 8,789,000 4,084,000 1,495,000
- BERDHBEER
— Margin loan 306,989,000 623,000 - 525,000
- FREX

— During 2018
-RIZ-N\%
— IPO loan 1,754,425,000 6,719,000 2,937,000 1,228,000
- BRAREEEN
— Margin loan 282,756,000 766,000 17,000 370,000
- FRER
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32 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(o)

BIBHEREBERLF | —F

Balances with related parties

(i)

(i)

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had accounts
receivable from related parties of $68,818,000
(2018: $281,571,000) and accounts payable
due to related parties of $43,359,000 (2018:
$28,422,000) respectively which was arising
from the Group’s ordinary course of business
in securities broking, margin financing and
commodities and futures broking. Accounts
receivable/payable from/to related parties are
set at the same terms as those normally offered
to third party clients.

As at 31 March 2019, included in the other
receivables, deposits and prepayments were
rental and office management deposits of
$24,787,000 (2018: $10,639,000) which had
been made to related companies owned by a
director of the Company. These amounts were
unsecured, interest-free and repayable upon
expiry of the respective leases.

On 31 March 2011, 16 June 2014 and 2
September 2014, the Company entered
into three loan facility letters with World Mix
Limited (“WML”"), a company which is 100%
beneficially owned by Mr. Yip, for the provision
of $310,000,000, $80,000,000 and $50,000,000
revolving loan facilities respectively from WML
to the Company for the Company’s general
working capital purpose. The first loan bore
interest at HIBOR plus 2.25% per annum
while the other two loans bore interest at
HIBOR plus 2.75% per annum. All of them
were unsecured and repayable on demand.
On 9 July 2018, a new loan facility letter
was entered into between the Company and
WML, and replaced the above three loan
facility letters. The new revolving loan facility
amounted to $1,000,000,000 bears interest at
HIBOR plus 2.75% per annum, is unsecured
and repayable on demand. Interest expense
of $9,888,000 was incurred during the year
(2018: $2,689,000). As at 31 March 2019, the
Company had an amount of $200,076,000
(2018: $Nil) due to WML under the facility.

—N\/ —NFFRH

32

EXBEALXRF (&)

(c0 EEEALTZEER

(i)

(if)

(i)

R-_E—NAF=A=+—8 "
KEBREKBEALTZERS
68,818,000 L (= & — J\ & :
281,571 OOOE)&FEH B8 A
tzﬁﬁ 7%433590007t(_
3—)\¢ 28,422,0007T) -
EIJ%E$%E%‘¥%$Fﬁ§E
TRBEREL FTEBREUR
EmEREGCER - IR
BALTZEREMNBEAL
ZERE—REETFE=ZFE
FEGEFAR -

—E-hAE=ZRA=+—8 -
Hip e A e MFER K
IHH B 24,787,000 (—ZF— N\
£ :10,639,0007T) B R A AR
R—REEHBEZHEERAX
NzHRERHAETEERS -
WERBAEEREEE I
R ERIEL EREEE -

R-_ZETE——F=A=+—8 -
—E-NFERNA+AABEZZE
—Eihﬂ:ﬁ'ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ
HEBRAT ([t - Eh4ter
BEZMBZRAREN=ZHE
TBMEERYT  AEBBAEGRA
ARARDRREBRERBE
310,000,000 7t * 80,000,000 Jt
&5oooooooﬁ'ﬁﬁf’ﬁ7~1&®—7
2 REEEE F—SEX
%ﬁ@%fﬁmﬂ%%ﬁ%buz.%%
FRERFE  HEHBEMEER
BEEBRITEER B MN2.75%
FRERFTE  2HFAEER
LEREREE -R_T—N
itﬂﬂa AR BB 4R ET

—DFERBE KM - AR
ﬁiL HERBE K o
& 3] B 2 & & 1,000,000,000 7T
EEBRITEAER B MN2.75%
FREFE Eﬁ%&ﬁ&ﬁ
BERKEE FRNELENE
Eﬂ§988800075(_;*
% 12,689,000 JT) ° B =
—NEFE=ZA=+—H  &xRQ7A
BREBREENHEHZNIES
200,076,000 7T (= & — J\ £ :
ZTir) e

NH\‘L‘

hu]|
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32 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

218

(d)

Other transactions with related parties

(i)

(i)

Brokerage income of $276,000 (2018:
$475,000) and interest income of $5,662,000
(2018: $5,275,000) was received from the
directors of the Company, their close family
members and related companies owned by a
director of the Company in the ordinary course
of the Group’s business of securities broking,
commodities and futures broking, margin and
IPO financings, and bullion trading. Commission
rates are set at the same level as those normally
offered to third party clients.

Rental expenses of $44,090,000 (2018:
$39,660,000) paid to related companies owned
by a director of the Company, were charged
at a rate mutually agreed between the parties
involved with reference to market rates.

The total future minimum lease payment under
non-cancellable operating lease on properties
are payable to related companies owned by a
director of the Company as follows:

32

EXRBEALXRF(#)

d EBEALTZzZHMRS

() &4 H A276,0007T (= F

4 475,000 7C) K A
5,662,000 ;L (= & —

5,275,0007C) WA KB H ® ¥
BHETEFEL BREH

B AFREERR

MEANREZBRZHEHMIRA
ARAREF  WFEZREKE
REARR—REEHE2HE
RAWER - AW BTN R
ME=ZFEFPREHE ZHRK

7o

iy BENARR—REEZHBZH
BN Al 2 4 B 44,090,000
& — J\ % : 39,660,000

T(Z =

L) RN T2 ETWISEE
BREMEBEHENE -

(i)

BUOR

Within one year —&F R 48,684
After one year but within five years —&F BN ATER 106,219
154,903
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32 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d)

BIBHEREBERLF | —F

Other transactions with related parties
(Continued)

(iv)

On 13 June 2012, Bright Smart Securities
International (H.K.) Limited (“BSSI”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a loan facility letter with China
Finance (Worldwide) Limited (“CFW?”), a
company which is 100% beneficially owned
by Mr. Yip, for the provision of a revolving
loan facility of $600,000,000 by CFW to BSSI
for BSSI’s general working capital purposes.
The facility bore interest at HIBOR plus 2.75%
per annum, was unsecured and repayable on
demand. On 9 July 2018, a new loan facility
letter was entered into between BSSI and
CFW, and replaced the above loan facility
letter. The new revolving loan facility amounted
$1,000,000,000 bears interest at HIBOR plus
2.75% per annum, is unsecured and repayable
on demand. No interest expense was incurred
during the year (2018: $Nil). As at 31 March
2019, no drawing was made (2018: $Nil) under
the facility.

—N\/ —NFFRH

32

EXBEALXRF (&)

d) EBEEATZHEMRZ(E)

vy RZE—ZFXAT= E’ﬁ&
TRFBERFEB)ERA
(B EH] K’RﬁZF&ﬁ%

2EWB AT HEP R (F
BOBARAR(THBEMK] - &
EEZEERBEEZRA)E]
Y—MEZXBEXHE O ARE
B RS RRAESRERE
IR B X 7 & 600,000, OOOTE '
AR BHERE—fK2EE
ﬁi°%£ﬂ§&§%ﬁﬁﬂ
EREM2.75%F F R B -
AEKBRAREREE -
RZZE—NFtANAB 8BS
BHFEPBEYBHETL— D
BER@E T UEREE
HEERE - HBERERME
1,000,000,0007C = B E R I1TR
EFREM2.75%F F R B -
AEEKBRARERKEE -
FRAVEBEEFNEAZ(ZZ
—NFE ZBx) - RZE—AN
FZA=+—H HMEHRZE
MERBMEMKE(ZZT—N
F:Eg) o
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33 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 33 AEIEBEZMBEMRR K

FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 March 2019

R-EBE—-hhE=ZA=+—H

220

Non-current asset kRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RWEBRRIZEKE 19,887 19,887
Total non-current assets ERBEELRE 19,887 19,887
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries - NG R O] 1,632,681 1,677,755
Other receivables, deposits and H fth fE W3R8 -

prepayments Ze RIENFIEA = 323
Tax recoverable A iR [ # 18 535 —
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBLEEY 5,500 6,206
Total current assets RBEEHAE 1,638,716 1,684,284
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables H At & 7 518 438 97
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAHEB AR RIE 15,850 57,095
Amount due to a related company  J& N — R #8E A 7 XA 200,076 =
Bank loans RITER 180,000 241,000
Current taxation B B 1R = 261
Total current liabilities REBEEAE 396,364 298,453
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,242,352 1,285,831
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,262,239 1,305,718
EQUITY E=
Share capital B& A 27 509,189 509,189
Share premium % 17 5 B 27 738,020 738,020
Share option reserve B AR 27 = 7,399
Retained profits IR A & K 27 15,030 51,110
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 1,262,239 1,305,718

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 19 June 2019.

Yip Mow Lum
EEM

Directors

5=

REFGR _ZE-AFARNATLARE

I 5 T e

Hui Yik Bun
TrEW
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34

35

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY

The directors consider the immediate parent and ultimate
holding company of the Company as at 31 March 2019 to
be New Charming Holdings Limited which was incorporated
on 6 July 2009 in the British Virgin Islands under the laws
of the British Virgin Islands and beneficially owned by Mr
Yip Mow Lum. New Charming Holdings Limited does not
produce financial statements available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 March 2019 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which
may be relevant to the Group.

HKFRS 16 Leases’

1 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So
far the Group has identified some aspects of HKFRS 16
which may have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements. Further details of the expected impacts
are discussed below. While the assessment has been
substantially completed for HKFRS 16, the actual impacts
upon the initial adoption of the standards may differ as the
assessment completed to date is based on the information
currently available to the Group, and further impacts may
be identified before the standards are initially applied in the
Group’s interim financial report for the six months ended 30
September 2019. The Group may also change its accounting
policy elections, including the transition options, until the
standards are initially applied in that financial report.
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 2(f), currently the Group classifies
leases into operating leases.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the
way that lessors account for their rights and obligations
under a lease. However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted,
lessees will no longer distinguish between finance leases
and operating leases. Instead, subject to practical
expedients, lessees will account for all leases in a similar
way to current finance lease accounting, i.e. at the
commencement date of the lease the lessee will recognise
and measure a lease liability at the present value of the
minimum future lease payments and will recognise a
corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition
of this asset and liability, the lessee will recognise interest
expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease
liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the current policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis
over the lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee
can elect not to apply this accounting model to short-
term leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12 months or
less) and to leases of low-value assets, in which case the
rental expenses would continue to be recognised on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases for properties, plant and equipment which
are currently classified as operating leases. The application
of the new accounting model is expected to lead to an
increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact on the
timing of the expense recognition in the statement of profit
or loss over the period of the lease.
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35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 35 RBE=-FE-hAhF=A=+—H

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019. As allowed by HKFRS 16, the Group
plans to use the practical expedient to grandfather the
previous assessment of which existing arrangements are,
or contain, leases. The Group will therefore apply the new
definition of a lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that are
entered into on or after the date of initial application. In
addition, the Group plans to elect the practical expedient
for not applying the new accounting model to short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets.

The group plans to elect to use the modified retrospective
approach for the adoption of HKFRS16 and will recognise
the cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment
to the opening balance of equity at 1 April 2019 and will
not restate the comparative information. As disclosed in
note 29(b), the Group entered certain future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases,
the lease commitments payable between 1 and 5 years
after the reporting date is amounting to HK$128,229,000.
Upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16, the opening
balances of lease liabilities and the corresponding
right-of-use assets will be adjusted to HK$38,030,000
and HK$37,163,000 respectively, after taking account the
effects of discounting, as at 1 April 2019.

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and
right-of-use assets, the Group expects that the transition
adjustments to be made upon the initial adoption of
HKFRS 16 will not be material. However, the expected
changes in accounting policies as described above could
have a material impact on the Group’s financial statement
from 1 April 2019 onwards.
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Five-year Financial Summary
LEMBERE

Year ended 31 March
BEZA=t-HLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

“E-0FE “E-N\F ZT-tFf ZF-RE —T-1f
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TET TR

Revenue WA 830,305 944,440 562,517 675,967 516,785
Profit before taxation B R 3 s 499,185 600,592 314,589 383,693 256,684
Income tax FEH (58,257) (84,493) (42,679) (58,218) (38,307)
Profit for the year EREM 440,928 516,099 271,910 325,475 218,377
Other comprehensive income Hip 28U 250 2,241 (13,369) 15,120 =
Total comprehensive income for the year 4 A1 2 B 4 5 12 %8 441,178 518,340 258,541 340,595 218,377

As at 31 March
R=A=+-H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Assets and Liabilities BERERE —E-RE “E—+F ZE- F —E-If
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAET THT AT TEL

Current assets FHEE 7,725,443 12,425 457 8,402,230 5,431,023 17,773,334
Non-current assets FRBDEE 125,898 213,647 120,723 261,148 127,273
Total assets EEBE 7,851,341 12,639,104 8,522,953 5,693,071 17,900,607
Current liabilities FEAE 4,928,034 10,002,103 6,323,168 3,655,500 16,159,729
Non-current liabilities ErnHasE 17 39 94 137 224
Total liabilities BEAE 4,928,051 10,002,142 6,323,262 3,655,727 16,159,953
Net assets BERHE 2,923,290 2,636,962 2,199,691 2,037,344 1,740,654
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